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STRATEGIC REPORT

welcome
From the Chief Executive

There is both uncertainty and complexity in the NHS today.
This provides challenges in the solutions we must find, as well
as opportunities to work with others in new ways. Demands
are increasing as we live longer, as clinical innovation
continues and technology advances. Resources are limited
but the knowledge, experience and ingenuity of our people
appear limitless. Expectations are growing. Scrutiny is
intense. All this we know.
What we also know is that we, in this Trust, have a
responsibility to provide quality health and wellbeing services
to the communities we serve, to work with our partners to
develop those services, to listen and respond to the views of
patients, service users and carers to improve experience and
outcome, and to use the diverse talents of our staff. And we
must do this through care with compassion.
I was appointed Chief Executive in 2013 and I take these
responsibilities very seriously. I look back with a great sense
of pride at the achievements of the past year, many of which
are highlighted in this report. I never underestimate the
dedication of those I work with and their commitment to
standards of care, and I extend my heartfelt thanks to them
for all that they do. Members of my close family are users
of the services we provide. I know the difference care with
compassion makes.
We have responded to a very demanding agenda, we have
made many changes, we have formed new partnerships and
this has not always been easy. I also acknowledge where we
have fallen short of the standards that our patients, service
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users, carers, staff and partners expect. I am determined we
learn from all our experiences, good and bad, and use this
to build a sustainable organisation that staff feel proud to
work for and those we serve would recommend as a place to
receive care.
We have built on an organisation with a strong foundation.
There are opportunities for us to develop both within
Northamptonshire and beyond. It is time now to actively
listen, to learn and to respond. We must stand up for our
values. I look forward to the future with enthusiasm and
conviction.

A future determined by care
with compassion.
Angela Hillery
Chief Executive Officer
22 May 2014
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Sudborough House
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road
Kettering NN15 7PW
Email: chief.executive@nhft.nhs.uk
Telephone: 01536 452045
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1

OVERVIEW

SECTION ONE: OVERVIEW
Our vision

How healthcare works in Northamptonshire

To be a leading, integrated care provider for health and
wellbeing services.

Clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) are a core part of
the Government’s reforms to the health and social care
system. In April 2013, they replaced primary care trusts as
the commissioners of most services funded by the NHS
in England. The CCGs purchase services from hospitals,
ambulance, mental health and community service providers
for the general public. In our county, there are two CCGs
covering the majority of the county – Corby CCG and Nene
CCG. Peterborough and Cambridgeshire CCG covers two
areas – Oundle and Wansford.

Our values
While so much around us changes, our values remain
constant. They guide what we do every day, delivering services
directly or indirectly to patients, service users and carers.
The Trust’s values are:
• People first, working together for patients in everything
we do
• Respect, dignity and compassion by valuing each person
as an individual
• Improving lives by improving health, wellbeing and
people’s experience of the NHS
• Dedication to quality of care and getting the basics right
• Everyone and equality count, using resources wisely for
the whole community
We have also embraced the values that deliver the vision for
NHS care developed by the NHS Chief Nursing Officer,
The Six Cs, which are:

Care
Compassion
Competence
Communication
Commitment
Courage
Organisational overview
We are a health and wellbeing organisation that takes pride in
delivering personalised, quality care through a comprehensive
and extensive range of physical, mental health and speciality
services. Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust was established on 1 May 2009. Prior to this, following
the merger of Northampton Community Healthcare NHS
Trust and Rockingham Forest NHS Trust on 1 April 2001,
we were known as Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Trust.
As the second fastest growing county in England,
Northamptonshire needs us to respond. In 2013/14, we
provided £179 million worth of services designed to improve
quality of life. This coming year, we will nurture an ethos of
continuous improvement, driving innovation and delivering
sustainable growth.
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There are 27 local area teams (LATs) that make up the
National Health Service (NHS) England. The Hertfordshire
and South Midlands LAT covers Northamptonshire and
commissions general practitioner (GP), pharmacy, dental and
optical, as well as some prison health services.
Following the implementation of these changes, health
and wellbeing boards were also established to assist local
councils and the groups they work with in improving health
and wellbeing in their local community. By bringing support
to community groups and councils, the needs of the local
people are more closely met. In our county, Northamptonshire
County Council commission programmes such as weight
loss and services such as sexual health and short breaks for
disabled children and young people.

How our services help Northamptonshire
We deliver a comprehensive range of physical, mental health
and specialist services, tailoring our care to the individual
needs of our patients, service users and carers. Our focus is on
accessible, convenient and integrated care. Where possible
and appropriate, we deliver care to people in their own homes.
In addition, our community services are available through
GP practices, health centres and in residential and hospital
environments. We also operate prison healthcare services in
Leicestershire, Rutland and Northamptonshire, as well as drug
and alcohol services in Bedfordshire.

Our services
Our services can be broadly categorised
under five groups:
1. Planned or long-term care
2. Unscheduled or urgent care
3. Wellbeing and lifestyle
4. Recovery and rehabilitation
5. End-of-life care

The Six Cs

Care
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Compassion

Competence

Communication

Courage

Commitment

service portfolio

3 2
wellbeing & lifestyle

Immunisations and
vaccinations service

Salaried dental services
Minor oral surgery

Children’s dietetics

Sexual health or genitourinary
medicine (GUM)

Changing Minds
(and ‘staying healthy’)
Smoking cessation

Human immunodeficiency
virus (HIV)

Drug and alcohol - Bedfordshire

Family planning

Veteran’s liaison service
Gender identity clinic

Isebrook - Beechwood

Adult inpatient rehabilitation
and respite

Favell House
(neurodegenerative conditions)
Custody healthcare (pilot)
Forensic
Criminal justice
Prisons

4
Young people family planning
Chlamydia screening

Prison health (Onley)
Personality disorder
offender health

recovery &
rehabilitation

Integrated drug treatment system

5
End of life
care

PAGE 12

Cranley Hospice

Cynthia Spencer Hospice

Cynthia Spencer Day Hospice
Hospice @ Home
Macmillan nursing

unscheduled
or urgent care
Intermediate care team
(winter pressures)

Favell House
(neurodegenerative conditions)
Frail and elderly crisis hub
Adult mental health inpatients
acute and low secure units
Adult inpatients psychiatric
intensive care unit
Adult community mental health team
Adult mental health: assertive
outreach, early intervention service,
crisis resolution and home treatment
teams
Early onset dementia
Eating disorders
Personality disorders
Attention deficit hyperactivity
disorder and Asperger’s

Palliative care lymphoedema

Integrated (traumatic and
acquired) brain injury

Specialist palliative care:
consultant outpatient and
psychosocial services

Older people’s mental health:
inpatient acute and community
mental health teams

End of life therapy services

Sexual assault referral centre –
Northamptonshire and Bedford

Marie Curie nurses

1

1

planned care or
long term care
Child and adolescent mental health
services: inpatients, high dependency
unit and community
Health visiting

Family nurse practitioner
Looked after children

Consultant community paediatrics
Children and young people’s nursing
services (school nursing)
Specialist school nursing team
Community children’s nurses
Weight management

Children’s therapy services:
occupational therapy, physiotherapy,
speech and language therapy
Children’s occupational therapy service
(specialist equipment in schools)
Short breaks for disabled children and
young people
Breast feeding support services
Ventilated babies

Child health information service
Adult dietetics

Musculoskeletal physiotherapy:
extended scope practitioners and
occupational therapy

Community podiatry and podiatric surgery
Community nursing
(including district nursing)
Specialist nursing: heart failure nurses,
multiple sclerosis, Parkinson’s Disease
nurse and disability link, and tissue viability
Tuberculosis service
Diabetes minocycline-treated diabetic
services
Diabetic retinopathy
Adults speech and language therapy
services
Falls service
Community therapy rehabilitation team
Adult community physiotherapy services
Phlebotomy service
Musculoskeletal physiotherapy
(any qualified provider back and neck)
Continence service
Wheelchair assessment service
Mental health international psychological
consulting services
Learning disabilities: community teams,
inpatients assessment and treatment
and respite, intensive community support
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About Northamptonshire

The highest rate of
increase will be in the
number of people aged
65 and over, which will
increase from 106,000 to
145,000 in the 10 years
from 2011 to 2021

The number of over 85s
will have increased from
14,000 in 2011 to 20,000
in 2021, making up 2.5%
of the population

300

9,288

Northamptonshire
has a growing and
ageing population that
is expected to reach
739,200 by 2016

+85

As well as the population
living longer, there is
a rising birth rate, with
9,288 births in 2012

This means an increase
of almost 300 births
(3.3%) since 2007

For the over 65s, the
number with a limiting
long-term illness will
increase by 36% between
2010 and 2020

14.3%

739,200

+65

The ethnicity of the population is
also changing, with an increase of
8% since 2001 to 14.3% in the
proportion of residents who are from
an ethnic minority group

Projected population growth by age group in Northamptonshire, 2011-2021
145%
Total

140%

65+

135%

0-15
130%

85+

125%

16+

120%
115%
110%
105%
100%
2011
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2021

Projected population growth by age group in Northamptonshire, 2011-2021
85+
80-84
75-79
70-74
65-69
60-64

Age bands

55-59
50-54
45-49
40-44
35-39
30-34
25-29
15-19
10-14
5-9
0-4
6%

4%

2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

% of Population
Northamptonshire 2009 Female

Northamptonshire 2009 Male

Northamptonshire 2019 Female

Northamptonshire 2019 Male

Northamptonshire’s health

Implications

• Northamptonshire has a statistically significant higher
healthy life expectancy at birth for men (65.3) in comparison
with the East Midlands (63.0) and England (63.2)

• Health and social care providers have experienced increased
demand for services as a result of a growing and ageing
population – children, the elderly and those with one or
more long-term conditions are all growing in number and are
disproportionately high users of services

• The corresponding figure for women is 64.2 which is
statistically higher than the East Midlands but not England
as a whole
• Life expectancy for women in Northamptonshire is
statistically significantly lower than the national average
(82.0 vs 82.9), whilst that for males is not statistically
different to England at 78.8 vs 78.9 and the East
Midlands (78.6)
• Over the past 10 years, death rates from any cause have
fallen overall
• The most common causes of death in Northamptonshire are
cancer, circulatory disease and coronary heart disease,
stroke and respiratory disease

• These demographic changes further impact on community
and mental health services where demand has increased in
end-of-life care, wellbeing and lifestyle, long-term conditions
and mental health
• In the five years from 2011 to 2016 the population is
expected to have grown by 6.8% which is much higher than
the national average
• As the population is ageing, there will be more people
with long-term conditions who require medical support, and
the number of over 65s with a limiting long-term illness is
predicted to increase by 36% from 2010 to 2020
• An increasing number of people with complex disabilities
and care needs are living for longer
• The NHS is expected to continue making significant
financial efficiencies to close the NHS funding gap
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Our year in brief

The year brought its successes as well as challenges. We redesigned services, reduced the number of people employed by the
Trust, and responded to patient and public concerns. We do not underestimate the impact we have on people’s lives and our
responsibilities towards those we serve. By focusing on the needs of patients, service users and carers, tackling inefficiencies
and engaging with the local community, we are proud to recognise some great achievements, and have had the pleasure of
celebrating milestones and special moments.

The region’s first
advanced care
planning booklet
Planning for your
future care, was
created and
launched by
the Trust.

The Care
Navigator project
concluded with
positive feedback
from home visits
and patient
stories.

Our Diabetes
Services Team
was successful in
securing a threeyear contract to
deliver diabetes
care across
Northamptonshire.

MAY 2013

Lesbian, gay and bisexual
charity Stonewall
accepted our application
to be part of their Health
Champions Programme,
as one of only 20
organisations awarded
this honour in a year.

We were selected to provide
the new Breastfeeding
Support Service for the
county by Northamptonshire
County Council and NHS
Northamptonshire Public
Health.

In partnership with
Phoenix Futures, we were
awarded new provider of
Integrated Clinical and
Psychosocial Substance
Misuse Service at HMP
Onley and our contract at
HMP Rye Hill continued.

APRIL 2013

The Sett was the first Child and Mental Health
Services unit in the Midlands to be awarded
quality accreditation by the Royal College of
Psychiatry’s Quality Network. For 13-18 year
olds, The Sett is the ninth unit nationally to
achieve this.
We celebrated Northamptonshire Pressure Ulcer
Prevention Week by acknowledging Cransley
Hospice’s achievement of being avoidable
pressure ulcer free everyday since October 2012.

The Trust was asked to
host the Research and
Development Service
on behalf of NHS
Nene and NHS Corby
Clinical Commissioning
Groups and the primary
care community.
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Public meetings on podiatry and neurodegenerative
conditions were held as part of an extensive
engagement exercise to offer the people of
Northamptonshire the opportunity to share their
views on the transformation of these services.

JUNE 2013

Staff Surgeries were held across
the county, offering our people the
opportunity to discuss issues and
concerns with our five staff governors.

APRIL 2013

The Risk Management Roadshow visited St Mary’s Hospital,
where staff received first-hand advice and support for the
services they offer.

Our mental health
occupational
therapy team
attended the
International Vona
du Toit Model of
Creative Ability
Conference,
London.

SEPTEMBER 2013

We launched
our pilot for
the inspection
scheme of
communitybased services, to
improve quality
standards and
ensure services
are fit for
purpose.

JULY 2013

The NHS celebrated its 65th
anniversary, with over one million
patient interactions every 36 hours.

Berrywood Hospital held a Physical
Wellbeing Event showcasing new gym
equipment and progress with inpatient
services, improving mental health
outcomes through physical activity.
Over 100 people attended the Trust’s first
Support Worker and Assistant Practitioner Annual
Conference at Kettering Conference Centre.

SEPT 2013

A joint Governing Body meeting of NHS Nene and NHS Corby
Clinical Commissioning Group developed recommendations to
deliver respite care for people with neurodegenerative conditions
differently and to cease low risk podiatry services (with the exception
of children and vulnerable groups), whilst ensuring podiatry services
continued and developed for those with the greatest need.

The Trust launched a new programme to improve dental care for
elderly care home residents, with primary care dental services
visiting homes throughout Northamptonshire.

AUGUST 2013

We became the new
provider of a countywide
short breaks service for
disabled children and
young people, giving
families a positive,
relaxing experience
in a safe, supportive
and stimulating
environment.
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Our Frail and Elderly Crisis Hub launched with the Olympus Care
Services and the Intermediate Care Team moving into new premises
at the Highfield site, Northampton.

NOVEMBER 2013

Sir David
Nicholson,
Chief
Executive NHS
England, visited
the Wheelchair
Service
based at
Forest House,
Kettering.

We hosted our 2013 service
user and carer involvement
conference Better Together,
and joined together as staff,
patients, service users and
carers to achieve better
health outcomes and to be
more cohesive and responsive
to people’s needs.

OCT 2013

Following extensive public consultation
by the Nene and Corby CCGs, Favell
House, an inpatient respite for people
with neurological conditions, was
closed. The Trust continues to work
with commissioners to provide access
to community services supported by
personal health budgets.
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The Mayor of Northampton Les Marriott,
met with patients and staff at Berrywood
Hospital as part of his Christmas visits.

DECEMBER 2013

Our dental service
conference on extracting
children’s teeth under
general anaesthesia was
attended by more than
80 delegates.

OCTOBER 2013

The Burrows, a new high
dependency unit based at
Berrywood Hospital, opened
following our nomination as service
provider for the new Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Service,
for young people who have a higher
level of risk and mental health needs.

MARCH 2014

JANUARY 2014
Students of the Open University pre-registration
graduate nursing programme for adult and mental health
pathways were invited to talk with the Chief Executive of
Health Education England, Professor Ian Cumming and
the Director of Nursing, Dr Lisa Bayliss-Pratt.

We hosted a multiagency continuous
professional
development
event for health,
education and
social care
professionals
to discuss
opportunities to
improve the lives of
children and young
people.

Jointly hosted by the Trust and lesbian, gay and bisexual
charity Stonewall, Northampton’s first ever Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgendered Health and Wellbeing Event
was held in Northampton’s Guild Hall to make people
aware of support and services.

Construction of our
new Older Adult
Mental Health
inpatient unit on the
St Mary’s Hospital
site, named The
Forest Centre, was
completed.
APRIL 2014

In association with
Delos Community, a
service provider of a
wide range of support
for people with
learning disabilities,
we held a health and
wellbeing event for
people with learning
disabilities.

FEBRUARY 2014

Lord Maurice Saatchi and Michael Ellis Member of
Parliament for Northampton North visited Cynthia
Spencer Hospice to discuss local palliative care
services and Saatchi’s medical innovation bill.

Andy Sawford,
Member of Parliament
for Corby and East
Northamptonshire
visited our wellbeing
services team based at
Willowbrook Health
Centre, Corby.
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Quality overview
Our culture of continuous quality improvement is focused on three quality fields linked to the National Outcomes
Framework Domains.

Patient safety

Patient experience

Clinical effectiveness

• Treating and caring for people in
a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm

• Enhancing the quality of life of
people with long-term conditions

• Preventing premature death

• Aiding recovery from episodes
of ill health or injury

• Aiding recovery from episodes
of ill health or injury

• Ensuring people have a positive
experience of care

We keep quality at the heart of everything we do and deliver services to the highest standard possible, with a focus on
nine key priorities:
1. Pressure ulcer prevention

5. Listening actively to patients

2. Preventing harm from falls

6. Improving patient involvement

3. Putting National Institute of Health and Care
Excellence (NICE) guidance into practice

7. Monitoring and learning from medication incidents

4. Physical healthcare, wellbeing and lifestyle checks

Quality highlights
• Progress with some inpatient units
recording consecutive pressure ulcer
free days
• 94% of people who responded to our
Friends and Family Test said they would
recommend our services to others

Quality challenges
• Progress in reducing the number
of pressure ulcers was offset by not
meeting our internal target
• Minimal difference in the incidence
of slips, trips and falls year-on-year,
leading to the reinstatement of the
Falls Group
• Overall, medication incidents have
increased from prior year, however
harm was reduced

PAGE 20

8. Benchmarking our feedback against national standards
9. Involvement in national audits

Performance overview
Our performance is reviewed by Monitor, the independent regulator for health services in England, in accordance with the
Compliance Framework and the Care Quality Commission. In addition to Monitor’s independent regulatory reviews, our own
commissioners appraise us based on service reviews and surveys.
The future of our internal performance framework includes measurements of effectiveness in patient safety, experience and
outcomes, along with quality assurance, wait times, and our workforce capacity, productivity, equality and diversity. Our view will
also extend to our financial control, contractual standards, performance indicators, environment, schedule and our operating
framework nationally.
These measurements are designed to inform the internal modelling of our performance expectations, to streamline target setting
and reviews by our leadership team and organisation.

Performance highlights

Performance challenges

• Our focus on service pathway remodelling
and integration has helped maximise productivity,
new ways of working and the delivery of
patient-focused care

• We need to increase our support to staff from
immediate managers, further improve staff training
and focus on job satisfaction

• Our wellbeing services are enhanced and now include
services in care navigation and diabetes
• Our progress in child and adolescent mental health
has been significant, as recognised by our new high
dependency unit and The Sett facility’s quality
accreditation
• With our increased focus on older people’s services,
our developments and investments include a new
older persons’ facility at St Mary’s Hospital
• With new staff, we are developing our health visiting
agenda
• We have explored new service acquisition, including
psychological support
• Units including Cransley Hospice and Riverside and
Carlton Wards have delivered long-term pressure
ulcer free milestones

• We need to understand more about the patient and
carer experience and make it easier for them to give
us their feedback
• Our ability to deliver person-centred care is
dependent on our improving patient experience
• Our understanding of our learning must be conveyed
and acted upon to ensure outcomes are measurable,
in line with our new strategy
• Continued financial pressures on the health economy
places risk on future income levels
• It is likely financial efficiencies of 5% will continue to
2016 and possibly in the years ahead
• Our progress balancing quality and finances will be a
continued challenge over the next three years
• Our tendering practice requires improvement, to
ensure our submissions are more compelling

• A successful implementation of a balanced approach
to quality and cost reduction has been delivered
through collective considerations for pathway
remodelling, estates rationalisation and a review of
high-cost spend areas
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How we performed
As a Foundation Trust, the independent regulator for health services in England, Monitor, rates our performance. Our financial
risk rating (FRR) determines the continuity of services, based on quarterly returns submitted, where one represents the highest
risk and four the lowest. Our governance risk is rated green if no issues are identified and red when enforced action is required.

Summary of performance standards

2013/14

2012/13

FRR/CoSRR 1

Target 4 achieved

Target 4 achieved

Governance risk rating

Green

Green

Monitor non-financial targets

Achieved

Achieved

Care Quality Commission Standards

Full compliance

Full compliance

The monitoring of Foundation Trusts’ financial risk ratings changed from 1 October 2013 from a Financial Risk Rating (FRR) to
a Continuity of Service Risk Rating (CoSRR).
1
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How we Managed our money
Our financial targets

2013/14

2012/13

Operational surplus
(excludes impairments)

Target £281k
Actual £347k deficit

Target £312k
Actual £655k

Margin

Target 4.6%
Actual 4.4%

Target 4.7%
Actual 4.9%

Cash balance

Target £28.682m
Actual £41.173m

Target £30.323m
Actual £43.337m

FRR/CoSRR 1
(1-5)

Target 3
Actual 4

Target 3
Actual 3

£10.113m

Internally funded capital spend
£4.872m

92.5%

Achievement of cost efficiencies 91%

Topline view of indicators

Our 3-year financial plan
Year

Surplus

Efficiencies

Cash

Risk Rating

2013/14

£0.3m

5%

£29m

3

2014/15

£0.1m

5%

£26m

3

2015/16

£(0.1)m

5%

£24m

3

Our performance against our annual plan
2013/14

Annual Plan

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

FRR/CoSRR 1

3

3

3

3

4

Governance risk
rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

FRR/CoSRR 1

3

4

3

3

3

Governance risk
rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

2012/13
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Monitor non-financial targets
2013/14

2012/13
Outturn

At least 95% of clients discharged from adult wards
should be followed up within 7 days of discharge from
hospital

96.71%

97.5%

CPA patients having formal
review within 12 months

At least 95% of clients should receive a formal CPA
review every 12 months

95.33%

95.3%

Minimising delayed transfers
of care

Maximum 7.5% of patients delayed on a ward once they
have been declared fit for discharge

7.2%

7.5%

Access to crisis resolution
services

At least 95% of admissions to hospital should be seen
first by crisis resolution services

97.39%

98.7%

New patients taken on by
Early Intervention Teams

At least 84 new patients should be supported by early
intervention services during the course of the year

100%

94

Referral to treatment times,
consultant-led outpatient
services

At least 95% of patients seen by consultant-led
outpatient services will be seen within 18 weeks of
referral

100%

98.7%

Referral to treatment times,
consultant-led outpatient
services

At least 92% of patients waiting to be seen by
consultant-led outpatient services will have been
waiting less than 18 weeks

100%

99.0%

Mental health minimum
dataset

At least 97% of service users to have complete identifier
information such as NHS number in their records

98.7%

99.1%

Mental health minimum
dataset

CPA patients should have their diagnosis, Health of
the Nation Outcomes Score (HoNOS) and information
such as accommodation and employment status in their
records

87.4%

95.5%

Community information
dataset

At least 50% of records relating to referrals satisfying
data completeness requirements

64.7%

87.2%

Community information
dataset

At least 50% of records relating to contacts satisfying
data completeness requirements

99.8%

73.2%

Community information
dataset

At least 50% of records relating to referral to
treatment satisfying data completeness requirements

100%

100.0%

Access to healthcare for
people with a learning
disability

Self-certification against compliance

Compliant

Compliant

Priority

Target

7-day follow-up for clients
on the Care Programme
Approach (CPA)
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Other measurements of performance
We also monitor our progress against a range of local targets,
as agreed with our commissioners. Details of our performance
in these areas, as well as strategic initiatives and actions to
innovate and improve, can be found in the Quality Report of
this Annual Report.
Emergency preparedness, resilience and response (EPRR)
As determined by the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and
Health and Social Care Act 2012, as well as NHS guidance
on emergency preparedness, we are committed to maintaining
our services during an emergency and safeguarding the people
who work for and with us. Our EPRR work is underpinned
by our strategies for risk management and information
governance and is informed by our local Community Risk
Register.
We work with local partners such as the Local Resilience
Forum and its Health and Social Care sub-group to deliver our
strategy for mitigating events or situations that could cause
serious harm, injury or illness to human welfare or serious
damage to the security of the UK.
Our plans ensure that if an emergency occurs or is likely to
occur we are able to perform our functions, work to prevent
the emergency, reduce, control or mitigate its effects, or take
other action in connection with it.

The NHS Constitution
Our Board of Directors is bound by a code of conduct, which
requires complete compliance with the NHS Constitution.
Our Council of Governors, elected by the Trust’s members, is
also bound by the NHS Constitution.
Infection control
With an extensive range of policies and procedures for
preventing and controlling the risk of infection, our risk
management and control is strong.
Environmental matters
Just as the sustainable delivery of our services is a top
priority, our energy efficiency and environmental impact is a
key indicator for our performance. Our Sustainability Action
Plan, available on our website, highlights our investments in
solutions to reduce our carbon footprint, and to increase our
energy efficiency. Through our strategic management of waste
with our partners, we have increased our recycling capabilities,
and our development of more efficient new facilities ensures
we are managing our environmental impact more effectively.

Information governance
We are proud to declare this is our third consecutive year of improvement in information governance, as reported following the
submission of our toolkit. In addition, we have had no serious untoward incidents that would require reporting to the Information
Commissioner’s office in the past year.

Data related incidents 2013/14
These are the categories of data we report against:

Category
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Nature of incident

Total

I

Loss of inadequately protected electronic equipment, devices or paper documents from
secure NHS premises

-

II

Loss of inadequately protected electronic equipment, devices or paper documents from
outside secured NHS premises

1

III

Insecure disposal of inadequately protected electronic equipment, devices or paper
documents

-

IV

Unauthorised disclosure

1

V

Other

6

Plans in progress
Healthier Northamptonshire
The four workstreams we have invested in to support Healthier
Northamptonshire, a countywide strategy for the delivery
of health and social care, are designed to deliver the largest
impact for our patients, service users and carers, as well as to
provide quality services. They are:
1. Frail and elderly
2. Integration of health and social care
3. Acute service collaboration
4. GP transformation
Alongside our partners, we will continue to develop the models
of care currently being delivered through the frail and elderly
transformation programme. This may place greater demand
on our delivery capability, ability to improve outcomes and
contribute to wider health economy performance.
We are also focused on finding more cost-effective solutions
for hospital care. We anticipate the other workstreams
will lead to a greater demand for delivery of services in the
community and acknowledge that we must evolve innovative
solutions, in order to provide these services.
We are also developing detailed work programmes to address
the programme’s core requirement to work in a collaborative
way, across pathways and with partners. Our critical issue is
developing cost-effective solutions based on evidence and
analysis.
Transformation workstreams
Transformation programmes typically deliver the same or
enhanced services for less money through process redesign,
productivity review, skill mix review and innovation. We
understand the implementation of our programmes will likely
lead to a reduction in staff numbers. It is also likely that we
will see the number of our doctors, employed in core services,
decline as new models of care are developed.
Workstreams likely to have the most impact
• Mental health and wellbeing
• Frail and elderly
• Children and young people
• End-of-life
• Bed review
• Learning disability
• Telehealth
• Partnership development
• New business model
Developments in technology should drive down cost, improve
productivity and provide alternative service delivery methods.
Depending on outcomes, the bed review workstream may lead
to a reduction in staff numbers or staff mix, and use of our
assets. However, it should be noted that from 1 April 2014
the Trust transferred in 146 staff as a result of the change

of service provider of community beds from Northampton
General Hospital.
In addition, from our contract providing Short Breaks for
Disabled Children and Young People for Northamptonshire,
51 staff transferred under Transfer of Undertakings Protection
of Employment (TUPE) arrangements to the Trust. 13 staff
transferred into the employment of Northamptonshire
Carers as a result of the amalgamation of carer support in
Northamptonshire.
In the second year of implementation, once the key
transformation programmes have been implemented, we
will likely execute new models of partnership and methods
of provision. Given our strategic objective for growth, we
anticipate some services would then see an increase in staff
numbers as our plans develop.
Financial pressures
Whilst significant efforts are being made to reduce financial
pressure within the health economy, the combination of
historical deficit and future funding will put us under pressure
to further reduce costs and, by implication, the cost of our
workforce.

Key projects
The Francis Report, published in February 2013, was
commissioned by the Secretary of State to present
the findings of failings at the Mid Staffordshire NHS
Foundation Trust. As a trust, we have considered
the recommendations raised in the report and we
acknowledge that our requirement to achieve safer
staffing standards could mean additional staff or
alternative methods of staff-level management. For
example, we are conducting a review of the use of bank
and agency staff as a means of controlling workforce
costs versus the use of peripatetic staff. This may lead
to an increase in staff numbers, although it may not
necessarily increase cost. As a result, we are considering
the introduction of an e-rostering system to improve staff
management.
The Quality Innovation Productivity Prevention
transformation programmes, which include approximately
60 projects, are also new on our resource agenda, along
with the Cost Improvement Programme (CIP). Our CIP
plan for next year is likely to include new projects, as well
as a continuation of some existing projects. There are
90.14 whole-time equivalent staff reductions currently
identified as part of this programme. Additionally, there
will be implications for how services are delivered and by
whom.
Looking further ahead, the 2015/16 programme will
focus on benchmark costs, productivity, job planning and
the launch of a project to review the impact of volunteers
on staff costs.
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2
STRATEGY

Our strategy in 2014 is to
build a strong, sustainable
organisation by designing
and delivering innovative,
integrated and
personalised care pathways
for the people of
Northamptonshire and its
neighbouring counties.
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SECTION TWO: STRATEGY
Our strategy in 2014 is to build a strong, sustainable organisation by designing and delivering
innovative, integrated and personalised care pathways for the people of Northamptonshire and
its neighbouring counties.
In order to deliver this, our Board of Directors has established and implemented a four-point plan for implementation
and focus over the medium to long term.
This strategic direction follows the eight strategic objectives formed in 2012.

1

2

3

4

To be a genuinely
patient-orientated
organisation that treats
people with compassion,
values diversity, prevents
ill health and personalises
care to the needs of
patients and carers.

To provide services that
are safe, orientated
around evidence-based
practice, delivered by
empowered clinicians
and offering continuously
improving service
standards.

To provide services
in modern, safe and
clean environments
that are accessible to
the communities and
populations they serve,
designed around patient
needs and ecologically
sustainable.

To provide an increasingly
comprehensive,
complementary and
integrated range
of services within
Northamptonshire and
the surrounding counties.
This will include primary
and community services,
local hospital services
and specialist tertiary
services.

5

6

7

8

To be an employer of
choice that recruits
and retains high calibre
and motivated staff and
builds a workforce that is
flexible, competent, well
managed and engaged
in safe and supportive
working environments.

To be an able and
effective partner and
to develop effective
strategic alliances and
partnerships with other
organisations to deliver
integrated and holistic
services.

To be a fully accountable
organisation that
is genuinely open,
responsible to and
influenced by a
stronger, representative
membership, by our
commissioners and the
communities we serve.

To be a productive,
resourceful and financially
successful organisation
that has significantly
improved the clinical
efficacy and productivity
of our services, driven
out inefficiencies and
released resources from
our cost base.
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Our objectives
Delivering our strategy means prioritising four strategic objectives, with increased emphasis on our approach to Develop as it is
essential that we cement our foundations and fundamentals prior to allocating resource and focusing on growth and innovation.

grow
Target pathways and opportunities
to deliver sustainable growth within
and beyond Northamptonshire:
• Deliver high standards of services in
bordering counties, as well as in our own, with
new models of care developed from our areas
of proficiency, which have a proven track record
and advantaged delivery model

ld
bu
i

d

il
bu

innovate

Expand our integrated pathways with innovative new models of care:
• Become the partner of choice and a leading care integrator
in the county, extending our portfolio of service provision
and facilitation within Northamptonshire

develop

Establish solid foundations for our patients’ future care:
• Consistently deliver on quality and cost, patient care and internal service support across the organisation
• Deliver efficiency improvements and key clinical and non clinical transformations
• Minimise variations between and within care pathways
• Promote our capabilities in compelling tender submissions
• Challenge traditional ways of working to ensure quality of care is timely, relevant and appropriate

build

Develop a more adaptable, capable organisation:
• Develop the people, capabilities, structures, systems and
processes that enable us to adapt to a rapidly changing
healthcare environment, in order to deliver the right care,
in the right place at the right time

PAGE 32

Action plan
Delivering on our strategic objectives requires detailed plans
and clear accountability. By establishing workstreams for each
of our four strategic objectives, our resources and actions are
concentrated and prioritised in a meaningful and
effective way.

Workstreams
Develop
• Mental health and wellbeing transformation
• End-of-life strategy
• Children’s and young people’s service transformation
• Bed utilisation review
• Learning disability transformation
• Tender and account management
• Quality and service improvement

Innovate
• Healthier Northamptonshire (Frail and Elderly, Health
and Social Care Integration, Acute Service Collaboration,
Transformation of GP)
• Telehealth (helping to address the link between long-term
conditions and mental health needs)
• Real-time patient feedback
• Patient recording systems and tools
• Partnership strategy
• New business models
Grow
• Focus on business development
• Build our reputation and people’s confidence in our services
Build
• Intelligence hub
• IT enablers and paperless working
• Development of people capability
• New culture behaviours
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3
PEOPLE

SECTION THREE: PEOPLE
We believe in making a difference to the lives of people in our community, by providing quality health and wellbeing care.
We understand the importance of listening and responding to our patients, service users and carers and we believe in doing
the same with our staff. More than ever before, this will be a driver for change.
Balancing affordable and quality care that both meets the needs of those we serve, as well as being a service our staff can be
proud of, is challenging. We are committed to identifying areas where our capability to deliver for those we serve falls short, to
understanding what needs to be done and to working with our people to improve skills, knowledge and performance. While the
change this brings can sometimes be difficult, we strive to lead our people with clear direction, effective communication and role
model behaviour. Listening and responding drives engagement and a desire to deliver quality, innovative and compassionate care
to our community.

A case study
Helping young people find their voice
A knew that her young son B was having
trouble communicating. At age two, he
was assigned a community Speech and
Language Therapist from the Trust.
Now aged five and attending a school in
Northampton, he has made significant
progress despite being diagnosed with
verbal developmental dyspraxia.

“I have seen a tremendous change in B
over the years. I’ve also spoken to staff
at the Nursery where B used to go and
they are amazed by the progress he has
made.” Hazel Kouzaris

A has nothing but praise for her son’s
Speech and Language Therapist Hazel
Kouzaris and all the staff at the school.
“All the services have been brilliant and
Hazel has been fantastic – she helped me
get help from the Child Development
Centre at Northampton General Hospital
and also told me about the school. She
also helped us get the diagnosis and the
benefits we need.
“My son’s school is a really good example
of all the different services working
together – the NHS, the school staff, and
with me as parent.
“We first met Hazel out in the community
when my son was about two and he’s been
at his school since September 2012. He’s
made such a lot of progress in that time,
originally he wasn’t even talking at all.”
B is one of three children in his class who
have speech and language difficulties and
in addition to Hazel being his NHS Speech
and Language Therapist, the school also
employs a Speech and Language Assistant
to provide additional support.
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B and his friends come to the group speech and language sessions at the school
as well as one-to-one support with Hazel. Other health services B has accessed
include play therapists, ophthalmology, audiology and eneuresis clinic.
A designated special provision worker at the school said, “When we first met
B it was about getting him to communicate with signs and then vocalising, and
now it’s more about working with him on speech and pronunciation of words. It
is nice that he has peers at the school who also have speech difficulties as there
is some peer support for him.”
A said the principle of one contact for children’s services was good, but that
her experience of NHS services was so positive she would not want to lose the
expertise and helpfulness of people like Hazel.

“As far as I’m concerned, the service
from the NHS, and Hazel in particular,
has been excellent and I wouldn’t want
to change a thing.”

OUR STAFF
Developing our workforce plan
involved consideration of our operating
environment and the implications of our
strategic imperatives, as well as input from
our patients, service users, carers, staff,
professional bodies and key workforce
organisations. In addition, we worked with
our local partner organisations to identify
and respond to common issues.
The operating environment has never
been more challenging. With tension
between resource availability and the
provision of quality care, the delivery of
service transformation whilst responding
to increased demand becomes more
difficult. The impact of national, regional
and local work programmes on our
workforce, the potential effect of financial
pressures within the local health economy
and growing public demands means an
increase in expectation and focus placed
on NHS organisations.
Our workforce plan acknowledges
these challenges. It is based on the
understanding that our focus on
development of capability is the way to
deliver in this environment, through:
1. Continuous improvement of our
core service offerings
2. Innovation driving quality,
effectiveness and growth
3. Services founded on transferable
models of care
Our plan identifies the necessary
competencies, skills, experience and
knowledge, and balances them with the
need to respond to the key drivers of the
workforce plan.
In recognition of the demands on
our staff in the current operating
environment, our talent development
will be streamlined and focused. Our
learning and development activities will
be concentrated in four key areas:
1. Health and wellbeing
2. Quality management
3. People management
4. Business management
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OUR STAFF
Our staff in post 2013/14
Our staff in post 2012/13

nursing, midwifery
and health visiting
learners

medical and
dental

It is clear that our staff management
needs careful balance and, whilst
current plans point to a reduction in staff
numbers through cost improvement and
transformation programmes, there are
other initiatives and opportunities we
are investigating that could potentially
lead to an increase in staff numbers. Our
Healthier Northamptonshire programme
is an example of a key driver that may lead
to new opportunities.

40
24
126
131
604

scientific, therapeutic
and technical

622
643

administration
and estates

registered in our Staffbank
and with agencies

688
853
802
881

healthcare assistants
and support staff

nursing, midwifery and
health visiting
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956
1150
1182

2013/14
4297 total staff
We serve
more than

700,000

2012/13
4405 total staff

our organisation
*Total staff include those under contract and individuals
registered in our Staffbank

people in the
community
With
approximately

11,000
trust
members

8 DIRECTORS

23 SENIOR MANAGERS

17%

2013/14

4.83%*

83%

2012/13

4.92%

Our sickness absence rate
*Cumulative for period April 2013–March 2014

4297 TOTAL STAFF
= Female
= Male
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What our staff say about the Trust
With national and local media, as well as public commentary
on the NHS, in addition to funding and support challenges for
healthcare in this difficult environment, it is not always easy
to build and maintain the engagement of our staff. Whilst
the Trust has always pursued opportunities to drive effective
change, 2013/14 probably saw the most significant impact on
staff so far, due to organisational change.
Every year, we see our staff survey as an opportunity to listen,
learn and make change for the better. We are committed to
being open and honest about the feedback we get from our
staff; good or bad. Our leadership team looks out for feedback
that shows where we can grow and improve our results, as this
indicates what we need to do to better support our staff. Our
overall 2013 results changed minimally from 2012, and where
scores changed, they were for the better.

Highlights
• Senior management communication has improved.
New and different channels have been trialled,
and monthly visits to services by the executive team
have been introduced. To further support this, in the
coming year we will introduce a Chief Executive
forum where we will explore key issues relating to
the quality of services we provide. In addition, we will
hold Chief Operating Officer surgeries to enable the
integration and alignment of the organisation.
• Appraisals have increased, with more staff receiving
an appraisal this year (86%) compared to 2012 (71%).
However, only 37% of staff feel that the appraisal was
well structured.
• Job related training requires continual focus and
development this coming year.
• Bullying, harassment and abuse in the workplace have
decreased. However, this remains a cultural priority
and one that requires a more in-depth understanding
of its impact on equality.
• Staff motivation is strong but job satisfaction requires
development, which means our staff look forward
to and are enthusiastic about their work. However,
we need to support, value and recognise them more
effectively.
• Our reporting of errors, near misses or incidents is
excellent, but we must ensure our staff consider our
reporting procedures are both fair and effective.

Future priorities
Looking forward, the executive team has been tasked with
using the feedback and information from our staff survey to
bring about further improvements. Importantly, the Trust is
addressing the need to increase the number of staff who would
recommend our organisation as both a place to work and to
receive care. By openly addressing staff survey feedback, we
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are asking our leaders to learn more about what our staff feel,
why they feel this way and what we can do to change things for
the better.
The staff survey results reflect the actions we took during
the year to improve key areas of concern that have been
highlighted previously. Specifically, we focused on improving
communication from the leadership team, we drove the
requirement for all staff to have an annual appraisal and we
continued our work to create a culture where bullying and
harassment are not tolerated. During the year we also started
a revitalisation of our staff health and wellbeing support
programme with a range of support services and activities.
The Trust Policy Managing Diversity and Equal Opportunities
in Employment ensures that we give full and fair consideration
to applications for employment made by disabled persons,
having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities.
The Trust applies the policy to ensure the continuation of
employment, arrangement for appropriate training, career
development and promotion of disabled employees.
To encourage the involvement of employees in the Trust’s
performance, to provide them with information on matters
of concern to them as employees, and to achieve a common
awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting the
performance of the Trust, the following actions and activities
were undertaken in 2013/14:
• Staff advocacy programme
• Director visits
• Open forums
• Dedicated staff suggestion email account named ‘My Idea’
• Confidential staff support telephone line
• Trust Staffside Partnership Forum
• Interim staff survey
• Pulse surveys
• Grievances, disciplinaries and open-door discussions
Consultations
There were 15 formal consultations launched in 2013/14,
ranging from relatively small internal changes to larger
changes that required public and stakeholder engagement.
Six of these will not be concluded until later in 2014. Where
wider consultation was required, we worked with the local
commissioner, as leader of the process and key interest
groups to ensure that all relevant voices were heard. We
have learned from this. The Trust recognises that whilst we
have a responsibility to constantly seek new ways to deliver
services in response to the environment, we must also ensure
that the staff who are affected by the change are supported
in accordance with our policies and values, and that the
patients who receive that service receive quality care. Two
new consultations have already been identified for launch in
2014/15 and the Trust recognises that changing demands
may require additional consultations as the year progresses.

STAFF SURVEY RESULTS
Our overall engagement increased marginally from 3.68 in 2012 to 3.71 in 2013, and was on a par with the national average for
mental health and learning disability trusts.
Our top and bottom five ranking scores compared to the national average
2013

2012

Response rate

Trust

National
average

Trust

National
average

Performance
versus previous year

51%

51%

55%

48%

Improvement

Top five ranking scores (2013)
% of staff reporting errors, near misses
or incidents witnessed in the last month

95%

93%

97%

92%

No change*

% of staff experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from patients, relatives
or the public in the last 12 months

31%

31%

25%

30%

No change*

% of staff experiencing physical violence
from staff in the last 12 months

3%

4%

2%

4%

No change*

% of staff witnessing potentially harmful
errors, near misses or incidents in last
month

20%

27%

23%

26%

No change*

% of staff experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from staff the last 12
months

23%

21%

17%

20%

Improvement

Bottom five ranking scores (2013)
Support from immediate managers
(scale 1-5, higher the better)

3.63

3.78

3.63

3.82

No change*

% of staff receiving health and safety
training in last 12 months

62%

72%

61%

75%

No change*

% of staff receiving job-relevant
training, learning or development in last
12 months

81%

82%

78%

82%

No change*

Staff job satisfaction
(scale 1-5, higher the better)

3.6

3.66

3.62

3.67

No change*

Fairness and effectiveness of
incident-reporting procedures
(scale 1-5, higher the better)

3.47

3.51

3.45

3.52

No change*

*The changes in scores year-on-year are not assessed as statistically significant
The 2013 staff survey was conducted in what was, for the
Trust, a period of significant change as we redesigned a
number of services, undertook a range of consultations
and made a number of staff redundant. Whilst in no way
complacent, we may well have expected some greater level of
deterioration in the scores.
The Trust uses the staff survey to measure the effectiveness of
our HR workplan and, to this end, in anticipation of the degree
of change, had commissioned an interim staff survey part way
through 2013. The areas where significant improvement had
been made, either compared to the previous year or compared
to other trusts, were those where particular emphasis had
been placed during the year, for example in the undertaking

of appraisals, improved communication, reducing bullying
and harassment and in encouraging the open reporting of
incidents. Compared to 2012 there were fewer scores in the
bottom 20% of comparable trusts and more in the top 20%,
although there remains much to do to improve our position.
In particular, we will seek to increase the number of staff who
would recommend the Trust as a place to work and as a place
to receive care.
The results of the staff survey were discussed with Staffside
colleagues, with governors and with the Board. Agreement
was reached on the areas of focus for 2014, which will be
incorporated into the 2014 HR workplan.
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Our achievements

We are proud of our staff, of their professional contribution, their drive and their ambition for the services we provide.
In celebration of their hard work and pursuit of continuous improvement, we offer our thanks and congratulations.

FURTHER EDUCATION
Award winner (s)

Award

Sue Hewitt, Community Team for People with Learning
Disabilities, Danetre Hospital, Daventry

Primary Healthcare Honours Degree and Specialist Practitioner
Certificate

Tom Hewitt, MSK, Highfield, Northampton

Physiotherapy Degree, First Class Honours

Cheryl Tompkins, Physiotherapy Assistant, Isebrook
Hospital, Wellingborough

Bachelor of Science, First Class Honours in Health and Social
Care

Sarah Dunn, Sexual Assault Referral Centre

Advanced Level Apprenticeship in Health

Tim Evans, Carlton Tomlin, Ed Clancy, David McKay
and Chris Harrison

New Vocational Qualification in Recovery and Employability

Louise Haddon, Jackie Byfield and Christine Thackeray

Fully Accredited, Stock and Modular Stock Therapeutic
Footwear Course

Richard Lindsley, Clinical Nurse Specialist, Child and
Mental Health Services

Theraplay Therapist Certification: Theraplay Institute of
Evanstone, Illinois, USA

Lesley-Ann James, Administrator for Community
Assessment Treatment of Children at Home

Certificate of Achievement and Inspirational Learner of the
Year (National Adult Learners’ Week)

The Trust’s Electroconvulsive Therapy Service

Royal College of Psychiatrists’ Accreditation and
Recommendation

Group of 11 Trust administrators

Lean Office Block Practitioner Accreditation

INTERNAL AWARDS
Award winner (s)

Award

Tom and Jean Wilkinson

Winners of the Anne McWatt award (an internal award)

Awards for Trust’s Simply Improving Services Conference
Professor Ian Waller of Serenity
Staff and service users from Cove Recovery Ward,
Berrywood Hospital, represented by Margaret Clinton,
Toni Gent, Dave Wootton and Gordon Holmes

First Prize for Health improvement for sexually abused children
Joint Second Prize for Beginning your day the recovery way

Sue Rayment, integrated team lead of adult physical health

Joint Second Prize for New weekend district nursing system
in Northampton

Karen Tomlin, integrated team manager, Corby

Runner-up prize for Call Co-ordinator

Christine Goodwin and Helen Wisniewski, care navigators

Runner-up prize for Care Navigator Pilot presented by
Julie Shepherd

Dr Nyunt Tin and Lucy Bullen of CTPLD, Northampton

Runner-up prize for Outcome of metabolic syndrome
monitoring clinic in people with a learning disability

Allied healthcare, support worker and assistant practitioner conference
Mandeep Gill and Caroline McLachlan from the
Crisis Team

“I did – I do it differently” award for innovative ways of working
at the trust’s first allied healthcare, support worker and assistant
practitioner conference

EXTERNAL AWARDS
Award winner (s)

Award

Carlotta Oakenfull, Occupational Therapist, Forensic and
Rehabilitation

Shortlisted for NHS Patient Inclusivity Leader of the Year,
East Midlands Leadership Academy Recognition Awards

Paula Lawrence, Healthcare Assistant, Welland Centre,
Kettering

Shortlisted for Patient’s Choice category in Nursing Standard
Awards 2014
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6th Annual Nurse and AHP Conference Award Winners
Award winner

Award

Zoe Gent

Student of the Year

Ann Rigby

Mentor/Assessor of the Year

Margaret Lawal

Innovative Practice Award

Claire Higgins

Support Worker of the Year

Heather Cook

Healthcare Professional of the Year

Kingsley Belton

Lifetime Achievement Award

Cransley Hospice

Team of the Year

PUBLISHED ARTICLES
Author (s)

Article

Karen Tomlin, Team and Clinical Facilitator for the
Continence Service

Interview and feature in Nursing Standard, May 8, vol. 27, No
36, 2013, ‘Treatment not pads’ article on continence teamwork

Patricia Bell and Amanda Mortimer

Published article in Learning Disability Practice vol. 16, No 4,
2013, ‘Working with people with learning disabilities’

Hamza Gohdrawala, Specialist Physiotherapist,
Neuro Rehabilitation Unit

Interviewed by Frontlines Physiotherapy Magazine for feature on
community-based mock Care Quality Commission (CQC)

Claire Higgins, non-registered Staff Development
Coordinator

Article printed in British Journal of Healthcare Assistants:
Code of Conduct for Support Workers

Rob Hasker and Liz Sturgess, Dementia Care
Advisors – Berrywood Hospital, Northampton

Article published in Journal of Dementia Care
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Patient Experience
Training
Learning and development
created the highly
successful Going the
Extra Mile programme to
reinforce the Trust’s
commitment to providing
quality integrated care to
our patients. At the date
of printing, 290 people
have attended this
patient-focused training.
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Mandatory training
Our learning and development and clinical skills training teams continue to work with colleagues across the Trust to deliver
and administrate key mandatory training courses. These courses ensure employees joining the Trust are quickly integrated and
existing staff have the skills and knowledge needed to work safely and effectively, while providing quality integrated support to
our patients.
Full reports are cascaded to all managers on a monthly basis to support them in fulfilling their obligation to comply with relevant
legislation, regulations and good practice.
Key mandatory training completed includes:
Mandatory training module

Training places attended

Pass rate

Manual handling (theory only)

1065

100%

Resuscitation training

2520

100%

Fire safety

3482

100%

Infection control

2295

100%

Role specific clinical skills training
In line with The Six Cs and the Safer Staffing guidelines, the Trust continues to develop and grow its clinical skills training
portfolio. Examples include:
• Intravenous therapy revision and assessment of drug calculations
• Medicines management
• Syringe driver T34 Mckinley
• Venepuncture
• Nurse verification of death
• Dementia

• Advanced care planning
• Immunisation
• Clinical supervision
• Preceptorship
• Rapid Tranquilisation

Leadership and personal development training
The Trust continues to invest in the development of both its management team and the wider workforce to ensure values-based,
quality care is provided to our patients. Our learning and development team have added the Inspire Leadership and Grow
Personal Development programmes to its training portfolio.
Programme

Training places attended

Inspire Leadership modules

519

Grow Personal Development modules

197

Apprenticeships and vocational qualifications
The Trust continues to invest in apprenticeships and in 2013/14 a further four apprentices successfully completed their training.
The number of staff undertaking vocational qualifications has grown, as these were aligned to the Trust and patient needs.
Award gained

Level

Number completed

2

28

Customer service

2&3

2

Business administration

2&3

8

Health and social care

2&3

3

Promoting the mental health and wellbeing of older people

3

7

Training Assessment and Quality Assurance (TAQA)

3

2

Introduction to trainer skills

In addition, our learning and development team supported patient rehabilitation through the delivery of the employability
and personal development extended award, with six patients completing it.
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How we support our staff
Our occupational health and wellbeing programme
Just as our staff support the health and wellbeing of our patients, service users and carers, we offer services and support for staff health
and wellbeing too. In addition to our existing programmes and services, we introduced some new initiatives during the year. The aims of
our occupational heath and wellbeing programme included reducing appointment wait times, and increasing convenience for staff. To
deliver this, we opened additional clinics at Campbell House, Berrywood Hospital and St Mary’s Hospital.
Highlights of our year included our fitness testing and annual health check promotions resulting in an increase of staff
participation. High demand for fitness classes at Highfield, Northampton and boot camp at Sudborough House, St Mary’s
Hospital meant more classes were introduced. Other initiatives included the following:

Health and safety
The health and safety
of our staff is of utmost
importance, and we invest
in continuous improvement
and compliance with
current legislative
requirements. Our Health
and Safety Committee
meets quarterly to review
issues, plans, policies and
risk registers. As a member
of the British Safety
Council, we are registered
to deliver the Level 1
Certificate in Health and
Safety at Work.

Psychological
wellbeing service
Also in October, the occupational health and
wellbeing department was pleased to offer a
successful new service, including wellbeing
and Cognitive Behavioural Therapy (CBT),
provided by Changing Minds’ Wellbeing Team,
to complement our current established
counselling service.

Dry January
Led by the Chairman and Chief Executive,
staff were invited to join them for an
alcohol-free January in aid of charity.

Stop smoking challenge
Thanks to the launch of our Stoptober
Campaign, in partnership with
the Stop Smoking Service, many
staff made use of the free nicotine
replacement therapy available and
stopped smoking.

Accreditation
Evidence of the occupational health
department’s standards and quality
were submitted to the Royal College
of Physicians, resulting in successful
renewal of the Safe Effective Quality
Occupational Health Service
(SEQOHS) accreditation.

Equality and diversity
Belonging to a culturally rich and diverse local community, we are proud of our culture of active inclusion, promoting equality,
valuing diversity and protecting human rights. We strive for a culture of inclusivity that encourages, supports and maximises
the potential of all our employees, ensuring that each and every member of staff is trained, committed and able to deliver the
highest standard of care.
At the centre of this is our Equality and Diversity Council. By
implementing the NHS equality delivery system, we deliver to
all legislative and employment requirements. We are committed
to maintaining and regularly reviewing our equality and diversity
policies, and have recently achieved accreditation for Positive
About Disabled People employment. During the year, we
developed a new equality and inclusion policy and updated our
HR managing equality and inclusion policy.

We have complied with the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED Compliance Report: Equality Information Report
2012/13) and improved on the quality and analysis of the
equality data we publish. We have made significant progress in
achieving the supplementary Equality Objectives Action Plan.
Moving forward we will be developing an equality and inclusion
strategy 2014 - 2016, which we will build around the data from
our Equality Information Report 2013/14.

Our four objectives are:
1 Improving data collection systems and analysis
2 Developing equality and inclusion leadership at all levels
3 Enhancing engagement and involvement
4 Tackling equality and inclusion issues for our workforce

During the year, we led a partnership conference entitled
Fair Society, Healthy Lives in Northamptonshire, attended by
over 100 delegates and including renowned speakers Jessica
Allen, the National Marmot Review Team and Dr Akeem Ali,
Director of Public Health, Northamptonshire County Council.
The conference focused on creating a dialogue for how local
organisations can tackle local health inequalities.
Our established ethos of professional partnerships will
continue to develop as we recognise the importance of
involving service users, carers, staff, community and voluntary
groups and local partners.

The equality and inclusion assurance board ensures our work
is embedded in all services and initiatives and is supported
by four staff networks that ensure regular reporting and
consultation of the workforce related to equality take place.
These are:
• Black and Minority Ethnic Staff Development Network
• Disability Staff Network
• Equality and Inclusion Champions Network
• Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender Allies Network
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A case study

extra mile’ – she did without expecting recognition or praise.
Her compassion shone, and her devotion to patient care went
far beyond any job description. She deserves recognition and
Nominated by a patient on her ward, Kettering Healthcare
Assistant Paula Lawrence has been shortlisted for a prestigious praise from the highest level for her outstanding unselfish
national award. Paula has worked for the Trust for 19 years, and work.”
Yvonne Pywell, patient
is known for her calm, caring and compassionate demeanour.
Her nomination came from patient Yvonne Pywell, who
“We are delighted that Paula’s hard work and dedication have
described Paula as “someone to talk to… who always made
seen her shortlisted for a national award. This nomination is
that extra effort.”
particularly important because it is in the Patient’s Choice
category. This means that Paula’s extraordinary commitment
Paula’s very capable and understanding approach were some
of the reasons Yvonne nominated her for the Patient’s Choice was recognised by a patient who has witnessed first-hand what
healthcare professionals do on a daily basis, in going the extra
in Nursing Standard Awards 2014. From everyone at the
mile to improve the patient’s and their families’ experience.
Kingfisher Ward in Welland Centre, St Mary’s Hospital, and
the Trust, we wish to congratulate Paula and thank her for her We wish Paula well in the competition and congratulate her on
being shortlisted for this prestigious award, which is
passionate care and commitment to patients like Yvonne.
well deserved.”
“All her actions – the cups of tea, the daily chats, the care, the
compassion, the understanding without judging, the ‘going the Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of Nursing and Quality
Proud of Paula
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Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits
are set out in notes to the accounts. Details of senior employees’
remuneration can be found in the Remuneration Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1

PEOPLE

SECTION ONE: PEOPLE
Our patients, service users and carers
Our ability to effectively progress, improve and manage change depends on listening carefully to the needs of our patients,
service users and carers. We introduced our first service user involvement conference in 2012, and a new role as lead for service
users and carers. Both initiatives will continue as part of our patient experience programme.
By hearing, and learning from, patient stories and surveys across all of our inpatient, palliative care and respite services, we gain a
more in-depth understanding of what we need to deliver to the community we care for. By working closely with patients, service
users and carers, we learn and make improvements for their benefit, demonstrating through our actions that people come first.
We also actively encourage our patients, service users and carers to get involved by helping us recruit staff, review the quality
of service, become involved in research projects and to share their stories. In early 2014, we reviewed our approach to patient
experience and concluded we need to involve more people at each level, improve friends, family and patient experience
feedback from our surveys and our measurable data.
We now gather feedback in a variety of ways, through our Friends and Family Test, experience surveys, patient stories, comment
cards, verbal comments and letters of appreciation, complaints, websites and social media. Managers, staff, service users and
carer groups use this feedback to find ways of improving the patient experience.

HIGHLIGHTS
• Extension of the Friends and Family Test that was initially
implemented in district nursing and intermediate care
services by including the question, “how likely are you to
recommend the service if your friend or family needs similar
care or treatment?” in all services going forward
• Continued use of computer-based feedback in our inpatient,
respite and palliative care services
• Extension of bi-annual experience surveys to all community
services
• Strengthening of the involvement of service users and carers
in the selection of staff
• Membership of the Triangle of Care, a national scheme to
improve the involvement of carers of people with acute
mental ill health
• A patient story is now shared at the start of each Trust Board
meeting
• Publication of a revised patient, service user and carer
involvement strategy and policy which emphasises learning
from people who use our services
Although the results vary widely from service to service, the
following areas broadly require our attention throughout
inpatient services:
• Involvement in decisions about care, treatment and support
• Involvement of carers
• Understanding next steps in care
• Medical staff explaining results in a way that is understood
Our staff are always keen to make changes as a result of
feedback. Some examples include the introduction of a
services leaflet for children’s physiotherapy to make it easier
to understand and a new ward system introduced for inpatient
mental health as a result of concerns fed back.
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Our patient experience network has now been in place for two
years and involves members, patients, service users and carers
who contribute with patient information and feedback on
services. Our patient experience group has determined that
our systems for learning from complaints and incidents are
robust. They have also endorsed our intention to more closely
involve service users and carers in our corporate committees.
For more information on service users and carer
involvement please contact our Service User and Carer
Involvement Lead,
Hugh Jones on 01536 480 332
or email hugh.jones@nhft.nhs.uk

Our partners
Working collaboratively and closely with community health
and wellbeing organisations allows us to offer more services, as
well as the chance to keep in touch with our environment and
local people. Our partnerships come in many different forms,
from local care providers, ambulance and wellbeing services,
to specialist care providers.
We have continued partnerships with care providers such as
our family nurse programme, which involves nurses paying
regular home visits to young parents. We have introduced new
partnerships, for example our collaboration with substance
misuse clinical provider Phoenix Futures for the provision of an
integrated clinical and psychosocial substance misuse service
at Her Majesty’s Prison, Onley. With partners like Phoenix
Futures, our focus is on being a leading care integrator in the
county, with an extended portfolio of fully integrated services.

A case study
Partnering to help the frail and elderly
People are living longer and with more long-term conditions and illnesses than ever before. At the same time NHS and
social care resources are becoming more limited.
Frail and elderly people have complex health and social care needs, with around 53% of people in the county aged 75
and over having a limiting long-term illness. Looking after people in hospital is not always appropriate and can be very
expensive.
Evidence shows that many long-term conditions can be safely and effectively managed in the person’s own home.
One of our recently launched projects is the frail and elderly Crisis Hub, a joint initiative between the Trust and
Olympus Care Services, launched in November 2013 and based at Highfield Clinical Care Centre in Northampton.
The Crisis Hub works closely with the Brampton Ward and HC Pretty Ward at Northampton General Hospital NHS
Trust and Kettering General Hospital NHS Foundation Trust respectively. The Crisis Hub is open from 7am to 11pm,
365 days a year.
Dr Bharath Lakkappa, the Trust’s Specialty Lead for Rehabilitation and Consultant Geriatrician said, “The population
of Northants, in common with the rest of the UK, is ageing and this is having an impact on health and social care
services. In forming the Crisis Hub we are bringing health and social care closer together to help elderly people maintain
independence, stay healthy, and to provide crisis intervention where necessary. Where possible, the aim is to keep
patients out of hospital and receiving care in a community setting.
“A number of professionals can refer into the service, from GPs to district nurses, ambulance staff and social care
workers. The service is going well so far and although it is very early days, we regularly have over 400 patients on our
caseload at any one time.
“Patients are tracked in hospital and when they are ready to come out we put the support in place to enable them to
come home, and we also work to keep people in their own home and prevent them going into hospital in the first place.
We also look at things like medication.
“Working closely with the hospitals in Kettering and Northampton, we can monitor patients very closely and ensure they
get the support they need.”
In March 2014 Professor David Oliver, a Visiting Fellow at the King’s Fund (a national health think tank) and Consultant
Geriatrician, recently visited the Trust, Olympus’s Crisis Hub and members of the frail and elderly programme board.
Professor Oliver said, “At the moment, nationally, a lot of older people get poorly coordinated care and are bounced
around the health and social care system.

“Care needs to be focused around the needs of the patient. The
Northamptonshire Crisis Hub, as a single point of access with one
team coordinating the care of the elderly, is a very good step in the
right direction – ultimately you want health and social care working
together as one team.”
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Our MEMBERS
As the involvement of our community, staff, service users
and carers is vital to our organisation’s delivery of health and
social care, we ensure their interests are well represented by
our members and our Council of Governors. The majority
of governors are elected by our members. We also appoint
governors from organisations with whom we have strong links,
for example Northamptonshire County Council.
Our members include

6,900

2,200

1,700

Over 6,900 public members

Nearly 2,200 service users
and carer members

Around 1,700 staff members

Who can be a member?
Anyone who lives in Northamptonshire, is employed by our
Trust, or has been a patient, service user or carer of a service
user within the last 10 years, can become a member.
The minimum age for membership is 12 years.
Who can be a governor?
Any member of our Trust can be elected by other members
as a governor. Elected governors belong to one of three
constituencies: public, service users or carers, and staff.
Appointed governors are chosen by the organisation the seat
represents.
We engage with our members, the Council of Governors and
the public on strategic elements (such as the annual plan) and
operational issues, for example local services redesign. Input
and views are welcomed in a number of ways, including public
access to Board of Directors’ meetings, the annual members’
meeting and the annual public meeting. Our annual public
and members’ meeting was held 20 September 2013.
A register of governors’ interests is available from the
Foundation Trust Office and is updated annually.
Members are invited to the annual public meeting for a
further opportunity to share their views with the Board of
Directors.
Events are also held throughout the year to inform members
about our services and to further ensure ample opportunity for
their views to be heard.
How we engage our members
• Our commitment to regular communications with members
begins with a welcome letter and information for new
members. It continues with a regular bulletin and report from
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the Chairman, as well as governor and organisational updates,
and a membership survey
• Our ongoing communication with members includes an offer
of support from the Trust’s office team who can be
contacted by phone, freepost and email
• Our website hosts a dedicated area for members to find
information and updates
• We provide promotional materials to encourage the
recruitment of members by our staff, service users and carers
in their localities. For example, the patient contact
centre sends membership application forms along with
appointment letters and we recently invited staff to attend a
corporate induction promoting the benefits of membership.
• We held member events to share and discuss the annual
plan and the future of healthcare services both within our
Trust and the wider NHS, as well as service-specific events.
Recent scheduled events have included topics such as our
wellbeing strategy, chaplaincy and ex-military and veterans’
mental health.
• Our members are invited to participate in regular events
such as the Service Users Conference. We also encourage
participation in events co-hosted with other local healthcare
providers, such as our joint initiative with East Midlands
Ambulance Service where free courses for members
including Life-Saving Skills, Heart Start and Healthy Heart
were well received.
Our membership strategy
Our current strategy builds on work previously undertaken
to recruit and develop an engaged and representative
membership. The Council of Governors approved the strategy
in March 2013. The strategy recognises the importance of
focusing on the engagement of members, along with the need
to continue to grow base numbers.
In early 2014, we commenced further reviews and
enhancements to our approach. Our aim is to make
membership engagement an integral part of how we build an
even better understanding of our service users, carers, staff
and communities. With close to 11,000 members, their input
directly contributes to the development of our organisation.
Our ultimate aim is to increase members’ sense of ownership
of the Trust.
Our ongoing recruitment programme for members has been
in place from 2007. In accordance with the Health and
Social Care Act 2012 section 153 (2) (2), which requires
membership to be representative of the people we serve, we
increased investment and focus on our public and patient
constituencies.
In June 2013, again to ensure our membership is a true
representation of the population we serve, we commissioned
information from membership engagement services. Analysis
indicated there were no significant outliers in terms of the
representative nature of our membership base. However, there
were areas with potential for improvement. In February 2014,
the Campaign Company was selected to recruit members
of key socioeconomic groups to ensure these areas were
addressed.

What are our membership targets?
To achieve a balance between increasing our membership numbers and the investment in meaningful involvement of existing
members, our targets are carefully reviewed prior to being agreed. The Council of Governors Membership and Governance
Sub-group oversees our recruitment activities and recommends annual membership targets to the Council of Governors for
endorsement.
Our Trust has successfully achieved our overall membership target for the year, with approximately 1,000 new members.
The Council of Governors has agreed a 2.5% growth target in 2014/15 for all constituencies that demonstrate growth and a
representative membership. These targets are reflected in our membership report, contained within the annual plan, which is
endorsed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors also receives regular reports on the Council of Governors’ meetings,
which reference membership strategy developments and progress with regard to delivery of targets.
YEAR END

March 2011

March 2012

March 2013

March 2014

Public

5642

6272

6733

6945

Patient and carer

1779

2023

2093

2198

Staff

1440

1370

1693

1769

MEMBER TOTAL

8861

9665

10519

10912

If you would like to know more
about becoming a member of
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust or would like to
contact your governor or directors,
please contact the Foundation
Trust Office at:

Foundation Trust Office
Sudborough House
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road
Kettering
Northamptonshire, NN15 7PW

Tel: 01536 452059
Email: foundationtrust@nhft.nhs.uk
Web: www.nhft.nhs.uk
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Our Council of Governors
Offering views on current issues, forward plans and discharging
specific statutory responsibilities, the Council of Governors is
an important body made up of elected or appointed governors
of our Trust. As members of our organisation, governors always
operate in accordance with our constitution.
Elected governors are appointed for a period of three years,
and fall into three main constituencies: public, service users
or carers, and staff. During the year, elections were held for
new governors. New and existing governors remain in post
until there is a change in the constitution or a change in the
individual’s circumstances that means they are no longer able
to represent the organisation as a governor, or their threeyear tenure expires – whichever occurs soonest. Appointed
governors are chosen by the organisation the seat represents.
The Council of Governors appoints a Lead Governor
from its membership. Our Lead Governor in 2013/14 was
Michael Darling, Public Governor, Daventry and South
Northamptonshire.
Holding responsibility for the appointment or removal of the
Chairman and non-executive directors, their remuneration,
and the appointment or removal of our external auditor,
governors also contribute to a number of roles through
committees and sub-groups.
Committees and sub-groups
• Nominations Committee appoints and re-appoints the
Chairman and non-executive directors
• Remunerations Committee* determines the terms and
conditions of the Chairman and non-executive directors
• Membership and Governance Sub-group drives the
membership strategy and considers items related to the
governance of the council and our organisation in general
• Finance, Planning and Performance Sub-group provides
views on forward plans and examines financial and non
financial performance in specific areas, according to a
defined work plan
• Patient Safety and Experience Sub-group examines issues
relating to patient safety and experience
• Staff and Resources Sub-group examines staff and
resource-related issues
• Corporate Assessment Sub-group reviews papers from
the Board of Directors’ meetings
• Chair’s Sub-Group, comprising the Chairman of the
Council of Governors and the chairs of each committee,
sub-group and any current task and finish groups, plans and
discusses the agendas for the main content of meetings
*Nominations and Remuneration Committees
In September 2013, the Council of Governors agreed the
merger of its Nominations and Remunerations Committees,
resulting in the following principal areas of work for the merged
committee:
• The appraisal and objectives setting processes for the
Chairman and non-executive directors
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• Succession planning for non-executive directors, including
consideration and recommendation of the reappointment
extension of tenure of two non-executive directors
• Commencement of the process, including the selection of
an executive search company, to recruit two non-executive
directors to replace those whose terms of office are
scheduled to expire during 2014/15
• A review of non-executive director remuneration levels
including the use of benchmarking information
Governor training and development
Under the leadership of the Council of Governors’ Training
and Development Task and Finish Group, significant progress
has been made during the past year in identifying and
meeting the training and development needs of governors. A
range of training and development opportunities have been
accessed by governors, including external courses provided
by The Foundation Trust Network, as well as briefing sessions
developed and delivered internally. Courses covered have
included measuring and assuring quality, NHS finance and
business skills, as well as core skills for governors.
How we involve our governors
In order to listen and respond to the views of and questions
from our governors, directors attend the Council of Governors’
main and sub-group meetings. Directors also attend member
events and routinely receive a written report from the
Chairman outlining key issues discussed at each council
meeting. Our constitution contains a provision that describes
the process for resolving any formal disagreements between
the Council of Governors and the Board of Directors.
The Council of Governors also features partner organisations,
which sometimes exercise their own engagement activities
within the local community. Governors will announce any
conflicts of interest, or make declarations of interest as
appropriate. In a regular report to the council, the Chief
Executive will routinely highlight meetings with key partners in
the local health and social care economy, providing another
opportunity for governors to raise any issues in which they, and
their members, may have shared interest.
Governors contribute to the development of our annual plan
Member events, attended by governors, were held in February
2014 where governors were invited to comment on our future
plans. Our annual plan also featured on the agenda of Council
of Governors’ meetings. The meetings are attended by our
executive and non-executive directors of the Board and are
open to all members and the general public.
Governors have a specific duty to membership engagement
and are expected to communicate directly with the members
in their constituency, to seek their views and provide
information about the performance and progress of our
organisation. Along with governor surgeries, some elected
governors write to members in their constituency inviting them
to express views, and highlight issues or concerns.

We held six meetings of the Council of Governors during 2013/14. Governor attendance at meetings and expenses paid during
the year are as follows:

Constituency

Class

Kettering and Corby

Public

Partners

Expenses
2013/14

Michael Benford

0 (of 1)

£0.00

Maureen Shram

4 (of 4)

£122.65

Brenda McCraith

5

£389.35

Kettering and Corby

Ian Watts

4

£0.00

Daventry and South Northamptonshire

Anthony Bagot-Webb

4

£1139.5

Daventry and South Northamptonshire

Carole Child

2

£107.40

Daventry and South Northamptonshire

Michael Darling

6

£2157.95

Northampton

Gail Sutherland

6

£462.60

David McKintosh

1 (of 3)

£0.00

Mark Wall

0 (of 1)

£0.00

Northampton

Des Savage

2

£461.70

Wellingborough and East Northamptonshire

Carol Ash

6

£793.45

Nicola Bullock

0 (of 1)

£0.00

Janet Hathaway

3 (of 3)

£0.00

Wellingborough and East Northamptonshire

Hector Graham

6

£617.06

Younger service user

Hummad Anwar

2

£0.00

Adult service user

Jeff Betts

4

£320.70

Adult service user

Wendy Steele

6

£436.00

Adult service user

Dennis Holland

4

£239.40

Adult service user

Beverley Sturdgess

1

£0.00

Adult service user

Liz Johnstone

6

£239.67

Adult service user

Kevin Boyce

5

£0.00

Older service user

Brian Lawrence

5

£383.55

Carer

Andrew Bailey

5

£1004.00

Carer

Sandra Bemrose

1

£21.60

Carer

Priscilla Brown

4

£0.00

Carer

Rita Hinde

6

£706.90

Wellingborough and East Northamptonshire

Staff

Number
meetings
attended

Kettering and Corby

Northampton

Service users
and carers

Name

Doctors

Dr Tonye Sikabofori

2 (of 3)

£0.00

Registered nurses

Chris Stirmey

3

£0.00

Unregistered nurses

Eileen Hales

5

£0.00

Other clinical

Jacquie Gowans

6

£0.00

Non clincial

Suzanne Johnson

5

£0.00

Northamptonshire County Council

Judy Shephard

0

£0.00

Borough and District Councils

Rosemary Herring

5

£252.45

The University of Northampton

Mike Twigger

3

£117.75

The University of Leicester

Vacant

-

£0.00

Northamptonshire Rights and Equality
Council

Laney Holland

2 (of 5)

£42.84

Criminal justice services

ACC Paul Phillips

1

£0.00

Voluntary – mental health

Carol Thorne-Smith

0 (of 2)

£158.40

Brendan Macken

3 (of 3)

£90.70

5

£0.00

Voluntary – older people

Liam Condron
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Members of the Board of Directors are invited to attend the meetings of the Council of Governors. Directors are routinely
invited to contribute to Council of Governors’ discussions and to present information on key issues. Director attendance at
meetings was as follows:
No. meetings attended
(6 meetings)

Name of director

Title

Paul Bertin

Chairman

John Archard-Jones

Non-Executive Director

5

Sushel Ohri

Non-Executive Director

2

Michelle Grimwood

Non-Executive Director

2

Robert Peto

Non-Executive Director

1

Bev Messinger

Non-Executive Director

1

Angela Hillery

Chief Executive

5

Dr Alex O’Neill Kerr

Medical Director

1

Bill McFarland

Finance Director

1

Hilda Hayo

Interim Director of Nursing, Quality
and Professional Development

0

Sharon Dennis

Interim Director of Nursing

1 (of 1)

Julie Shepherd

Interim Director of Nursing and
Quality

0 (of 2)

Alfred Hanson

Director of Operations

3

Richard McKendrick

Chief Operating Officer

2

Bronwen Curtis

Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development

0

Louise Payne

Director of Corporate Support

6

5 (of 6)

In July, our Council of Governors and Board of Directors held a joint event entitled ‘Translating the strategic plan into reality –
the key issues’. Designed to focus on how governors could support the Board to deliver top priorities, the session also reviewed
how to gain assurance on the strategic plan’s progress.
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Our DIRECTORS
Providing quality care, meeting our organisational goals
and engaging our staff requires the unwavering focus of our
experienced directors. With their specialist knowledge, skills
and professional leadership, our directors play a critical role
in our organisation. Accountable for the development and
implementation of our strategy, as well as the monitoring of
our progress, directors lead strategic projects by employing
appropriate governance and carefully considering quality
and cost. Looking forward, our directors will lead and be
accountable for pathways of care.
Directors are also accountable for developing the capacity
and capability of managers in their respective areas and they
utilise their professional skills and training to do so. The Board
of Directors is satisfied that all directors are appropriately
qualified to discharge their functions effectively, including
setting strategy, monitoring and managing performance,
and ensuring management capacity and capability. The
Finance Director, Medical Director and Executive Nurse
are all qualified in their professions and have appropriate
experience. All other members of the Board of Directors have
appropriate qualifications, skills or experience, as outlined in
their biographies, that support the business of the Trust as a
provider of integrated healthcare services in localities.
Because leaders set the tone and behaviour of an
organisation’s culture, our executive directors each take a
lead on one of The Six Cs, (care, compassion, competence,
communication, commitment and courage). These are the
values embedded in the national strategy; Compassion
in Practice. Our directors are also committed to ensuring
the Board operates effectively as a team. Following its
effectiveness review, conducted in 2013/14, the Board has
focused on the following:

A culture of openness and transparency
By exploring new ways to gain and build public
confidence, to openly communicate information
and engage our people.

An environment that fosters
constructive debate
By actively encouraging and welcoming
challenge, debate and critique, to share views,
duties and analysis to progress the organisation.

A ‘make it happen’ approach
By continuing to build, improve and act within
agreed timescales, where decisions are clear, and
to follow up with reviews and appraisals.

A dynamic, flexible ability to respond
By responding quickly and ably to a rapidly
changing external environment, to seize
opportunities and ensure adequate resources
are allocated.

A forward-thinking planning style
By focusing on the ‘big issues’ in a timely and
structured fashion, always with our future in mind,
to ensure accountability and to address issues.
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Directors with voting rights
Paul Bertin, Chairman

A graduate of the Institute of Purchasing
and Supply, Paul holds a Masters of Business
Administration (MBA) and has held leadership
roles in both the public and private sectors.
He has held managing director and corporate
executive director roles in sales, strategic
development, mergers and acquisitions, as
well as non-executive director roles. Paul has
extensive experience in management and
mentoring, with 15 years as a business mentor
and volunteer with The Prince’s Trust.

Angela Hillery, Chief Executive
(Interim from 1 May 2013,
substantive from 16 September
2013)

With over 25 years of NHS leadership
experience within community services and
a Masters Degree in development disorders,
Angela is also a qualified speech and language
therapist. Previously a Director of Operations
for the Trust, responsible for all operational
services in the north of the county, Angela has
served on the National Management Board
of the Royal College of Speech Language
Therapy and held a partner role with the
Health Professional Council.

Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr, Medical
Director

Alex has over 20 years of experience as a
consultant psychiatrist and continues to
maintain a clinical caseload of complex bipolar
patients in the Daventry Community Mental
Health Team as well as providing clinical
leadership to the Trust electroconvulsive
therapy service. Alex is a course organiser for
the Deanery Virtual Learning Environment,
providing online training for trainee doctors. He
is a Fellow of the Royal College of Psychiatrists
and of the College of Psychiatry of South
Africa, and a certified clinical assessor with
the national clinical assessment service. He is
a former college tutor with the Royal College
of Psychiatrists and a previous member of
the Board of Examiners and Senior Course
Organisers for the MRCPsych Examination.
Alex previously held posts as Clinical Director
(Community and Liaison Psychiatry) at
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Trust
and as a lecturer and member of the Board
of the Faculty of Medicine, University of the
Witwatersrand, South Africa.

Julie Shepherd, Interim
Director of Nursing and
Quality (from 14 November
2013)

Julie has extensive specialist nursing
and leadership experience with a
32-year career in the NHS. As a
registered general nurse, specialising in
orthopaedics and in care of the elderly
and intermediate care, Julie has firsthand knowledge of nursing care and
holds a Masters Degree in Managing
Partnerships in Health and Social
Care.

Bill McFarland, Finance
Director

Bill is a qualified accountant with 36
years of experience working for the
NHS, 20 of which were at finance
director level. He earned his MBA from
Cranfield University in 1997 and has
held senior finance roles at Charing
Cross, St Thomas’, and Chelsea
and Westminster, totalling 14 years
of experience in London teaching
hospitals.

Paul Bertin

Angela Hillery

Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr

John Archard-Jones, NonExecutive Director

John has 30 years of commercial
experience at senior levels in
manufacturing, sales management,
project management and major bids.
He is a former managing director of
Africa Region with ICL, a leading
technology company. John now works
in business consultancy and is an
experienced non-executive director
with private and listed companies in
the UK and overseas. He is a former
councillor with the London Borough of
Barnet and is the founder and former
member of a London-based charity for
people with learning disabilities. The
Senior Independent Director is available
to members and/or governors if they
have concerns that contact through
normal channels has failed to resolve or
where such contact is inappropriate.

Julie Shepherd

Bill McFarland

John Archard-Jones
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Directors with voting rights
Michelle Grimwood, Non-Executive
Director

Michelle Grimwood

Bev Messinger

Sushel Ohri

Michelle has experience in strategic,
performance management and policy
development roles in local criminal justice
agencies, authorities, community safety
partnerships and voluntary agencies. Michelle
also holds a postgraduate qualification in
leadership and management, and a Masters
Degree in Community Cohesion Management.
Michelle became a member of the
Department of Health’s Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual
and Transgender Advisory Group in 2008
and, in 2009, was appointed Ambassador
for Diversity in Public Appointments for the
government’s Equalities Office.

Bev Messinger, Non-Executive
Director

Currently Senior Director of Operations at
Ofwat (the water services regulation authority),
Bev has over 30 years of public service
experience in local government, across seven
local authorities, including Northamptonshire
County Council. Her diverse roles in the
voluntary sector include Director at a charity
for the long-term unemployed, Chair of the
Coventry Citizens Advice Bureau and trustee
of a national charity for people with learning
difficulties and disabilities. Bev is a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development.

Sushel Ohri, Non-Executive
Director

In addition to having experience
as a qualified social worker, Sushel
holds both a Masters Degree in
Ethnic Relations and a Diploma in
Management Studies. Currently the
director of a consultancy specialising
in inclusion, cohesion, and equality
and diversity, and a former Group
Director for equality and inclusion with
Transport London, Sushel has 30 years
of experience, with 14 at chief officer
level.

Robert Peto, Non-Executive
Director

A qualified accountant, with a Masters
Degree in Financial Management,
Robert is currently Finance Director
of City Link UK, and was previously
Finance Director of Parcelforce
Worldwide. His skilled background in
senior finance roles includes those held
at Geopost UK and Ireland, and Grand
Metropolitan PLC.

Robert Peto

Directors with voting rights for part of the year
Ron Shields, Chief Executive (until 30 April 2013)
Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing, Quality and Professional Development (until 20 September 2013)
Sharon Dennis , Interim Director of Nursing (from 19 August 2013 to 20 September 2013)*

*Following Hilda Hayo’s resignation, Sharon Dennis was appointed as Interim Director of Nursing and worked in role to enable a handover period. We respectfully acknowledge Sharon’s contributions during her short
time with us prior to her unexpected and untimely death.
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Directors in attendance without voting rights
Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development

As a former UK Board member of a global
corporation, Bronwen was responsible for
operations, strategy development, and human
resources. With 13 years of experience as
Chair of NHS Trusts, Bronwen was also
Chair of the Appointments Committee
of the General Dental Council. She has
been a member of the prison service pay
review body, Non-Executive Director of The
National Archives and Service Personnel and
Veterans Agency, a civil service Commissioner
and advisor to the Judicial Appointments
Commission. Previously awarded Midlands
Businesswoman of the Year, Bronwen was
honoured with a Commander of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire (CBE) in
2007.

Alfred Hanson, Director of
Operations (South) until 30 April
2013, currently
Director of Operations

Alfred joined the Trust in 2008 as Head of
Service for Child and Adolescent Mental
Health from Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire
Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust. With
experience as Project Manager for National
Children’s Home (previously Action for
Children), Commercial Sales Manager for
Mobil Oil, Deputy Manager of the St John’s
secure unit in Tiffield and Consultant for
Northamptonshire County Council, Alfred
holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree
in Engineering, Master of Arts in Social Work
and a MBA.

Richard McKendrick, Director
of Specialty Services (until
1 November 2013), currently
Chief Operating Officer

Richard joined in June 2011, from
Central and North West London NHS
Foundation Trust, where he was Service
Director of addictions and offender
health. Holding degrees in law and
philosophy, Richard has 20 years of
experience in the voluntary sector,
during which time he held positions
including Chief Executive of the
Albert Kennedy Trust and Director of
Operations with the national substance
misuse charity, Addaction.

Louise Payne, Director of
Corporate Support

Louise has held a number of senior
NHS management roles across
the country during her 32 years of
experience, including clinical service
management, management of service
change, clinical improvement, and
strategy development. She returned
to the Trust in 2006, after four years
as Head of Performance and lead for
learning disabilities and standards
for better health at Leicestershire,
Northamptonshire, and Rutland
Strategic Health Authority. Louise
holds a Diploma in Management
Studies and is a member of the Institute
of Healthcare Management.

Samantha Milbank, Director
of Service Development (until
12 July 2013)

Bronwen Curtis

Alfred Hanson

Richard McKendrick

Louise Payne

also served as a Director without voting
rights for part of the year.
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What our directors deliver
The purpose of our Board of Directors is to govern our
organisation effectively and, in doing so, ensure our public and
stakeholders are assured of quality healthcare.
Specific terms of reference for the Board of Directors:

1

To formulate strategy for
the organisation

2

To ensure accountability by holding
the organisation to account for
the delivery of the strategy and by
seeking assurance that systems of
control are robust and reliable

3

To shape a positive culture for the
Board and the organisation

4

To hold regular meetings in public
as part of its commitment to be
accountable to the public and its
other stakeholders

The Board operates in accordance with the Trust’s
constitution and scheme of delegation. The constitution
sets out the duties of the Board of Directors and Council of
Governors.

At every meeting, our Board of Directors and committees
routinely review their performance against specific criteria.
Individual Board committees have either reviewed their
performance against their terms of reference or have plans to
review this in the near future.
Board meetings are chaired by Paul Bertin, whom we
welcomed as Chairman on 1 December 2012, following
his previous role as Non-Executive Director. In addition to
chairing our Board meetings, Paul also chairs meetings of the
Council of Governors. He has no significant commitments
to declare and his current term of office is due to end 30
November 2015.
In the event members and governors of our organisation
wish to express concerns, and when other contact channels
are inappropriate or have been ineffective, the Senior
Independent Director is available for consultation. John
Archard-Jones has been both the Senior Independent
Director and Deputy Chair of the Trust since inception on 1
May 2009. The Council of Governors extended John’s NonExecutive Director appointment and his current term of office
is due to end 31 March 2015.
Chair

Paul Bertin

Deputy Chair

John Archard-Jones

Senior Independent Director

John Archard-Jones

Individual directors’ performance is evaluated through an
annual appraisal process undertaken by the Chief Executive
whose performance, in turn, is managed by the Chairman.
The Chairman also contributes to the Executive Director
appraisal process. Non-executive directors have an annual
appraisal conducted by the Chairman, using documentation
developed and agreed by the Council of Governors.

Our non-executive directors

The Chairman is appraised using specific, measurable and
clearly defined objectives, following an agreed process with
the Council of Governors. An appraisal panel, comprising
the Senior Independent Director and members of the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, leads this
process. The Council of Governors then approves the
outcomes of the appraisal of the Chairman and non-executive
directors.

Our non-executive directors bring independent judgement,
experience and expertise from outside the Trust and apply
this for the benefit of our organisation, its stakeholders
and the wider community. There are no relationships or
circumstances that are likely to affect, or appear to affect,
any director’s independent judgement. For these reasons, the
Board of Directors considers all non-executive directors to be
independent.

In keeping with our commitment to ongoing improvement,
a number of Board development days and activities were
held during the year. Development actions were designed for
the benefit of the Board as a group, as well as for individual
members, and included briefing sessions on relevant topics,
strategy sessions and joint activities with the Council of
Governors.

Our Council of Governors is responsible for non-executive
director appointment and termination, with the normal
appointment term being three years. Non-executive directors
are eligible for reappointment.

Our Board meetings
Directors meet regularly, in public and private session, with
additional meetings convened in the instance of urgent items
requiring immediate decision-making.
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Chief Executive

Ron Shields
(until 30 April 2013)
Angela Hillery
(from 1 May 2013)

Attendance at Board of Directors’ meetings 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
1 May
2013

23 May
2013*

5 June
2013

31 July
2013

25 Sept
2013

30 Oct
2013

27 Nov
2013

29 Jan
2014

26 Mar
2014

Paul Bertin

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

John
Archard-Jones

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Michelle
Grimwood

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Hilda Hayo

•

•

•

•

Angela Hillery

•

•

•

••

•

••

•

•

•

Bill McFarland

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Bev Messinger

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Dr Alex
O’Neill-Kerr

••

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Sushel Ohri

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Robert Peto

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Julie Shepherd

• While the Chief Executive was absent
from the Board of Directors’ meeting,
the Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development was present
as Acting Chief Executive

• While the Medical Director was

absent from this Board of Directors’
meeting, the Associate Medical Director
represented him

* Denotes meeting of the Board of
Directors in private session

• Denotes apologies for absence

Our Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Nominations functions

Consisting of all non-executive directors, our Nominations
and Remuneration Committee meets quarterly and is led by
our Chairman. As a matter of course, the Chief Executive is
automatically co-opted as a voting member for all nominations
functions, except the identification and nomination of the Chief
Executive. The Chief Executive, Director of Human Resources
and Organisational Development, other directors and external
advisors are invited to attend the committee where appropriate.

• Ensure there is a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for
the appointment of executive directors
• Agree and lead the process for the identification and nomination
of the Chief Executive for approval by the Board of Governors
• Agree and lead the process for the identification and
appointment of executive directors
• Regularly review, in conjunction with the Board of Governors’
Nominations Committee, the structure, size and composition of
the Board of Directors
• Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, and experience of
the Board of Directors and, in the light of this evaluation, prepare
a description of the role and capabilities required for executive
director appointments
• Give full consideration to succession planning, taking into
account the future challenges, risks and opportunities facing the
Trust and the skills and expertise required within the Board to
meet them
• Appoint executive search consultants regarding executive
director recruitment as required

The committee carefully considers the balance and
appropriateness of membership of the Board of Directors by
reviewing each executive director appointment process and
discussing succession planning as appropriate. During this past
year, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee appointed
both interim and substantive members of the Board of Directors
using a combination of methods including executive search,
advertising and internal recruitment.
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Remuneration functions
• Ensure there is a formal and transparent policy on executive
director remuneration

• Ensure there is a formal and transparent procedure for the
appraisal of executive director performance

• Determine and review the contractual arrangements of
executive directors including, where appropriate, severance
packages

• Monitor the performance of executive directors
• Appoint, if deemed appropriate, independent consultants to
advise on executive director remuneration

• Set the structure and levels of remuneration packages of all
executive directors
Attendance at Nominations and Remuneration Committee 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

17 April 2013

17 July 2013

16 October 2013

29 January 2014

Paul Bertin
(Chair of the Committee)

•

•

•

•

John Archard-Jones

•

•

•

•

Michelle Grimwood

•

•

•

•

Bev Messinger

•

•

•

•

Sushel Ohri

•

•

•

•

Robert Peto

•

•

•

•

• Denotes apologies for absence

Our Audit Committee
With a benchmark of five meetings a year, our Audit
Committee consists of the non-executive director members.
The committee also welcomes representatives of our internal
and external audit services, with the Finance Director and the
Company Secretary in attendance. The local counter-fraud
specialist attends on a regular basis, with our managers also
attending by invitation.
Specific terms of reference
• Governance, risk management and internal control
• Internal audit
• External audit
• Relationship with the Council of Governors
• Assurance functions
• Counter fraud
• Financial reporting
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Our auditors
The Central England Audit Consortium (CEAC) provided
our internal audit function for the period 1 April to 30
September 2013. Thereafter, from 1 October 2013, following
a tender evaluation process, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC)
were appointed to provide our full internal audit service,
including appropriate local counter-fraud work as specified
at tender. Our local Counter-Fraud Specialist promotes the
arrangements for staff to raise, in confidence, any concerns
they may have about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting and control. Staff are also encouraged to
raise any concerns they have in relation to clinical quality,
patient safety or other matters through our whistleblowing
policy, ‘guidance for staff raising issues of concern’, although
these would be addressed by the Board of Directors and
Governance Committee, rather than through the Audit
Committee.
The Council of Governors appointed our external auditors
KPMG with effect from 1 October 2012 for a period of three
years. This appointment followed a tender evaluation process,
with involvement from the Council of Governors and Audit
Committee members. The Audit Committee is currently in

the process of reviewing its effectiveness for 2013/14, which
will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the external
audit process. The value of the external audit plan 2013/14,
as approved by the Audit Committee in December 2013,
equates to £56,650 excluding value added tax. The external
audit plan equates to audit services only. Where any nonaudit services are commissioned, these are in accordance
with a previously agreed policy for the engagement of
external auditors for non-audit work by the Audit Committee
in December 2012. This policy sets out threats to audit
independence that theoretically exist and the mitigations
that will be applied to ensure that auditor objectivity and
independence is appropriately safeguarded. During 2013/14
the Trust commissioned non-audit services from KPMG
to the value of £1,250. This related to the attendance of a
KPMG specialist at a Governance Committee meeting to
observe proceedings and facilitate a discussion thereafter on
clinical governance and quality monitoring information.

As part of its work in terms of preparation and review of the
Annual Accounts 2013/14, the Audit Committee considered
issues for note, and the main changes as listed in Monitor’s
annual reporting manual. Our main issues and changes related
to the following:

The Audit Committee regularly considers reports from
both the internal and external auditors and reviews their
work programmes. Meetings are structured to consider
business that will enable the committee to provide assurance
to the Board of Directors that our systems and processes
are functioning effectively. The committee has delegated
authority on an annual basis to consider and approve the
annual accounts and associated documentation, through
the International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 meeting,
providing assurance to the Board of Directors that financial
and quality governance is well regulated in our organisation.

• Valuation of property, plant and equipment. The district
valuation service has been engaged to carry out the required
review of all land and buildings we own.

• Removal of the exemption for consolidation of
charitable funds
• Changes to the method of calculation of the Prudential
Dividend Capital (PDC) dividend
• Changes in International Accounting Standard Nineteen
(an accounting rule concerning employee benefits, ISA 19)
affecting Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) pension
schemes
The Audit Committee is required to report significant issues
considered in approving Annual Accounts. We consider these
to be as follows:

• Provision for restructuring costs associated with
organisational change. This relates to a number of services
across our organisation and staff consultation has been
carried out in accordance with our organisational change
policy.

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
23 May 2013
(ISA 260
meeting)

19 June 2013

18 Sept 2013

11 Dec 2013

10 Mar 2014

Robert Peto
(Chair of the Committee)

•

•

•

•

•

John Archard-Jones

•

•

•

•

•

Sushel Ohri

•

•

•

•

•

• Denotes apologies for absence

Registers of interests
Directors’ interests

Governors’ interests

The Trust Board Secretary holds
a register of directors’ interests.
This is available by contacting the
office on 01536 452036, or by
emailing jane.alton@nhft.nhs.uk.

The Foundation Trust Office holds a
register of governors’ interests. This
is available by contacting the office
on 01536 452061, or by emailing
foundationtrust@nhft.nhs.uk.
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2

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT
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SECTION two: ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust’s
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets
for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me.
I am also responsible for ensuring that the Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently
and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
accounting officer memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level, rather than
to eliminate all risk of failure, to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of the policies, aims and objectives of Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust,
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has
been in place in Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31
March 2014 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk
The Governance Committee has delegated responsibility on behalf of the Trust’s Board of
Directors. This ensures the leadership, coordination and prioritisation, on a strategic and
operational basis, of the risk management agenda in relation to clinical and quality risk.
This includes the identification of the full range of risks that are inherent in the delivery of
healthcare.
The significant risks in relation to the Trust’s strategic objectives are described in the Board
assurance framework. This also includes the comprehensive Trust-wide organisational risk
register.
The risk management structure is detailed in the Trust’s risk management strategy. It describes
the responsibilities and accountabilities of all directors, managers and staff, including the duty
to identify and report risks of all kinds, and the duty to act upon these using their own skills and
competencies in the management of risk.
The Trust ensures, through our management structure, that we provide a training, monitoring,
liaison, advisory and planning role within directorates to ensure the delivery of risk programmes
such as:
• Local and corporate induction training
• Risk awareness
• Incident reporting and monitoring
• Risk management systems and processes
• Complaints and claims management
• Root cause analysis action plan implementation
• Being open
• Health and safety training
This is overseen and supported by the Trust’s risk management team alongside the
organisational development team.
PAGE 73

The risk and control framework
The principal risks to compliance with the NHS Foundation
Trust condition 4 of the NHS provider licence relate to poor
corporate governance arrangements, including ineffective
performance management and reporting systems (in respect
of quality, operations and finance), as well as inadequate
business planning processes.
Key measures in place to mitigate against these risks include:
• The effectiveness of governance structures
o Board of Directors’ effectiveness reviews are undertaken
regularly. The Board Development Day in November 2013
focused on ‘What makes an effective Board?’
o Regular reviews of Board Committees’ effectiveness are
undertaken
o External review as well as internal self-assessment of
corporate governance arrangements have been
undertaken during 2013/14. An internal audit report
on integrated governance arrangements provided a ‘good’
assurance rating. The February 2014 Governance
Committee gained positive assurance from an internal
self-assessment of the Trust’s governance arrangements,
as benchmarked against the requirements of the Board
governance assurance framework
o A self-assessment against Monitor’s quality governance
framework was received and reviewed by the Governance
Committee at its October 2013 meeting
o Representatives from the Council of Governors
periodically attend Board Committees to observe
meetings and gain independent assurance of their
effectiveness
o The Trust’s Constitution is regularly reviewed and updated
to reflect legislative changes or organisational
requirements with appropriate advice obtained from the
Trust’s legal advisors
• The responsibilities of directors and committees
o Board committees’ terms of reference are regularly
reviewed
o The Board of Directors’ structure is reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure its continued effectiveness. The executive
and non-executive elements of the Board have both been
subject to review and change during 2013/14
• Reporting lines and accountabilities between the Board, its
committees and the executive team
o These are clearly defined within the overall governance
structures of the Trust and within the terms of reference
of the Board committees. Reports and minutes from
Board committees are included in the public and private
sessions of the Board of Directors’ meetings respectively
• Submission of timely and accurate information to assess risks
to compliance with the Trust’s licence
o The Board routinely receives and reviews the
organisational risk register as part of the Trust’s robust
and well-embedded risk management strategy
PAGE 74

o Specific monitoring and assurance arrangements have
been established and agreed by the Governance
Committee to ensure ongoing compliance with the
Trust’s provider licence conditions
• The degree and rigour of oversight the Board has over the
Trust’s performance
o The Trust has well-established performance management
systems in place in respect of our quality, operational and
financial obligations
o The Board of Directors routinely receives and scrutinises
performance reports at its meetings. The Finance and
Performance Committee and Governance Committee
have key responsibilities within the overall performance
management framework and quality strategy of the Trust
o The Board takes leadership of the annual planning
processes (both operational and strategic) and receives
and reviews regular progress reports on delivery
In certifying compliance with the corporate governance
statement the Board reviews supporting evidence for each
element of the statement.
The risk management strategy also includes an explanation
of the Trust’s philosophy towards risk management within
our strategic aims and objectives, and clear definition of
individuals’ roles and responsibilities.
The strategy outlines the Trust’s approach to the following:
• The responsibility of every member of staff to recognise,
respond to, report, record and reduce risks whilst they are
undertaking work for the Trust
• The provision of high-quality services to the public in ways
aimed at securing the best outcome for all involved. To this
end, the Trust ensures that appropriate measures are in
place to reduce or minimise risks to everyone for whom we
have a responsibility. These are patients, staff and
contractors and visitors who are on Trust premises
• The implementation of policies and training to ensure that
all appropriate staff are competent to identify risks, are aware
of the steps needed to address them and have authority to
act
• Management action to assess all identified risks and the
steps needed to minimise them. This comprises continuous
evaluation, monitoring and reassessment of these risks and
the resultant actions required
• The designation of executive officers with responsibility for
the implementation of this strategy and the execution of risk
management through operational and monitoring
committees, as described in the risk management strategy
and policy
• Action plans to maintain compliance with the
requirements for Care Quality Commission (CQC)
registration, which contribute to delivery of the risk control
framework and registration standards assurance
• The process by which risks are evaluated and controlled
throughout the organisation

In support of the risk management strategy and policy, we have
a range of key policies that provide clear guidance for staff on
how to deal with concerns, complaints, claims, accidents and
incidents on behalf of patients, visitors or themselves.
Risk management is embedded within the organisation as
follows:
• Compliance with the mechanisms for the reporting of all
accidents and incidents
• Information from incident reporting data is integrated
into new service developments through the Datix incident
reporting system
• All serious incidents are actively managed and monitored to
ensure compliance with action plans and being open;
progress is monitored by the Board of Directors at each
meeting
• Training and education programmes for all staff, including
induction programmes
• Active progression towards increased compliance with
external assessment processes
• Use of local, directorate and corporate risk registers and
National Patient Safety Agency grading matrix throughout
the organisation
• Use of the NHS Safety Thermometer
• A financial risk assessment is incorporated into monthly
financial reporting arrangements for the Finance and
Performance Committee

• An established whistle blowing policy is in place and
awareness of the policy is promoted within the Trust
• Outcomes from complaints, incidents and claims are used to
reduce future risks and these outcomes are also aggregated
to identify Trust-wide risks
The Trust’s Board assurance framework fulfils the functions as
described in the guidance, as follows:
• Covers all the organisation’s main activities
• Identifies the Trust’s strategic focus
• Identifies, scores and risk-profiles the key risks to achieving
its objectives
• Identifies and describes the significant systems of internal
controls in place to manage the risk
• Identifies the review and assurance mechanisms, and
therefore the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
• Identifies gaps in controls and assurance and the link
to Board plans. Its main objectives are risk-profiled and it
contains risks derived from the corporate risk register
The Board assurance framework is updated regularly through
the year. Any gaps in controls that are identified during the
year are subject to the implementation of an action plan and
assurances within the Board assurance framework.
The Trust has a robust risk assessment and risk register
process in place to identify both clinical and non-clinical
risks at local, locality/specialist and organisational levels. For
those risks that cannot be eliminated or managed at a local or
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specialist level and are assessed to be a significant risk, these
are escalated to the Organisational Risk Register. The Trust
uses DatixWeb, a risk management database tool for real-time
reporting and escalation of identified risks.
The Organisational Risk Register describes the risks to
achieving the organisation’s strategic objectives. They are
drawn from operational indicators of risk and from horizonscanning discussions about external risks to achieving the
strategic objectives.
The Organisational Risk Register is continually reviewed
and assurance of the process and management of risks by
identified directors is reported to the Board of Directors and/
or the Governance Committee. The Trust is required to be
registered with either or both the CQC and Ofsted for our
services. Both statutory bodies have undertaken inspections in
the organisation in 2013/14. The Care Quality Commission
(CQC) has not taken any enforcement actions against the
Trust during 2013/14, nor has the organisation been required
to participate in any special reviews or investigation by the
CQC during the year. Under its inspection programme, the
CQC has inspected three sites during 2013/14:
• St Mary’s Hospital was inspected in August 2013. Seven
outcomes were reviewed and five of the seven were deemed
compliant by inspectors. Two outcomes required actions
that have been addressed by the services concerned. The
CQC re-visited in March 2014 and only one action
remained outstanding. This has now been addressed.
• John Greenwood Shipman Centre was inspected in October
2013. Seven outcomes were reviewed and the service was
compliant with six. Actions were required for one outcome
and they have been completed.
• Her Majesty’s Prison (HMP) Gartree was inspected in
March 2014. Five outcomes were reviewed and all were
deemed compliant by the inspector.
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On 1 August 2013, the Trust became responsible for providing
short breaks services for disabled children and young people in
the county. The service is successfully dual registered with the
Care Quality Commission and Ofsted. Ofsted has reviewed
three areas, with the following outcomes:
• The Squirrels in Rushden, inspected and deemed adequate
• John Greenwood Shipman Centre (JGS) in Northampton
deemed inadequate but, following development of a
comprehensive action plan on re-inspection six weeks later,
deemed good
• 82 Northampton Road in Wellingborough, inspected and
deemed inadequate. An action plan has been produced.
Work is in progress and re-inspection is awaited

The Trust has a compliance-monitoring process for
all services. Each service undertakes a quarterly selfassessment, which is used to provide assurance that they
are assessed against regulatory standards. In addition,
this information is reviewed and used to underpin
internal reviews of compliance and peer-review visits.

The Trust achieved registration for all of our services with
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) from 1 April 2010,
and Ofsted from August 1 2013, without any conditions of
registration. The Trust was fully compliant with the registration
requirements of the CQC throughout 2013/14.
Patients, service users, carers and visitors are encouraged to
report any issue of concern, or suggest areas for improvement
by means of leaflets and comment cards positioned in patient
areas, and through discharge patient surveys. Involvement
includes gathering feedback from external stakeholders as well

as using patients’ and carers’ views. This involvement enables
these groups to feed back and scrutinise the Trust’s activity
relating to patient and carer involvement. The organisation
also has a patient experience group whose membership
includes patients, carers and local scrutiny group members. It
oversees and monitors involvement and experience activity in
the Trust.
Our Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) provides
central reporting of concerns and issues raised by patients
and the public. It is also fully integrated with the complaints
management process. These and other patient experience
issues are considered at the patient experience group, which
reports to the Governance Committee. This, along with other
quality data, is reported in a monthly quality dashboard that
was introduced in the organisation during 2013/14. The Trust
has also actively taken part in the national Friends and Family
Test initiative. Although introduced to acute providers only, we
took the opportunity to implement it in the organisation ahead
of schedule.
Our Council of Governors has been in place from 1 May
2009, which has strengthened arrangements for the
involvement and accountability of patients, carers, staff,
partners and the public. The Council of Governors also has
a sub-group structure in place, whose remits include finance,
planning and performance, patient safety and experience,
staff and resources, and membership and governance. These
sub-groups help support the Trust’s scrutiny and assurance
processes. The Council of Governors’ corporate assessment
group reviews papers discussed at Trust Board of Directors’
meetings held in public, as well as the agenda and minutes
of the Board of Directors’ meetings held in private session.
Governor links with the quality agenda have continued to
strengthen over the year. This has included involvement in the
verification of the organisational self-assessment against the
recommendations of the Francis Report. In addition to this,
specific training on quality assurance has been provided for
governors.
In the last 12 months the Trust Board of Directors has
reviewed its structure. The Interim Chief Executive was
appointed substantively in September 2013. The restructure
of the Board has allowed the organisation to achieve savings,
but more importantly, has provided a more robust structure
that enables quality to be at the heart of the organisation.
It places the responsibility for quality with the two clinical
executive directors.
During the year, the Interim Director of Nursing and Quality
resigned from the Trust. The subsequent incumbent served
only a short time prior to her unexpected death in September
2013. The current Interim Director of Nursing and Quality
was appointed in November 2013. Whilst the Board
recognised that the arrangements were not consistent with
the constitutional requirement (of having a registered nurse
or midwife on the Board), it had taken the view that, as the
situation only existed for a period of eight weeks, this was not
a material breach of the requirement. The Board therefore
considered that this was a reasonable and proportionate
response given the exceptional circumstances and is confident
that any potential risks relating to the interim arrangements
had been identified and mitigated. Monitor wrote to the Trust

in December 2013 advising that the interim arrangements to
cover the Director of Nursing vacancy did not comply with the
Trust’s constitution. Monitor asked that the Trust ensures that
in future we remain compliant with our constitution.
During the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 the Trust
has undertaken a range of actions to improve the manner in
which we manage and control information governance risks by
reviewing and monitoring information assets, information flows
and information governance incidents via our information
governance team and information governance group. This
activity supports the application and monitoring of compliance
against the requirements of the Information Governance (IG)
Toolkit. Achievement against this is monitored through our
Governance Committee and independent assurance is gained
through internal audit.
As a result of the positive appraisal of the approach
undertaken by the Trust over the last two years, this year’s IG
Toolkit submission will not be externally audited. The Health
and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) and NHS
England have confirmed this is not a mandatory requirement.
The Trust has met the minimum standard for submission.
We have established a framework to oversee information
governance compliance within the Trust. The Information
Management and Technology Programme Board receives
monthly reports on all key information governance issues.
The Board of Directors and Governance Committee have
received updates and assurances on information governance.
These include:
• Updates on the Information Governance Toolkit
• Any areas of risk, and assurance and controls to mitigate
against these risks

The Trust had 101 information governance incidents
during 2013/14. In line with our incident policy,
remedial actions have been undertaken and lessons
learned are fed back to the organisation through
internal communications.

Control measures are in place to ensure that we comply with
all our obligations under equality, diversity and human rights
legislation. Compliance is reported on an annual basis in
the published Equality Information Report, and in progress
reports to the Board of Directors on the equality plan. The
Trust completes equality analysis to consider the effects of our
policies, functions and actions in relation to groups protected
under the Equality Act 2010. We are using the NHS Equality
Delivery System (EDS) and the Equality Information Report
to prioritise equality objectives and actions and to influence
service reviews and redesigns, and business planning. We
have in place an Equality and Inclusion Assurance Board that
reports into the Governance Committee. It has non-executive
director membership and an executive director chair. Quality
and equality impact analyses are also undertaken as part of
any organisational change and service redesign.
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As an employer, with staff entitled to membership of the NHS pension scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s
contributions and payments into the scheme are in accordance with the scheme rules, and that
member pension scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales
detailed in the regulations. Similar controls are also in place for employees entitled to
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), or individuals who contribute
to the National Employment Savings Trust (NEST) pension scheme.
The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place
in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based
on UKCIP 2009 weather projects. This ensures that the organisation’s obligations under the
Climate Change Act and the adaptation reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Trust reviews economy, efficiency and effectiveness through the review of finance
and performance at budget manager, service director and overall Trust level. In addition
to a system of devolved budget management, we operate a service review process where
achievement of performance, quality standards and financial targets is considered. There is also
a system reporting finance and performance to the Board of Directors, supported by detailed
performance and financial reporting to the Finance and Performance Committee.
The Trust has used benchmarking information over the period of 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2014 to provide an indication on economy and efficiency within the organisation. Information
from the 2012/13 national reference costing exercise has been used in order to identify
services where our reference costs are significantly higher than the national average, and these
are subject to detailed analysis and review by service managers with support from finance and
performance staff. The work will enable the Trust to understand why costs of individual services
appear to be high and to identify opportunities to improve economy and effectiveness through
our productivity and/or cost improvement programmes. Internal benchmarking information has
also been produced, which enables comparison of activity and cost between teams and wards
within each of the Trust’s services.
The Trust is also a member of NHS Benchmarking and has participated in benchmarking
exercises in mental health inpatient and community services and in corporate support services.
We also undertook a review of 2012/13 programme budget expenditure on mental health
with Nene CCG during the year, including a review of findings from historical benchmarking
exercises, in order to promote a shared understanding of relative investment in mental health
services and indications of economies and effectiveness within these services. The Trust is also
a member of the Healthcare Financial Management Association Mental Health (HFMAM)
Cluster Benchmarking Club, which will enable more detailed benchmarking of mental health
cluster costs in future years.
The Trust procured a Patient Level Information and Costing System (PLICS) in 2013/14 and
we are implementing service line reporting and basic PLICS for mental health services for early
2014/15. We then plan to roll this out to other services by the end of the year.
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Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and
the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations
2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for
each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to
NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content
of annual Quality Reports, which incorporate the above
legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual.
We have in place governance and leadership arrangements
to ensure the development and achievement of quality
improvements across the organisation. Executive
responsibility for quality rests with the Director of Corporate
Support and clinical quality rests jointly between the
Interim Director of Nursing and Quality and the Medical
Director. The quality support and assurance team work
with operational services to monitor progress in delivering
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) and
Quality Accounts requirements.
Quality initiatives within the Trust continue to be
underpinned by our Quality Strategy. It has established
arrangements for the regular review of service performance,
monthly monitoring of a range of quality and effectiveness
indicators and supports innovation within the organisation,
including quality improvements in efficiency and cost
effectiveness.
The key document for quality measurement and reporting
is the Quality Account, which includes a quarterly report
on measures of quality and is received by the Governance
Committee. In addition, we have introduced a monthly
quality dashboard, subject to ongoing development, which
allows localities to receive detailed information relating
to their services in line with all aspects of quality. Reports
produced by localities from the dashboard are reviewed and
submitted to the Governance Committee to give indications
of issues relating to quality, which are identified by frontline
staff as important issues when working to maintain high
quality care. At each of its meetings, the Governance
Committee, on behalf of the Board of Directors, receives
reports on patient safety, patient experience and clinical
effectiveness, statutory registration assurance and
assurances on learning from national inquiries. In addition
to this, thematic reviews of service areas or indicators
of concern are commissioned by and shared with the
Governance Committee as they arise.
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Through the Datix reporting system, we have identified
pressure ulcers as being the highest reported incident. This
features on the organisational risk register and is reviewed by
the Trust Board. The Patient Safety Report submitted to the
Governance Committee contains more detailed information
relating to incidents including pressure ulcers. During the
year, in-depth thematic reviews have been undertaken to
identify key issues that continue to be monitored, and actions
have been put in place. Documentation relating to recording
pressure ulcers has been raised as an issue. There is ongoing
work developing improved patient records to address this issue
in the future. Increased training and staff awareness have
also led to increased reporting. Through thematic reviews
and regular reporting we have a clear understanding of how
we need to focus on controlling the number of avoidable
pressure ulcers, which through continued good practice can be
prevented.

have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of
the Quality Report included in this Annual Report and other
performance information available to me. My review is also
informed by comments made by the external auditors in their
reports. The Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the
Governance Committee have advised me on the implications
of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. A plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

In addition to this the Trust Board of Directors receives
reports on issues impacting on quality, including:

• PALS, complaints and claims reports

• Progress on key strategic objectives, including organisational
development, service user and carer involvement and
research and development
• Patient stories

The Board assurance framework provides me with evidence
that the effectiveness of controls that manage the risks to
the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been
reviewed. My review is also informed by:
• Quarterly incident trend analysis reports and service
directors’ commentary
• The Trust’s assurance structure and reporting for statutory
body registration requirements
• Internal audit assessment of the Board assurance framework
and subsequent revisions

• Registration with statutory bodies

• Patient-Led Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE)
scores (which have replaced PEAT inspections)

• Serious incidents

• The reviews of Board of Directors’ effectiveness

• Service developments

• The work of the Audit Committee, the Governance
Committee, the Finance and Performance Committee, the
SI Review Committee and Complaints Review Committee

• Achievement of national indicators
• Equality and inclusion
• Infection prevention and control
• Safeguarding
All policies continue to be reviewed and are implemented
across the increased range of physical and mental health
services. A Trust-wide clinical audit programme is in place
to ensure prioritised audits are undertaken across services in
response to local, regional and national drivers. These audits
are supported and coordinated through the quality assurance
and support team and are reported on formally through the
Clinical Audit and Effectiveness Committee, chaired by the
Medical Director, and into the Governance Committee.
Clinical quality issues, particularly relating to best practice and
national guidance, are scrutinised and discussed at the Quality
Forum. Representatives from all relevant profession groups
attend this forum to ensure clinical quality is reviewed and
challenged from all aspects and that any actions are followedup on an ongoing basis. The forum also reviews impact
assessments on the quality of care when there are changes in
services, either as a result of the cost improvement programme
or because of service redesign.

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed
by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the
executive managers and clinical leads within the Trust, who
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• Internal and external audit reports
• The work of the local counter-fraud specialist
• Regular monitoring of the SI schedule
• Operational service director reporting to the Trust Board of
Directors
• Trust responses to external inquiries and reports
• Directorate and service performance reviews
The review and maintenance of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control is undertaken as follows:
• The Trust Board receives reports from the Governance
Committee, the Finance and Performance Committee and
the Audit Committee, in addition to receiving their minutes.
These reports highlight issues of assurance and concern for
the Board of Directors
• The Audit Committee has oversight of corporate governance
arrangements and receives appropriate external assurance
• The Audit Committee also ensures the establishment and
maintenance of an effective system of internal control and
risk management
• All managers have the responsibility for developing and
implementing the risk management strategy and policy
through the line management of individual directorates
• The Finance and Performance Committee assures effective
control on financial and performance matters

• The internal auditors verify that a suitable and effective system of risk management and internal control is in place
• The clinical audit programme is developed with input from internal audit and joint working is undertaken to minimise
duplication and maximise effectiveness of audit activity
• The Trust Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the self-assessment and the subsequent progress made within
the organisation in relation to the recommendations published in the Francis Report (February 2013). This related to the
failings in care at the Mid Staffordshire Foundation NHS Trust. Validation of the self-assessment has been undertaken with
relevant stakeholders and the working group will continue to take findings forward to ensure future work is incorporated into the
organisation’s objectives and work streams.
During 2013/14, we changed our internal auditors following a tender process. Central England Audit Consortium (CEAC) were
the internal auditors until 30 September 2013. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) took on the responsibility from
1 October 2013.
The Head of Internal Audit for CEAC has reviewed the work carried out by internal audit relating to the period 1 April 2013 to
30 September 2013 and concluded that the management of the principal risks identified within the organisation’s assurance
framework was effective. Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of control designed to meet
our objectives.
The Head of Internal Audit for PwC has reviewed the work carried out by internal
audit relating to the period 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014 and concluded that
there is some risk that management’s objectives may not be fully achieved.
Improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and/or
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control.
The required improvements are being addressed by the Trust’s
management team through the development of action plans as part
of the normal audit process.

Conclusion

My review confirms that
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust has a generally sound
system of internal controls that supports the
achievement of our policies, aims and objectives
and that any control issues have been addressed. No
significant control issues have been identified. The
Trust is committed to the continuous improvement
of processes of internal control and assurance
and as such may introduce additional controls
within the forthcoming financial year
(2014/15), as the Trust Board of
Directors deems necessary.

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
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Charitable funds
Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund holds funds
that have been received by the Trust as donations or
specific legacies to support our activities, as well as money
raised by fundraising. The overarching management of
the charity is carried out by the Board of Northampton
General Hospital NHS Trust (NGH) acting as corporate
trustee.
Local governance of the funds
Our local managers and directors are responsible for
recommending the specific projects on which the funds
are spent, with a local charity sub-committee acting as
approving body for large requests.
Anyone can put in a bid to spend charitable funds and
during 2013/14 £700,000 was provided as grants to the
Trust.
Money is raised and spent across all areas of the Trust
each year. A large proportion (£640,000) of the money
spent relates to Cransley Hospice, which provides care and
support for terminally ill people at the end of their lives.
At 31 March 2014, the charity was holding funds worth
£1.6 million, of which £1.0 million was specifically for the
support of Cransley Hospice.
Some of our projects from across the Trust during 2013/14 are:
• Provision of new gym equipment
• Regular art therapy sessions
• Direct support for the community palliative care team
• General funding of patient amenities and activities
• Complementary therapies
• Support of staff training
Cransley Hospice Trust
2013/14 has been another successful year for the Cransley
Hospice Trust. Many enjoyable and high-profile events
have been held. The events organised by the fundraising
team are well attended and enjoyed by hundreds of people
from the local community.
The shops at 2 Horsemarket, Kettering have completed
another successful year of trading and continue to
receive good patronage. We are very reliant on the help
and enthusiasm of our many hundreds of volunteers and
are extremely grateful for those who give their time so
generously.

Diana Patrick, Fundraising Manager
For more information about the Cransley Hospice Trust
and its fundraising events please contact
diana.patrick@nhft.nhs.uk
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3

FINANCIALS

SECTION THREE: FINANCIALS
Remuneration Report
This report provides information about the salaries and
pensions of our non-executive directors and executive
directors, who, as in previous years and for the purpose of this
report, have been classed as our most senior managers.
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for determining the pay and contractual
arrangements for our executive directors and for monitoring
and evaluating their performance. Further information about
the Nominations and Remuneration Committee can be found
in the section on Board of Directors and in the Code
of Governance.
Standardised terms and conditions of service apply to the
executive directors, who are employed on open-ended
contracts with the exception of the Director of Human
Resources and Organisational Development who is employed
on a fixed term contract. The Interim Director of Nursing and
Quality was appointed for a twelve month period, subject
to review in November 2014. With the exception of the
Finance Director’s contract, Directors’ contracts provide for
six months of notice of termination except in cases of gross
misconduct when summary dismissal would be imposed. The
Finance Director’s contract provides for 12 months of notice
of termination, except in cases of gross misconduct. Directors’
performance is assessed formally through our individual
performance and development review process.
Any termination payments made to executive directors were
in accordance with agreed terms and conditions. All elements
of executive reward are based on performance. Where an
exceptional contribution had been made, non recurrent cash
awards were agreed.
The reward policy for executive directors is agreed by the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee. Payments in
2013/14 were made in line with this policy which reflected
the impact of public sector pay restraint on other staff within
the Trust, market data, affordability, corporate and individual
performance.
For 2013/14 there were three specific elements agreed
which would determine any rewards paid: the achievement of
Monitor and CQC driven corporate targets, the achievement
of key strategic goals, as identified in the annual plan and
individual contribution.
Corporate, strategic and individual performance objectives
will again be agreed for 2014/15. A new job evaluation
system is in development which will enable the refinement of
the executive director reward process. Job profiles for each
executive director position will be agreed so that both internal
and external value can be assessed.
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The Trust is required to disclose the relationship between
the remuneration of the highest paid director and the
median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust in
the financial year 2013/14 was in the range of £210,000 to
£215,000 (2012/13 £300,000 to £305,000). This was
8.3 times (2012/11 11.8 times) the median remuneration
of the workforce, which was £25,783 (2012/13 £25,528).
Due to the non-recurrent nature of the ‘other remuneration’
payments when median remuneration is normalised it is 6.8
times the median remuneration of the workforce (2012/13
6.99 times).
In 2013/14 no employee (2012/13 no employee) received
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director.
Remuneration ranged from £6,779 to £214,296 (2012/13
£14,153 to £ 302,250). Total remuneration includes salary,
non-consolidated performance related pay and benefitsin-kind. It does not include severance payments, employer
pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer of
pensions.
Staff are paid in line with national pay rates agreed under
Agenda for Change. Directors are remunerated in accordance
with the pay policy agreed by the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee.
There is a requirement to show the tax arrangements of public
sector appointees made during the year 2013/14 and these
are shown on the table on the following page.

Details of directors’ remuneration and pension
entitlements are covered in the following tables.
The Trust Board Secretary holds a register of
directors’ interests.
This is available by contacting the office on
01536 452036 or by emailing
jane.alton@nhft.nhs.uk

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
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Annual Report disclosures – the review of tax arrangements of public sector appointees
For off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2014, for more than £220 per day and that last for
longer than six months, the following information is disclosed:
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2014

Response
7

Of which:
Number that have since come onto the Trust’s payroll

0

Of which:
Number that have existed for less than one year at the time of reporting

4

Number that have existed for between one and two years at the time of reporting

1

Number that have existed for between two and three years at the time of reporting

0

Number that have existed for between three and four years at the time of reporting

1

Number that have existed for four years or more at the time of reporting

1

Total

7

Has a risk-based assessment been undertaken for all reported

YES

Notes: The Trust has made an assessment that six of the individuals included in this note are not deemed to have significant
financial responsibility. The types of roles that these individuals occupy are estates project manager, IT contractors and
trainers. One individual works in the finance department but is not an authorised signatory for the Trust.
For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April
2013 and 31 March 2014, for more than £220 per day and that last for longer than six months, the
following information is disclosed:

Response

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2013
and 31 March 2014

10

Number of the above that include contractual clauses giving the trust the right to request assurance
in relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations

10

Number for whom assurance has been requested

10

Of which:
Number for whom assurance has been received

1

Number for whom assurance has not been received

9

Number that have been terminated as a result of assurance not being received

0

Any situations where tax clause not included or where contract not terminated on non-receipt of
information
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NO

The Trust has made an assessment that nine of the individuals included in this note are not deemed to have significant
financial responsibility. The types of roles that these individuals occupy are clinical locums, estates project manager, IT
contractors and trainers. One individual works in the finance department but is not an authorised signatory for the Trust.
The Trust expects that assurance will be received in all cases. However, should assurance not be received within a reasonable
timeframe, the Trust will review our contracts with these suppliers.

For any off-payroll engagements of Board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial
responsibility, between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 the following information is disclosed:

Response

Number of off-payroll engagements of Board members and/or senior officials with significant
financial responsibility, during the financial year

1

Number of individuals that have been deemed ‘Board members and/or senior
officials with significant financial responsibility’ during the financial year

51

These figures include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements
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Salaries and allowances 1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014
2013/14
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Taxable
benefits
(nearest
£100)

Performance
- related
Bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)

Long-term
performance
-related
bonuses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

40-45

1700

0

0

0

0

40-45

Paul Bertin, Non Executive Director
(until 30 November 2012)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Michelle Grimwood, Non Executive
Director

10-15

400

0

0

0

0

10-15

John Archard-Jones, Non Executive
Director

15-20

1900

0

0

0

0

15-20

John Peet, Chairman
(until 30 November 2012)
Paul Bertin, Chairman
(from 1 December 2012)

Pension
Other
-related Remuneration
benefits
(bands of
(bands of
£5,000)
£2,500)

Total
(bands of
£5,000)

Sushel Ohri, Non Executive Director

10-15

2100

0

0

0

0

10-15

Robert Peto, Non Executive Director

15-20

800

0

0

0

0

15-20

Bev Messinger, Non Executive Director

10-15

400

0

0

0

0

10-15

Ron Shields, Chief Executive
(until 30 April 2013) *

10-15

700

0

0

142.5-145

0

175-180

130-135

2000

0-5

0

235-237.5

0

375-380

85-90

1700

0

0

15-17.5

85-90

190-195

115-120

200

0

0

15-17.5

0

130-135

Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing,
Quality and Professional Development
(until 20 September 2013 ) *

35-40

1000

0

0

10-12.5

0

50-55

Sharon Dennis, Interim Director of
Nursing ( from 19 August 2013 to 20
September 2013) *

20-25

0

0

0

0

0

20-25

Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of
Nursing and Quality
(from 14 November 2013) *

30-35

900

0

0

87.5-90

0

120-125

Louise Payne, Director of Corporate
Support

95-100

700

0

0

25-27.5

0

120-125

Samantha Milbank, Director of Service
Development (until 12 July 2013)

25-30

200

0

0

22.5-25

65-70

120-125

Alfred Hanson, Director of Operations
(Operations Director South until April
2013, then Director of Operations)

100-105

200

0

0

40-42.5

110-115

255-260

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development

95-100

400

0-5

0

0

0

100-105

Richard McKendrick, (Director of
Specialty Services until November 2013
and then Chief Operating Officer)

95-100

100

0

0

27.5-30

0

125-130

Angela Hillery, Chief Executive
(Operations Director North until 30
April 2013, Interim Chief Executive 1
May 2013, substantive from 16
September 2013) *
Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, Medical
Director *
Bill McFarland, Finance Director *

* Denotes voting right
No benefits in kind were paid during 2013/14 or 2012/13
Performance-related bonuses are awarded solely at the discretion of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee.
In 2013/14 two awards were made for significant contributions above and beyond those expected of directors.
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2012/13
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Taxable
benefits
(nearest
£100)

Performance
- related
Bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)

Long-term
performance
-related
bonuses

25-30

1600

0

0

0

0

25-30

10-15

700

0

0

0

0

15-20

Paul Bertin, Non Executive Director
(until 30 November 2012)

5-10

200

0

0

0

0

5-10

Michelle Grimwood, Non Executive
Director

10-15

400

0

0

0

0

10-15

John Archard-Jones, Non Executive
Director

15-20

1400

0

0

0

0

15-20

John Peet, Chairman
(until 30 November 2012)
Paul Bertin, Chairman
(from 1 December 2012)

Pension
Other
-related Remuneration
benefits
(bands of
(bands of
£5,000)
£2,500)

Total
(bands of
£5,000)

Sushel Ohri, Non Executive Director

10-15

500

0

0

0

0

10-15

Robert Peto, Non Executive Director

15-20

400

0

0

0

0

15-20

Bev Messinger, Non Executive Director

10-15

700

0

0

0

0

10-15

155-160

3200

0

0

17.5-20

145-150

320-325

95-100

1200

0

0

72.5-75

0

165-170

85-90

2300

0

0

40-42.5

85-90

215-220

110-115

300

0

0

7.5-10

0

120-125

80-85

1600

0

0

110-112.5

0

190-195

Sharon Dennis, Interim Director of
Nursing ( from 19 August 2013 to 20
September 2013) *

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of
Nursing and Quality
(from 14 November 2013) *

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

90-95

700

0

0

5-7.5

0

95-100

Samantha Milbank, Director of Service
Development (until 12 July 2013)

95-100

1200

0

0

(7.5-10)

0

85-90

Alfred Hanson, Director of Operations
(Operations Director South until April
2013, then Director of Operations)

95-100

400

0

0

42.5-45

0

135-140

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development

95-100

700

0

0

0

0

95-100

85-90

600

0

0

35-37.5

0

125-130

Ron Shields, Chief Executive
(until 30 April 2013) *
Angela Hillery, Chief Executive
(Operations Director North until 30
April 2013, Interim Chief Executive 1
May 2013, substantive from 16
September 2013) *
Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, Medical
Director *
Bill McFarland, Finance Director *
Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing,
Quality and Professional Development
(until 20 September 2013 ) *

Louise Payne, Director of Corporate
Support

Richard McKendrick, (Director of
Specialty Services until November 2013
and then Chief Operating Officer)
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Increase in Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

Director
Ron Shields, Chief Executive (until 30 April 2013)
Angela Hillery, Chief Executive (Operations Director
North until 30 April 2013, Interim Chief Executive 1
May 2013, substantive from 16 September 2013)
Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, Medical Director

CETV @ 31
March 2013

CETV @ 31
March 2014

CETV @ 31
Real increase
March 2013 plus
in accrued
1.6% CPI annual pension during
inflation
current
Financial
Year

Employer
funded
contribution
to growth in
CETV

£

£

£

£

£

1,194,012

1,385,602

1,213,116

172,486

120,740

470,741

673,798

478,273

195,525

136,868

535,533

589,598

544,102

45,496

31,848

1,183,943

1,269,346

1,202,886

66,460

46,522

583,356

625,556

592,690

32,866

23,006

0

0

0

0

0

Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of Nursing and
Quality (from 14 November 2013)

329,446

373,067

334,717

38,350

26,845

Louise Payne, Director of Corporate Support

672,325

735,028

683,082

51,946

36,362

Samantha Milbank, Director of Service
Development (until 12 July 2013)

409,709

453,258

416,264

36,994

25,896

Alfred Hanson, Director of Operations (Operations
Director South until April 2013, then Director of
Operations)

305,488

375,420

310,376

65,044

45,531

0

0

0

0

0

61,615

85,352

62,601

22,751

15,926

Bill McFarland, Finance Director
Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing,Quality and
Professional Development
(until 20 September 2013)
Sharon Dennis, Interim Director of Nursing
(from 19 August 2013 to 20 September 2013)

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development
Richard McKendrick, (Director of Specialty Services
until November 2013 and then Chief Operating
Officer)

As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for nonexecutive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Sharon Dennis are not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension.
Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
The real increase calculation is done on a pro rata basis for those in post for only part of the financial year.
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Real Increase in Accrued Pension & Related Lump Sum and CETV
Accrued
Pension & Related
Lump Sum @ 31
March 2013

Accrued
Pension & Related
Lump Sum @ 31
March 2014

Accrued Pension &
Related Lump Sum
@ 31 March 2013
plus 1.6% CPI annual
inflation

Real Increase in
Accrued Pension
during current
Financial Year

£

£

£

£

230,663

260,147

234,353

25,794

Angela Hillery, Chief Executive (Operations Director
North until 30 April 2013, Interim Chief Executive 1
May 2013, substantive from 16 September 2013)

117,162

163,084

119,037

44,047

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, Medical Director

112,189

119,965

113,984

5,981

216,483

225,427

219,947

5,479

116,132

120,885

117,990

2,895

0

0

0

0

76,575

84,227

77,800

6,426

138,725

147,392

140,944

6,448

Samantha Milbank, Director of Service
Development (until 12 July 2013)

86,164

92,544

87,542

5,002

Alfred Hanson, Director of Operations (Operations
Director South until April 2013, then Director of
Operations)

53,890

64,298

54,752

9,546

0

0

0

0

6,035

8,132

6,131

2,000

Director
Ron Shields, Chief Executive (until 30 April 2013)

Bill McFarland, Finance Director
Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing,Quality and
Professional Development
(until 20 September 2013)
Sharon Dennis, Interim Director of Nursing
(from 19 August 2013 to 20 September 2013)
Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of Nursing and
Quality (from 14 November 2013)
Louise Payne, Director of Corporate Support

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development
Richard McKendrick, (Director of Specialty Services
until November 2013 and then Chief Operating
Officer)

As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for nonexecutive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Sharon Dennis are not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension.
Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
The real increase calculation is done on a pro rata basis for those in post for only part of the financial year.
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Pension Benefits
Real
Total
increase
accrued
in pension
pension
and related and related
lump sum at
lump sum
age 60 at age 60 at
31 March
2014
Director

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2014

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2013

Real Employers
Increase Contribution
in Cash
to
Equivalent Stakeholder
Transfer
Pension
Value

(bands of
£2,500)

(bands of
£5,000)

£000

£000

£000

To nearest
£100

Ron Shields, Chief Executive (until 30 April 2013)

25-27.5

260-265

1,386

1,194

172

0

Angela Hillery, Chief Executive (Operations Director
North until 30 April 2013, Interim Chief Executive 1
May 2013, substantive from 16 September 2013)

42.5-45

160-165

674

471

196

0

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, Medical Director

5-7.5

115-120

590

536

45

0

Bill McFarland, Finance Director

5-7.5

225-230

1,269

1,184

66

0

Hilda Hayo, Interim Director of Nursing,Quality and
Professional Development (until 20 September 2013)

2.5-5

120-125

626

583

33

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Julie Shepherd, Interim Director of Nursing and
Quality (from 14 November 2013)

5-7.5

80-85

373

329

38

0

Louise Payne, Director of Corporate Support

5-7.5

145-150

735

672

52

0

Samantha Milbank, Director of Service Development
(until 12 July 2013)

5-7.5

90-95

453

410

37

0

Alfred Hanson, Director of Operations (Operations
Director South until April 2013, then Director
of Operations)

7.5-10

60-65

375

305

65

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0-2.5

5-10

85

62

23

0

Sharon Dennis, Interim Director of Nursing
( from 19 August 2013 to 20 September 2013)

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development
Richard McKendrick, (Director of Specialty
Services until November 2013 and then Chief
Operating Officer)

As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for nonexecutive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Sharon Dennis are not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits
in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued
in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The
CETV figures, and from 2004-05 the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit
accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost.
CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid director in their
organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust in the financial
year 2013/14 was £210,000-£215,000 (2012/13, £300,000-£305,000). This was 8.31 times (2012/13, 11.84) the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £25,783 (2012/13, £25,528).
In 2013/14 no employee (2012/13 no employee) received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director. Remuneration
ranged from £6,779 to £214,296 (2012/13 £14,153- £302,250).
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind. It does not include
severance payments, employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer of pensions.
2013 /14

Band of highest paid director's total
Trust median reumuneration
Ratio

2012 /13

Totals

Normalised

Totals

Normalised

£000

£000

£000

£000

210-215

170-175

300-305

170 - 175

25,783

25,783

25,528

25,528

8.31

6.81

11.84

6.99

Due to the non-recurrent nature of the ‘other remuneration’ columns, the ‘highest paid director’, banding has been normalised
to exclude the impact of this column and this normalised ratio is shown separately in the table on page 90-91 to enable
comparison to the prior year.
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Financial statements
Foreword
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts, in exercise
of powers conferred on it by paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 of the
National Health Service Act 2006, directs that the keeping of accounts
and the annual report of each NHS foundation trust shall be in the form
as laid down in the annual reporting guidance for NHS foundation trusts
within the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, known as the
FT ARM, that is in force for the relevant financial period.
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with paragraphs 24 and
25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006 as laid down in
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
These accounts cover the financial year 2013/14 and provide figures for
2012/13 for comparison where required.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason, we continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing our accounts.
These pages include the following financial statements and information:
• Statement of comprehensive income
• Statement of financial position
• Statements of changes in taxpayers’ equity
• Statement of cash flows
• Notes to the accounts
• Performance against the better payments code of practice
• Accounting for pension liabilities
The income received by the Trust, other than from the provision of goods
and services for the purposes of the health service in England relates
to rental income from non-NHS tenants of Trust properties, income
generation from Communicare (Occupational Health Services), and
income from catering. This is deemed insignificant in value and had
therefore no material impact on the Trust meeting its principal purpose
obligations.

Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits are
set out in the notes to the accounts and details of senior managers’
remuneration can be found in the Remuneration Report.
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has complied
with the cost allocation and charging requirements set out in HM
Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information guidance.
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s
responsibilities as the accounting officer
of Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is
the accounting officer of the NHS Foundation Trust. The
relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including
their responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public
finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping
of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust to
prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the
form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows
for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required
to comply with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor,
including the relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis;
• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out
in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements;
• Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the
relevant legislation, delegated authorities and guidance; and
• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation
Trust and to enable her to ensure that the accounts comply
with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The
Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly
discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor’s NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

164,631

170,795

Revenue
Revenue from patient care activities

4

Other operating revenue

5

15,499

9,754

Operating expenses

6

(178,768)

(178,643)

1,362

1,906

Operating surplus/(deficit)
Finance costs:
Finance income

12

175

225

Finance expense - financial liabilities

14

(2,817)

(2,723)

Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions

33

Public dividend capital dividends payable
Net finance costs
Gain/(loss) from transfer by absorption
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period

(23)

(26)

(657)

(782)

(3,322)

(3,306)

(206)

0

(2,166)

(1,400)

0

(1,680)

Other comprehensive income
Impairments and reversals
Gains on revaluations

1,609

0

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension scheme
liability/assets

(176)

0

Total comprehensive income for the period

(733)

(3,080)

The notes on pages 102 to 138 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

Note

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

15

86,968

82,592

Intangible assets

16

12

24

Trade and other receivables

20

0

0

86,980

82,616

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

19

123

127

Trade and other receivables

20

6,873

5,990

Other financial assets

21

0

0

Other current assets

22

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents

23

41,173

43,337

48,169

49,454

Non-current assets held for sale

24

Total current assets
Total assets

0

400

48,169

49,854

135,149

132,470

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

25

(18,748)

(19,050)

Other liabilities

27

(694)

(1,653)

Borrowings

26

(1,277)

(1,263)

Other financial liabilities

32

0

0

Provisions

33

(11,017)

(5,482)

(31,736)

(27,448)

Total current liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

16,433

22,406

103,413

105,022

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

26

(38,962)

(40,240)

Trade and other payables

25

0

0

Other financial liabilities

32

0

0

Provisions

33

(2,337)

(2,312)

Other liabilities

27

(377)

0

61,737

62,470

35,349

35,349

19,197

21,097

7,367

6,024

(176)

0

61,737

62,470

Total assets employed
Financed by taxpayers' equity:
Public dividend capital
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve
Pension reserve
Total Taxpayers' Equity

43

The financial statements on pages 98 to 101 were approved by ‘those charged with governance’ on behalf of the Board of Directors on
22 May 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY

Public dividend
capital (PDC)
Taxpayers equity
at 1 April 2013 - as previously stated
Prior period adjustments

Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve

Pension reserve

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

35,349

21,097

6,024

0

62,470

0

0

0

0

0

35,349

21,097

6,024

0

62,470

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period

0

(2,166)

0

0

(2,166)

Impairments and reversals

0

0

0

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of
property, plant, equipment

0

0

1,609

0

1,609

Asset disposals

0

266

(266)

0

0

Remeasurement of defined net benefit
pension scheme asset/liability

0

0

0

(176)

(176)

Taxpayers equity
at 1 April 2013 - restated

Other recognised gains and losses

0

0

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2014

35,349

19,197

7,367

(176)

61,737

Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2012
- as previously stated

35,349

19,873

10,328

0

65,550

0

0

0

0

0

35,349

19,873

10,328

0

65,550

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period

0

(1,400)

0

0

(1,400)

Impairments and reversals

0

0

(1,680)

0

(1,680)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of
property, plant, equipment

0

0

0

0

0

Asset disposals

0

2,586

(2,586)

0

0

Prior period adjustments
Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2012
- restated

Other recognised gains and losses
Balance at 31 March 2013
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0

38

(38)

0

0

35,349

21,097

6,024

0

62,470

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

Operating surplus/(deficit)

1,362

1,906

Depreciation and amortisation

5,095

4,477

1,618

2,055

(5)

0

(250)

359

4

6

(431)

(786)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Impairments and reversals
Pension liability
(Gain)/loss on disposal
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets

0

0

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

(167)

(2,034)

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

(959)

(1,017)

5,537

4,159

0

0

11,804

9,125

175

225

(10,113)

(4,872)

610

3,770

0

0

(9,328)

(877)

2,476

8,248

(1,255)

(1,243)

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

33

Other movements in operating cash flows
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

16

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of PFI obligations
Capital element of finance lease payments
Interest paid
Interest element of PFI obligations
Interest element of finance lease payments

(9)

(15)

(44)

(1)

(2,770)

(2,717)

(3)

(5)

(559)

(1,070)

Cash flows from other financing activities

0

(26)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

(4,640)

(5,077)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(2,164)

3,171

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts)
at the beginning of the period

43,337

40,166

41,173

43,337

PDC dividends paid

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts) at the end of the
financial period

23
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1 - 1.4.1
1.0 Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS
Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of
the Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM) which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the FT ARM
2013/14 issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained
in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and HM Treasury’s FReM to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the Trust. The accounting policies
have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered
material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain
financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.2 Consolidation
1.2.1 Subsidiaries
Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust has the
power to exercise control or a dominant influence so as to gain
economic or other benefits. The income, expenses, assets,
liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in
full into the appropriate financial statement lines. The capital
and reserves attributable to minority interests are included as a
separate item in the Statement of Financial Position.
The amounts consolidated are drawn from the published financial
statements of the subsidiaries for the year (except where a
subsidiary’s financial year end is before 1 January or after 1 July
in which case the actual amounts for each month of the Trust’s
financial year are obtained from the subsidiary and consolidated).
Where subsidiaries accounting policies are not aligned with those
of the Trust (including where they report under UK GAAP) then
amounts are adjusted during consolidation where the differences
are material. Inter-entity balances, transactions and gains/losses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Subsidiaries which are classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Until 31 March 2013, NHS charitable funds considered to be
subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation in accordance with
the accounting direction issued by Monitor.
From 1 April 2014, the exemption for the consolidation of
charitable funds was removed so that, where appropriate, the
Trusts should consolidate funds that meet the International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements.
Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust (NGH) is the
corporate trustee for the NHFT charitable funds and as such the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of the funds
sits with them. The value of the Trust’s charitable funds at 31
March 2013 was £1.5 million and the latest financial information
from NGH gives the value of the NHFT charitable funds at 30
September 2013 as £1.3 million. As the value of the charitable
funds is not considered to be material to the Trust’s accounts
and the funds are managed on its behalf by NGH, the charitable
funds have not been consolidated in these accounts.
The Trust has not accounted for any subsidiaries in the financial
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statements for this period.

1.2.2 Associates
Associate entities are those over which the Trust has the
power to exercise a significant influence. Associate entities are
recognised in the Trust’s financial statement using the equity
method. The investment is initially recognised at cost.
It is increased or decreased subsequently to reflect the Trust’s
share of the entity’s profit or loss or other gains and losses (e.g.
revaluation gains on the entity’s property, plant and equipment)
following acquisition. It is also reduced when any distribution e.g.
share dividends, are received by the Trust from the associate.
Associates which are classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The Trust has not accounted for any associates in the financial
statements for this period.

1.2.3 Joint ventures
Joint ventures are separate entities over which the Trust has joint
control with one or more other parties. The meaning of control is
the same as that for subsidiaries.
Joint ventures are accounted for by consolidating the Trust’s
share of the transactions, asset, liabilities, equity and reserves of
the entity or using the equity method as appropriate.
Joint ventures which are classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.
The Trust has not accounted for any joint ventures in the
financial statements for this period.

1.2.4 Joint operations
Joint operations are activities which are carried on with one
or more other parties but which are not performed through a
separate entity. The Trust includes within its financial statements
its share of the activities, assets and liabilities.
The Trust has not accounted for any joint operations in the
financial statements for this period.

1.3 Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and
to the extent that, performance occurs and is measured at the
fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of
income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in respect
of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be
delivered in the following financial year, that income is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only
when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is
measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

1.4 Expenditure on employee benefits
1.4.1 Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised
in the period in which the service is received from employees.
The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by
employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial
statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carryforward leave into the following period.

NOTES
1.4.2. - 1.6.1
1.4.2 Pension costs
1.4.2.1 NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of
the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined
benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary
of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the Trust to
identify its share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore,
the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating
expenses as and when they become due.
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are
not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due
to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional
costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the Trust
commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of
payment.

1.4.2.2 Local Government Pension Scheme
The Trust employs a number of staff who are members of
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These staff
transferred under TUPE following a tender process for the
Children’s Respite Service where some services were previously
run by Northamptonshire County Council (NCC).
The LGPS is a multi-employer pension scheme and each
employer’s share of fund assets and liabilities are identifiable.
In accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS)
19 Employee Benefits the scheme is accounted for as a defined
benefit pension scheme as follows:
• The Trust recognises its share of assets within the pension
scheme at fair value and its liabilities at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation to the staff it employs in the
Trust accounts.
• The increase in the liability arising from the pensionable service
earned by the staff during the financial year is recognised
within operating expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
• The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset
is recognised within reserves and reported as Other
Comprehensive Income in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. It comprises:
o Actuarial gains and losses;
o Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset;
and
o Any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net benefit
liability/asset.
• The interest cost arising from the unwinding of the discount
on the scheme liabilities during the financial year is recognised
within the finance costs.
IAS19 requires that all actuarial gains and losses be recognised
immediately in Taxpayers’ Equity. For this purpose, actuarial
gains and losses during the year arising as a result of the remeasurement of the defined benefit liability are recognised in
the Income and Expenditure Reserve reported as an item of
Other Comprehensive Income. Whilst IAS19 permits the re-

measurement of the defined benefit liability to be recognised as
a separate component of Taxpayers’ Equity, Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual requires it to be recognised in the
Income and Expenditure Reserve.
The net surplus or deficit of the scheme is recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position (SoFP). This net surplus or
deficit is the value of the schemes assets allocated to the Trust
less the present value of the schemes liabilities plus or minus the
scheme actuarial gains or losses.
IAS19 does not specify whether an entity should distinguish
current and non-current portions of assets and liabilities arising
from post-employment benefits. The Trust has chosen to include
the net surplus or deficit on the pension scheme within noncurrent assets (where there is a net surplus position) or noncurrent liabilities (where there is a net deficit position).
Accounting for the LGPS as a defined benefit scheme under
IAS 19 requires the Trust to make a number of assumptions. The
Trust has adopted the assumptions recommended by the LGPS
scheme actuary, Hymans Robertson.
The IAS19 assumptions and further information is shown in Note
9.2 to the accounts.

1.4.2.3 National Employment Savings Trust (NEST)
The Pensions Act 2008 introduced a duty on the Trust to
automatically enrol all eligible staff into a workplace pension
scheme.
If staff meet the eligibility criteria for the NHS Pension scheme
they will be automatically enrolled into it. However, if staff are
deemed to be eligible under auto enrolment legislation but do
not meet the eligibility criteria for the NHS Pension scheme they
will be automatically enrolled into the NEST scheme which is the
Trust’s designated alternate scheme.
NEST is a defined contribution pension scheme and details of
the contributions paid by the Trust on behalf of employees are
shown in Note 8 to the accounts.

1.5 Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to
the extent that they have been received, and is measured at the
fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised
in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a
non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment
1.6.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:
• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative
purposes;
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or
service potential be provided to, the Trust;
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
• the item has a cost of at least £5,000; or
• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000
and individually have a cost of more than £250. The assets are
functionally interdependent, have broadly simultaneous
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal
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NOTES
1.6.1 - 1.6.2.4
dates and are under single managerial control; or

over their remaining useful lives.

• items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of
a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or
collective cost.

From 1 April 2008, new fixtures and equipment are carried at
depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially
different from fair value.

Leased assets valued on inception of the lease at less than
£5,000 will not be capitalised and will be expensed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of
components with significantly different asset lives e.g. plant and
equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets
and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

1.6.2 Measurement
1.6.2.1 Valuation

1.6.2.2 Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount
of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic
benefits or service potential deriving from the cost incurred to
replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the
replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition
above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is derecognised.

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially
at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring
or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. All assets are measured
subsequently at fair value.

Other expenditure that does not generate additional future
economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and
maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the Statement of Financial
Position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at
the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over
their remaining useful economic lives in a manner consistent with
the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that
would be determined at the end of the reporting period.
Fair values are determined as follows:
• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for
existing use.
• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.
Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost
of specialised buildings has been estimated for an exact
replacement of the asset in its present location. HM Treasury
has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement
cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where
it would meet the location requirements of the service being
provided, an alternative site can be valued. HM Treasury has
agreed that NHS Foundation Trusts must apply these new
valuation requirements by 1 April 2010 at the latest.
The Trust undertook a valuation based on modern equivalent
assets as at the 31st March 2014 and this is the basis of property
valuations in the Trust’s accounts. An annual desktop review of
asset values is carried out by an External Valuer on behalf of the
Trust to ensure that any significant changes are identified and
reflected in the accounts.
Properties in the course of construction for service or
administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs,
which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by
IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at
replacement cost, as assessed by indexation and depreciation
of historic cost. From 1 April 2008 indexation ceased. The
carrying value of existing assets at that date is being written off
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1.6.2.3 Depreciation

The Trust has determined the useful economic lives for each
category of asset to be:
• Buildings			
determined by 		
				
reference to an external
				valuer
• Plant and machinery		

5 to 15 years

• Medical and other equipment

5 to 15 years

• Transport equipment		

7 years

• Information technology		

5 years

• Mainframe IT equipment		

8 years

• Fixtures and fittings		

5 to 10 years

Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
useful economic lives, or where shorter, the lease term.
Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as
Held for Sale ceases to be depreciated upon the reclassification.
Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in
off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract assets are not
depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the
Trust, respectively.

1.6.2.4 Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve,
except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation
decrease that has previously been recognised in operating
expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that there is an available balance for the asset concerned,
and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.

NOTES
1.6.2.4 - 1.8.1
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are
reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item
of other comprehensive income.

1.6.2.5 Impairments
In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to
a loss of economic benefits or service potential in the asset
are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer
is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and
expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the
impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance
in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the
impairment.
An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or
service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, the
circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals
are recognised in operating income to the extent that the asset
is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the
impairment had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal
is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of
the original impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation
reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment
reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of
other impairments are treated as revaluation gains.

1.6.2.6 De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as Held for Sale once
all of the following criteria are met:
• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms which are usual and customary for such
sales;
• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
o management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
o an active programme has begun to find a buyer and
complete the sale;
o the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable
price;
o the sale is expected to be completed within 12
months of the date of classification as Held for Sale;
and
o the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is
unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant
changes made to it.
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower
of their existing carrying amount and their fair value less costs
to sell. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not
revalued, except where the fair value less costs to sell falls below
the carrying amount.
Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract
conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or
demolished does not qualify for recognition as Held for Sale
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s
economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
scrapping or demolition occurs.

1.6.3 Donated, government grant and other grant
funded assets
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets
are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The donation/grant
is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has
imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied
in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the
donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred within
liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the
extent that the condition has not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted
for in the same manner as other items of property, plant and
equipment.

1.7 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
PFI transactions which meet the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 12 definition of a
service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are
accounted for as on-Statement of Financial Position by the Trust.
In accordance with IAS 17, the underlying assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment at their fair value, together with
an equivalent finance lease liability. Subsequently, the assets
are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or
intangible assets as appropriate.
The annual contract payments are apportioned between the
repayment of the liability, a finance cost and the charges for
services.
The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the
finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

1.7.1 Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the
contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet
the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised
at the time they are provided by the operator, as planned within
the PFI operator’s model, and are measured initially at their fair
value.
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle
replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from
the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement.
No adjustments are made to reflect actual lifecycle costs in year
or the timing of those lifecycles costs as this is not considered
to be practical or cost effective and the impact in year has been
confirmed as not being material.
Any material changes in asset values will be identified through
the five yearly revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

1.8 Intangible assets
1.8.1 Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical
substance which are capable of being sold separately from the
rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or
other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential
be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES
1.8.2 - 1.11.5
1.8.2 Internally generated intangible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing
titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as
intangible assets.
Expenditure on research is not capitalised.
Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the
following can be demonstrated:
• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion
and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use;
• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
or service delivery benefits e.g. the presence of a market for
it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the
usefulness of the asset;

1.11 Financial instruments and financial liabilities
1.11.1 Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from
contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such
as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with
the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are
recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs
i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets
acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases
described below.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

1.11.2 De-recognition

• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available
to the Trust to complete the development and sell or use the
asset; and

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Trust has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the
asset during development.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

1.8.3 Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an
operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of
property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to
the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised
as an intangible asset.

1.8.4 Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all
directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and prepare
the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value.
Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the
same manner as for property, plant and equipment.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

1.8.5 Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful
economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits which is normally expected
to be at least five years.

1.9 Revenue government and other grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other
than income from Clinical Commissioning Groups or NHS
Trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used
to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.

1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is measured using the First In,
First Out (FIFO) method. This is considered to be a reasonable
approximation to fair value.
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1.11.3 Classification and measurement
Financial assets are categorised as loans and receivables.
Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

1.11.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through income and expenditure
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
income and expenditure are financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges.
Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which
are not closely-related to those contracts are separated-out from
those contracts and measured in this category.
Assets and liabilities in this category are classified as current
assets and current liabilities.
These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value, with transaction costs expensed in the
income and expenditure account. Subsequent movements in the
fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
The Trust has not accounted for any financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through income and expenditure in this
period.

1.11.5 Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments with are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets.
The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: current investments,
cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and
other receivables.

NOTES
1.11.5 - 1.13.5
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of a bad debt provision.

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the
effective interest method and credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Where there is an element of uncertainty that a financial asset
is impaired, a bad debt provision is used to reduce the carrying
amount of the asset. The value of the bad debt provision is
determined through an assessment of the percentage likelihood
of collection.

1.11.6 Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in
long-term assets unless the Trust intends to dispose of them
within 12 months of the Statement of Financial Position date.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value, including transaction costs, and measured subsequently at
fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and reported
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of other
comprehensive income. When items classified as available-forsale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in
Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The Trust has not accounted for any available-for-sale financial
assets in this period.

1.11.7 Other financial liabilities
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts
payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial
Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is
calculated using the effective interest method and charged
to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to
finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

1.11.8 Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value,
the carrying amounts are determined as appropriate for the item
being recognised.

1.12 Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses
whether any financial assets, other than those held at fair value
through income and expenditure are impaired. Financial assets
are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the asset.

Where it is certain that a financial asset is impaired, any loss
not previously included in the bad debt provision is recognised
directly through the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
period it becomes known.

1.13 Leases
1.13.1 Finance leases – the Trust as lessee
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased
asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is recorded as property,
plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded.
The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair
value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease
payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of
the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for as an item of
property plant and equipment.
The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability
and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of finance
over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to
finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The
lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

1.13.2 Finance leases – the Trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Trust’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Trust’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

1.13.3 Operating leases – the Trust as lessee
Other lessees are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are
charged to operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added
to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the
life of the lease.

1.13.4 Operating leases – the Trust as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on a straightline basis over the lease term.

1.13.5 Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is
separated from the building component and the classification for
each is assessed separately.
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NOTES
1.14 - 1.19
1.14 Provisions
The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal
or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for
which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash
or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position is the best estimate of the resources required to settle
the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted
using the discount rate published and mandated by HM Treasury.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it.

1.14.1 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling
scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution. The
NHSLA in return settles all clinical negligence claims. Although
the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust.
The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the
NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 33 but is not
recognised in the Trust’s accounts.

1.14.2 Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and
the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to
the NHSLA and in return receives assistance with the costs of
claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any
excesses payable in respect of particular claims, are charged to
operating expenses when the liability arises.

1.15 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose
existence will only be confirmed by one or more future events not
wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets,
but are disclosed in note 34.2 where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed
in note 34.1, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is
not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or
for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

1.16 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity
PAGE 108

finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time
of establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust. HM Treasury
has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the
meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is
payable as a dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by
HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets
of the Trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are
calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities,
except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), (ii)
average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking
Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) deposits,
excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a
short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC dividend
balance receivable or payable.
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the
Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for
the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets
as set out in the pre-audit version of the annual accounts. The
dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to
net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.

1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT
and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable,
the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.18 Corporation Tax
NHS Foundation Trusts are liable to pay corporation tax if they
are carrying out significant commercial activities that are not
part of core health care delivery, such as running a commercial
laundry.
The majority of the Trust’s income is core health care and so
Corporation Tax was not payable by the Trust in 2013/14.

1.19 Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are
sterling.
A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is
translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate
on the date of the transaction.
Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:
• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at
fair value through income and expenditure) are translated at
the spot exchange rate on 31 March;
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost
are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are
translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair
value was determined.
Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on
settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the
Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or

NOTES
1.19 - 1.24.1.2
expense in the period in which they arise.
Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in the same manner as other gains and losses on
these items.

1.20 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf
of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the Trust
has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed
in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM.

1.21 Losses and special payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not
have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service
or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally
should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control
procedures compared with the generality of payments. They
are divided into different categories, which govern the way that
individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant
functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including
losses which would have been made good through insurance cover
had the Trust not been bearing their own risks (with insurance
premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
However the losses and special payments note is compiled
directly from the losses and compensations register which reports
on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future
losses.

1.22 Transfers of functions to/from other NHS/local
government bodies
For functions that have been transferred to the Trust from
another NHS/local government body, the assets and liabilities
transferred are recognised in the accounts as at the date of the
transfer. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value
prior to recognition. The net gain or loss corresponding to the
net assets/liabilities transferred is recognised within income/
expenses, but not within operating activities.
For property, plant and equipment assets and intangible
assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation/amortisation
balances from the transferring entity’s accounts are preserved
on recognition in the Trust’s accounts. Where the transferring
body recognised revaluation reserve balances attributable to
the assets, the Trust makes a transfer from its income and
expenditure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain
transparency within public sector accounts.
For functions that the Trust has transferred to another NHS/
local government body, the assets and liabilities transferred are
de-recognised from the accounts as at the date of the transfer.
The net gain/loss corresponding to the net assets/liabilities
transferred is recognised within expenses/income but not
within operating activities. Any revaluation reserve balances
attributable to assets de-recognised are transferred to the
income and expenditure reserve.

1.24 Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions
are continually reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

1.24.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below) that management has made in
the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

1.24.1.1 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Judgments are required to assign useful lives and residual values
to property, plant and equipment. Key sources of those values
are based on periodic studies of actual asset lives and the
intended use for those assets. Changes in circumstances such
as technological advances, prospective economic utilisation
and physical condition of the assets concerned could result in
the actual useful lives or residual values differing from initial
estimates. Where the Trust determines that the useful life of
property, plant and equipment should be shortened or residual
value reduced, it depreciates the net book value in excess of
the residual value over the revised remaining useful life, thereby
increasing depreciation expense.
Any change in an asset’s life or residual value is reflected in
the Trust’s financial statements when the change in estimate is
determined.

1.24.1.2 Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
The identification of impairment indicators and the
determination of the recoverable amount for assets require
significant judgment concerning the identification and validation
of impairment indicators. Key sources on impairments indicators
are found externally and internally.
External sources of information may be:
• during the period, an asset’s market value has declined
significantly more than would be expected as a result of the
passage of time or normal use;
• significant changes in technology and regulatory environments;
and
• significant negative economic trends.
Internal sources of information may be:
• obsolescence or physical damage;
• significant underperformance relative to expected historical or
projected future operating results; and
• significant changes in the use of its assets or the strategy for its
overall business.
The Trust determines any impairment by comparing the carrying
values of assets to their net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents fair value as assessed through valuation on a modern
equivalent assets basis.
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NOTES
1.24.1.3- 1.27
1.24.1.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue, which excludes discounts, represents the amount
receivable in respect of services provided to customers and is
accounted for on an accruals basis to match revenue with the
provision of service. Revenue is recognised monthly as services
are provided. Revenue in respect of services invoiced in advance
is deferred and recognised on provision of the service. Revenue
in respect of unbilled services is accrued. Judgment is required
in assessing the application of these principles and the specific
guidance in respect of Trust revenues.

1.24.1.4 Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are based on market conditions existing at each statement of
financial position date.
In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions
are continually reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Trust for similar financial instruments.
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below) that management has made in
the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

1.24.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
1.24.2.1 Provisions
The identification of impairment indicators and the
determination of the recoverable amount for assets require
significant judgment concerning the identification and validation
of impairment indicators. Key sources on impairments indicators
are found externally and internally.

1.25 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.
Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less
from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are
shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management.
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1.26 Accounting Policies that have been issued but
have not yet been adopted
The following standards and interpretations have been adopted
by the European Union but are not required to be followed until
2014/15 at the earliest. None of them are expected to impact
on the Trust’s financial statements.
• IFRS9 Financial Instruments
• IFRS10 Consolidated Financial Statements
• IFRS11 Joint Arrangements
• IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
• IAS27 Separate Financial Statements
• IAS28 Associates and Joint Ventures
• IAS32 Financial Instruments: presentation – amendment re
offsetting financial assets and liabilities

1.27 Accounting standards issued that have been
adopted early
There are no accounting standards issued that have been
adopted early for this financial period.

NOTES
2 - 4.1
2. Operating segments
The Trust operates under only one material segment which is Healthcare and income is almost totally from the supply of services.
Management information is produced on a monthly basis to enable the Chief Operating Decision Maker to make informed decisions on the
allocation of resources.
Under IFRS 8, reporting segments para 13, the quantitative threshold is 10% or more of combined revenue in determining a segment.
Non patient care income is 8.6% (5.5% in 2012/13) and therefore disclosure is not required. Included in non patient care income in 2013/14 is
£4.0m of non-recurrent funding from Nene CCG. After taking account of the non-recurrent funding, the underlying position is 6.5%.

3. Income generation activities
The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in patient care.
The Trust does not have any income generation activities whose full cost exceeds £1 million in a full year or is otherwise material. Income from
the sale of goods is immaterial.

4. Revenue from patient care activities
4.1 Operating Income by type

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

911

784

NHS
NHS trusts
PCTs
CCGs and NHS England
Foundation trusts

0

160,580

147,798

0

1,347

1,176

11,383

0

Non-NHS
Local authorities (healthcare services)
Other*

3,192

8,255

164,631

170,795

*Other includes:
Drugs Action Team
CAN
Sure Start & Sexual Assault Referral Centre
Miscellaneous

0

2,690

2,352

1,829

0

2,962

840

774

3,192

8,255

The Trust has no income from the injury cost recovery scheme (nil to 31 March 2013).
There was no income arising from exchange of goods/services (nil to 31 March 2013).
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4.2 - 5
4.2 Operating Income by classification

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

0

2,368

76,630

87,970

0

0

4,650

6,482

0

68,554

Mental Health Trusts
Cost and volume contract income
Block contract income
Clinical partnerships providing mandatory services
Other clinical income from mandatory services
Community Trusts (any trusts providing community services)
Income from PCTs
Income from CCGs and NHS England
Income not from CCGs, NHS England or PCTs
Total income from activities

74,364

0

8,987

5,421

164,631

170,795

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

0

0

164,631

170,795

0%

0%

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

595

195

All income from activities has been deemed to have arisen from commissioner requested services.

4.3 Private patient income
Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as percentage)

5. Other Operating income
Research and development

2,555

2,208

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure

Education and training

1,195

1,197

Non-patient care services to other bodies

1,630

1,945

Profit on disposal of land and buildings

382

0

Rental revenue from operating leases

486

642

Income in respect of staff where accounted on a gross basis

845

1,266

Reversal of impairments of property, plant and equipment

1,645

56

Other revenue*

6,166

2,245

15,499

9,754

Redundancy recharge to Nene/Corby CCG

1,534

0

Recharge to Nene CCG re Healthier Northamptonshire

2,509

0

196

215

*Other revenue includes:

Canteen income
Recharges
Miscellaneous
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913

929

1,014

1,101

6,166

2,245

NOTES
6
6. Operating Expenses
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Employee expenses - executive directors
Employee expenses - non executive directors
Other employee benefits

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

58

60

1,167

1,356

120

128

121,356

125,525

Drug costs

6,619

6,725

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs)

6,585

6,014

Supplies and services - general

2,297

2,192

Consultancy services**

3,146

686

Establishment

2,393

2,844

Transport - business travel only

3,156

3,343

369

387

Premises

8,903

7,894

Rentals under operating Leases

4,053

4,182

Increase/(decrease) in impairment of receivables

(200)

433

Depreciation

5,083

4,459

Amortisation

12

18

3,263

2,111

68

68

1

4

266

248

30

21

Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equipment

102

338

Legal fees

287

270

Research and development

300

211

Training courses and conferences

940

986

91

131

Transport - other

Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Audit fees - statutory audit
Other auditor's remuneration
Clinical negligence
Loss on disposal of land and buildings

Patient travel
Car parking and security

53

77

6,643

5,518

575

1,219

Publishing

125

152

Insurance

107

39

Other services, external payroll

117

164

Redundancy
Special payments*

Losses, ex gratia and special payments
Other

52

411

631

429

178,768

178,643

* = Voluntary Severance Scheme (VSS) expenditure and is disclosed in employee costs (note 8).
** = Includes £2.509m of costs relating to the Healthier Northamptonshire Project which have been recharged to Nene CCG (see note 5).
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NOTES
7 - 7.2
7. Operating leases
7.1 As lessee
The significant lease arrangements where the Trust is the lessee relate to lease of buildings and office equipment (photo copiers and
water coolers) over various lease periods.
Renewal and any restrictions imposed by the lease arrangement will be as per the individual lease agreements held by the relevant
managers within the Foundation Trust.
Limited purchase options are available as per the lease contracts.
2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

4,053

4,182

Contingent rents

0

0

Less: sub-lease payments received

0

0

4,053

4,182

1,347

3,859

376

2,520

154

2,812

1,877

9,191

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments

Total
Total future minimum lease payments
Payable:
Not later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total
No future sublease payments are expected to be received.

The reason for the change in future minimum lease payments between 2012/13 and 2013/14 is due to a change in head lessee
agreements following the creation of NHS Property Services from 1 April 2013.

7.2 As lessor
The leasing arrangements where the Foundation Trust is lessor relate to leasing of vacant areas of buildings where the Foundation 			
Trust is the main occupier.
2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

0

0

486

642

0

0

486

642

Not later than one year

513

623

Between one and five years

350

1,680

Rental Revenue
Contingent rent
Minimum lease receipts
Other
Total rental revenue
Total future minimum lease payments
Receivable:

After five years
Total
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196

1,017

1,059

3,320

NOTES
8 - 8.1
8. Employee costs and numbers
8.1 Employee costs
2013/14
Salaries and wages

Total

Permanently Employed

Other

£000

£000

£000

96,462

89,907

6,555

Social security costs

7,798

7,361

437

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme

11,866

11,468

398

Other pension costs

74

74

0

Termination benefits (on an accruals basis)

7,218

7,218

0

Agency/contract staff

6,826

0

6,826

130,244

116,028

14,216

0

0

0

130,244

116,028

14,216

100,708

94,947

5,761

Social security costs

7,679

7,284

395

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme

11,807

11,504

303

Total gross staff costs
Less income where netted off expenditure
Total staff costs
2012/13
Salaries and wages

Other pension costs

0

0

0

6,737

6,737

0

7,131

0

7,131

134,062

120,472

13,590

0

0

0

Total staff costs

134,062

120,472

13,590

Of the total above:

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

203

247

130,041

133,815

130,244

134,062

Termination benefits (on an accruals basis)
Agency/contract staff
Total gross staff costs
Less income where netted off expenditure

Employee benefits charged to capital
Employee benefits charged to revenue
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8.2

8.2 Average number of people employed
2013/14
Medical and dental

Total

Permanently employed

Other

Number

Number

Number

121

121

0

Administration and estates

564

564

0

Healthcare assistants and other support staff

683

683

0

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff

989

989

0

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Bank and agency staff
Other
Total
Number of employees engaged on capital projects

26

26

0

492

492

0

0

0

0

517

0

517

0

0

0

3,392

2,875

517

4

3

1

2012/13 restated
Medical and dental

122

122

0

Administration and estates

595

595

0

Healthcare assistants and other support staff

729

729

0

1,029

1,029

0

25

25

0

502

502

0

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Bank and agency staff
Other
Total
Number of employees engaged on capital projects
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0

0

0

482

0

482

0

0

0

3,484

3,002

482

8

4

4

NOTES
8.3 - 8.7
8.3 Staff Exit Packages
Number of compulsory
redundancies

Number of other
departures agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost band

<£10,000

29

19

48

£10,000 - £25,000

25

24

49

£25,001-£50,000

21

3

24

£50,001-£100,000

19

0

19

£100,001-£150,000

2

0

2

£150,001-£200,000

0

0

0

96

46

142

Value of compulsory
redundancies

Value of other
departures agreed

Total value of exit
packages by cost band

£000

£000

£000

<£10,000

148

117

265

£10,000 - £25,000

389

368

757

£25,001-£50,000

763

90

853

1,364

0

1,364

£100,001-£150,000

224

0

224

£150,001-£200,000

0

0

0

2,888

575

3,463

Exit package cost band (number) - 2013/14

Total
Exit package cost band (value) - 2013/14

£50,001-£100,000

Total

The compulsory redundancies relate to implementation of the required efficiency programme.
The Trust also implemented a local Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) during 2013/14 called the Voluntary Severance Scheme
(VSS) which are included within other departures agreed.
Exit packages in this note are accounted for on an accruals basis.

8.4 Exit packages in 2013/14 - other (non-compulsory)

Payments
agreed

Total value of
agreements

Number

£000

0

0

46

575

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

0

0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders

0

0

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignation scheme (MARS) contractual costs

Non-contractual payments requiring HM Treasury approval
Total
Of which, non-contractual payments made to individuals where the payment value
was more than 12 months of their annual salary

0

0

46

575

0

0

8.5 Termination benefits
During 2013/14, contracts were terminated for 142 staff at a cost of £3,463k.

8.6 Employee Benefits

There are no other employee benefits.

8.7 Directors’ remuneration
The aggregate directors’ remuneration is £948,831 (£1,097,009 to 31 March 2013). Directors’ employers contributions to the pension
scheme is £106,451 (£126,386 to 31 March 2013). Directors’ employers national insurance contributions is £111,810 (£132,844 to 31
March 2013). All bar one of the directors are members of the defined benefit scheme. Further detailed information is available in the
Remuneration Report.
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NOTES
9 - 9.1
9. Pension costs
9.1 NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the
NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.
nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded, defined
benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and
other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State,
in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a
way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is
accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations in the financial
statements do not differ materially from those that would be
determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the
FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An
outline of these follows:
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in
respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its
recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution
rates.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS
Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2004.
Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for
the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal actuarial valuations
for unfunded public service schemes have been suspended by HM
Treasury on value for money grounds while consideration is given to
recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme
terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service pension
provision due in 2015.
The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to
be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM
Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and
appropriate employee and employer representatives.
The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be
carried out as at 31 March 2012 and will be used to inform the
contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.
b) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the
scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises
an actuarial assessments for the previous accounting period in
conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the
current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably
robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the
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scheme liability at 31 March 2014, is based on the validation data
as at 31 March 2013, updated to 31 March 2014 with summary
global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury
have been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained
in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published
annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions
website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
c) Scheme provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are
summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not
intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the
specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be
obtained.
The scheme is a ‘final salary’ scheme. Annual pensions are normally
based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last 3
years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the
2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members
who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have
their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the
relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some
of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a
maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision
is known as ‘pension commutation’.
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by
the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail
prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous
calendar year. From 2011/12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) will be
used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to
members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling
their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of
twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times
their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional
pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of
the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer who
shows the liability in the statement of comprehensive income at the
time it commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of
payment.
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and
contribute to money purchase additional voluntary contributions
(AVCs) run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free
Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

NOTES
9.2
9.2 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
Under TUPE, following a tender process for the Children’s Respite
Service, 31 staff working for Northamptonshire County Council
(NCC) transferred to the Trust as members of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory
scheme which provides its members with defined benefits relating to
pay and service. The scheme is administered by NCC in accordance
with LGPS Regulations. The Trust became a contributing member
of the LGPS with effect from 1 August 2013 when the Children’s
Respite Service transferred.
In accordance with LGPS regulations the pension liabilities for the
staff who transferred to the Trust (who are active members of the
LGPS scheme) also transferred to the Trust on 1 August 2013.
These pension liabilities have been calculated by the LGPS actuary,
Hymans Robertson LLP, as £1.2 million, calculated on a ‘funding’
basis. As part of the admission agreement into the LGPS the Trust
was admitted on a ‘fully funded’ basis into a closed scheme which
means that new joiners are not permitted to join the LGPS. As such
£1.2 million of assets also transferred from NCC to the Trust at 1
August 2013 to match the liability at the date of transfer. Due to
differences between ‘funding’ and International Accounting Standard
19 Employee Benefit (IA S19) assumptions, the gross pension liability
that the Trust has recognised in its accounts at 1 August 2013 is £1.4
million. As such the net IA S19 pension liability as at 1 August 2013
is £0.2 million.
Employer contribution rates are determined by the scheme’s
actuary based on triennial actuarial valuations, with the last formal
actuarial valuation at 31 March 2013. In accordance with IA S19,
the determination of the present value of the net defined benefit
asset or liability is to be carried out with sufficient regularity such
that the amounts recognised in the financial statements do not

Financial assumptions

differ materially from those that would be determined at end of the
reporting period. In line with this and the LGPS Regulations 2008,
the LGPS fund is required to undertake triennial actuarial valuations
at intervals no longer than three years, to provide a ‘health check’ on
the viability of the fund.
IAS 19 establishes that the cost of providing employee benefits
should be recognised in the period in which the benefit is earned by
the employee. Therefore the financial statements of an employer,
i.e. the Trust, should reflect a liability when employees have provided
a service in exchange for benefits to be paid in the future. This is in
contrast to the cashflow for contributions to the scheme which are
reassessed with every triennial actuarial valuation.
The LGPS is a ‘multi-employer’ defined benefit final salary scheme
but where the scheme assets and liabilities attributable to each
employer can be identified. Therefore the Trust will only recognise its
share of LGPS assets (at fair value) and its share of the LGPS defined
benefit obligation (at present value) in its accounts.
The present value of liabilities of LGPS liabilities attributable to
the Trust are recorded in the SoFP on an actuarial basis using the
‘projected unit credit method’, i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of earnings for current
employees.
This requires benefit to be attributed to the current period (to
determine currents service cost) and the current and prior periods (to
determine the present value of defined benefit obligation).
The assumptions used by the LGPS actuary, Hymans Robertson, in
calculating the Trust’s liabilities and assets are shown below (details
taken from the Hymans Robertson report ‘Actuarial Valuation as at
31 March 2014 for IAS 19 purposes’).

2013/14

1 Aug 2013

Discount rate

4.3%

4.6%

Pension increase

2.9%

2.8%

Salary increase

4.7%

4.6%

Discount Rate
The funds liabilities are essentially the benefits promised to fund members upon retirement or death. The valuation places a present value on
these liabilities in order to assess the funds needed to meet the benefits as they fall due. For this purpose, liabilities are discounted to their net
present value using a discount rate determined by the yield on AA corporate bonds. A discount rate of 4.3% is assumed in the Schedule of
Results March 2014.
Price Inflation/ Pension Increases
Retail Price Inflation (RPI) is typically derived from the market expectation of long term future inflation as measured by the difference between
yields on fixed and index-linked Government bonds at the valuation date and should be consistent with the derivation of the discount rate.
The pension increase assumption is in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and will be calculated as RPI less 0.8% p.a.
Salary growth is assumed to increase by RPI plus 1.0%.
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With effect from 2011, the UK Government announced that pension increases or revaluations for public sector schemes should be based
on the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) measure of price inflation, rather than the Retail Prices Index (RPI) measure of price inflation. The
assumption is taken from the Schedule of Results 2014.
To validate the assumptions used above by the LGPS actuary, the following statistics have been noted:

• CPI at March 2014 was 1.6% (Office of National Statistics) which compares to 2.8% at March 2013 when the assumptions were based.
• RPI at March 2014 was 2.5% (Office of National Statistics) which compares to 3.3% at March 2013 when the assumptions were based.
• The long-term AA-rated Corporate Bond yield at December 2013 was 4.42%, which is not significantly different to the discount rate
assumed in the actuarial valuation (TowersWatson, Global Pension Finance Watch: Fourth Quarter 2013).
Expected Return on Asset by category

2013/14

Equities

2.9%

Bonds

4.7%

Property

5.9%

Cash

4.3%

The expected return on assets is based on the long term future expected investment return for each asset class as at the beginning of the
period. The actual return on scheme assets in the year was 2.7% (for the part year 1 August 2013 to 31 March 2014).
Demographic assumptions
Mortality
Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves in line with the CMI 2010 model assuming the current rate of improvements has peaked
and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% p.a.
The resultant average future life expectancies at age 65 are:

Male

Female

Current pensioners

22.3

24.3

Future pensioners

24.0

26.6

Historic Mortality
The following life expectancies are based on the Funds VitaCurves (at 1 August 2013)
Prospective pensioners

Year of birth, medium cohort and 1% minimum
improvement from 2010

Pensions

Year of birth, medium cohort and 1% minimum
improvement from 2010

Other demographic assumptions used in forming the valuation are:

• Withdrawal and retirement in ill-health are derived from latest assumptions used in the Actuarial Valuation report.
• Commutation – future retirements are assumed to commute pension into tax-free cash up to 50% of HMRC limits for service to 31 March
2008 and 75% for service thereafter.

• Age Retirements – rule of 85 for those born prior to 31 March 1960 and protected under current regulations, 65 for all other members.
It should be noted that since the transfer of Children’s Respite Service to the Trust on 1 August 2013, one employee has left the Trust’s
employ.
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NOTES
9.2 (Cont.)
Present value of defined benefit obligation

2013/14
£000

Opening defined benefit obligation at 1 August 2013

1,375

Current service cost

71

Interest cost

43

Employee contributions

21

Actuarial losses/(gains) - changes in financial assumptions

172

Benefits paid

0

Curtailments

0

Closing defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2014
Reconciliation of opening and closing fair values of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets at 1 August 2013

1,682
2013/14
£000
1,169

Interest income

37

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit (liability)/asset
- expected return on plan assets net of interest income

(4)

- actuarial gains/(losses)

0

- changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in interest income/expense)

0

Contributions by plan participants

21

Employer contributions

82

Assets distributed on settlements

0

Benefits paid

0

Closing value of plan assets at 31 March 2014
Movement in net pension liability during the year

1,305
2013/14
£000

Opening surplus/(deficit) in the scheme at 1 August 2013

(206)

Movement in year
- current service costs

(71)

- interest cost
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Retained Surplus/(Deficit) in SoCI

(6)
(77)

- employer contributions (shown within staff costs in the SoCI)

82

- assets acquired in business transfer
- actuarial (losses)/gains - changes in financial assumptions

0
(172)

- expected return on plan assets net of interest income

(4)

Total re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in SoCI

(176)

Scheme (deficit)/surplus at 31 March 2014 - shown in the SoFP

(377)

IAS 19 requires a five-year history to be disclosed, showing the present value of liabilities, fair value of assets and the surplus/deficit in the scheme.
Since the Trust joined the LGPS on 1 August 2013, only the current year figures are shown; comparatives will be shown in future years.
LGPS pension asset/liability

2013/14
£000

Fair value of employer assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Surplus/(Deficit) at 31 March 2014

1,305
(1,682)
(377)
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9.2 (Cont.) -10

Fair value of plan assets comprises

2013/14

2013/14

1 Aug 2013

1 Aug 2013

%

£000

%

£000

Equity securities

40

520

39

449

Debt securities

18

236

18

216

Private equity

0

1

0

1

Real estate

5

67

5

57

Investment funds and unit trusts

35

452

32

372

Derivatives

0

0

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents

2

29

6

71

100

1,305

100

1,166

Total

The current service cost of £71,000 has been recognised as an operating expense under the heading ‘Employee costs - other pension costs’
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The interest cost of £43,000 has been recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The expected return on plan assets of £37,000 has been recognised as investment revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The 2013/14 resulting movement of the re-measurement of the LGPS defined benefit liability of £176,000 (sum of the actuarial gain on
the defined benefit obligation in the year of £172,000 plus the actuarial loss on plan assets in the year of £4,000) has been included in the
Statement of Taxpayer’s Equity and in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as Other Comprehensive Income below the net surplus/
(deficit) for the year.
The difference between the current service cost and the employer contributions to the scheme which are both included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income has been included in the Foundation Trust’s Cashflow statement as an operating cost which does not result in an in
year cash transaction.
The LGPS actuary, Hyman Robertson, have estimated that the employer’s contribution for the year ended 31 March 2015 payable by the
Trust to the LGPS will approximately be £124,000.
IAS19 requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used. The costs of a pension arrangement require
estimates regarding future experience.
Changes in market conditions that result in changes in the net discount rate (essentially the difference between the discount rate and the
assumed rates of increase of salaries, deferred pension revaluation or pension payment), can have a significant effect on the value of liabilities
reported. A reduction in the net discount rate will increase the assessed value of liabilities as a higher value is placed on benefits paid in the
future. A rise in the net discount rate will have an opposite effect of similar magnitude.
There is also uncertainty around life expectancy of the UK population. The value of current and future pension benefits will depend on how
long they are assumed to be in payment. The disclosures have been prepared using longevity assumptions for average life expectancies after
age 65.
The new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS 2014) supersedes the existing LGPS and changes the provisions of the LGPS scheme.
The LGPS 2014 will be in effect as of 1 April 2014. However the LGPS 2014 provisions only affect new memberships from 1 April 2014 and
since those Trust employees in the LGPS are pre-2014 members of the scheme, the changes do not have an impact on the Trust’s accounting
for the LGPS.

9.3 National Employee Savings Trust pension scheme (NEST)
Employees of the Trust may also be members of the NEST scheme. Under the Pensions Act 2008, the Trust had a responsibility from 1
August 2013 to have a pension scheme available for all staff meeting the criteria to be enrolled under the legislation. In some cases staff may
not be eligible to join the NHS Pension Scheme and so the Trust has set up the NEST scheme as an alternative.
Contributions paid by the Foundation Trust on behalf of employees was £3,526 in 2013/14, the first year the scheme was in operation, and is
shown in Note 8 within ‘Other pension costs’.

10. Retirements due to ill-health
In the period to 31 March 2014 there were 7 early retirements (3 in the period ending 31 March 2013) from the Trust agreed on the grounds
of ill-health. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £650,301 (£180,449 in the period to 31 March
2013). The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.
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NOTES
11 -14
11. Payment performance
11.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Number

£000

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the period

38,353

47,292

Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target

2013/14
35,331

43,951

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

92%

93%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period

847

13,185

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target

770

12,704

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

91%

96%

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the period

39,093

40,664

Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target

35,049

37,127

2012/13

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

90%

91%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period

900

16,671

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target

803

16,208

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

89%

97%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of
goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

11.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

Amounts included in finance costs from claims
made under this legislation

1

1

Total

1

1

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

Bank accounts

138

225

Other

37

0

Total

175

225

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

250

(359)

Total

250

(359)

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

3

5

- main finance cost

2,115

2,178

- contingent finance cost

655

539

1

1

Other interest expense

43

0

Total interest expense

12. Finance income
Interest revenue:

13. Other gains and losses

14. Finance Costs
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

Interest on late payment of commercial debt

2,817

2,723

Other finance costs

0

0

Total finance costs

2,817

2,723
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15.1
15. PROPERTY & PLANT EQUIPMENT
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

AUC*

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

13,989

57,836

0

2,841

0

0

0

13,989

57,836

Additions purchased

0

Reclassifications

0

15.1 Property, plant
and equipment
2013/14
Cost/valuation at 1 April
2013 as previously stated
Prior period adjustment
Cost/valuation at 1 April
2013 restated

Disposals

Plant and Transport
machinery equipment

IT

Furniture
and
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

581

114

11,523

1,501

88,385

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,841

581

114

11,523

1,501

88,385

7,003

0

2,624

54

0

113

184

9,978

2,683

0

(2,773)

0

0

90

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(29)

(294)

(2)

(325)

651

(370)

0

0

0

0

0

0

281

Impairments

0

(3,235)

0

(28)

0

0

0

0

(3,263)

Reversal of impairments

0

1,645

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,645

(285)

(130)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(415)

14,355

65,432

0

2,664

635

85

11,432

1,683

96,286

Depreciation at 1 April
2013 as previously stated

0

770

0

0

339

91

4,075

518

5,793

Prior period adjustments

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Depreciation at 1 April
2013 restated

0

770

0

0

339

91

4,075

518

5,793

Disposals

0

0

0

0

0

(29)

(192)

(1)

(222)

Revaluation/indexation
gains

0

(1,328)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,328)

Impairments

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reversal of impairments

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfer to disposal group
as held for sale

0

(8)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(8)

Charged during the
period

0

2,322

0

0

65

8

2,525

163

5,083

Depreciation at 31
March 2014

0

1,756

0

0

404

70

6,408

680

9,318

Revaluation/indexation
gains

Transfer to disposal group
as held for sale
Cost/valuation at 31
March 2014

Net book value
14,355

63,676

0

2,664

231

15

5,024

1,003

86,968

Donated

Purchased

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

14,355

63,676

0

2,664

231

15

5,024

1,003

86,968

Net book value total at 31
March 2014
Asset financing

14,355

23,439

0

2,664

227

0

5,024

1,003

46,712

Finance Lease / Private
Finance Initiative

Owned

0

40,237

0

0

4

15

0

0

40,256

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Net book value total at 31
14,355
March 2014
* = Assets Under Construction

63,676

0

2,664

231

15

5,024

1,003

86,968
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15.2
15. PROPERTY & PLANT EQUIPMENT
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

AUC*

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost/valuation at 1 April
2012 as previously stated

17,965

76,773

0

916

TCS and merger adjustments

0

0

0

Cost/valuation at 1 April
2012 restated

17,965

76,773

Additions purchased

0

Reclassifications

0

15.2 Property, plant
and equipment
2012/13

Disposals

Plant and Transport
machinery equipment

IT

Furniture
and
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

859

200

9,345

2,176

108,234

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

916

859

200

9,345

2,176

108,234

973

0

2,239

12

31

2,265

152

5,672

185

0

(314)

0

0

129

0

0

0

(21)

0

0

(290)

(117)

(216)

(827)

(1,471)

(83)

(14,973)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(15,056)

(138)

(1,542)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,680)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfer to disposal group
as held for sale

(3,755)

(3,559)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(7,314)

Cost or valuation at 31
March 2013

13,989

57,836

0

2,841

581

114

11,523

1,501

88,385

Depreciation at 1 April
2012 as previously stated

68

14,726

0

0

494

195

2,004

1,104

18,591

Prior period adjustments

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TCS and merger adjustments

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

68

14,726

0

0

494

195

2,004

1,104

18,591

0

(1)

0

0

(229)

(117)

0

(765)

(1,112)

(83)

(14,973)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(15,056)

15

2,096

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,111

Revaluation/indexation
gains
Impairments
Reversal of impairments

Depreciation at 1 April
2012 restated
Disposals
Revaluation/indexation
gains
Impairments
Reversal of Impairments

0

(56)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(56)

Transfer to disposal group
as held for sale

0

(3,144)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(3,144)

Charged during the period

0

2,122

0

0

74

13

2,071

179

4,459

Accumulated depreciation
at 31 March 2013

0

770

0

0

339

91

4,075

518

5,793

Net book value
13,989

57,066

0

2,841

242

23

7,448

983

82,592

Donated

Purchased

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13,989

57,066

0

2,841

242

23

7,448

983

82,592

Net book value total at 31
March 2013
Asset financing

13,989

18,417

0

2,841

236

0

7,448

983

43,914

Finance Lease / Private
Finance Initiative

Owned

0

38,649

0

0

6

23

0

0

38,678

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13,989

57,066

0

2,841

242

23

7,448

983

82,592

Net book value total at 31
March 2013
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15.3
15.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
There are no donated assets in year.
The effective date of revaluation of property, plant and equipment is 31 March 2014.
The revaluation is based on District Valuer valuation, on a modern equivalent asset basis.
Asset lives for each class of asset held are as follows:
Min Life
(Years)

Max Life
(Years)

Buildings excl dwellings

1

67

Plant and Machinery

1

10

Transport equipment

1

5

Information Technology

1

5

Furniture and Fittings

1

10

Software licences (purchased)

1

10

At 31 March 2014, of the total non-current asset values, £335,000 (£300,000 at 31 March 2013) related to land valued at open market
value and £1,105,000 (£1,045,000 at 31 March 2013) related to buildings valued at open market value.
There is no compensation from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up and therefore nil is included in the income statement.
The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated tangible assets still in use is £2,183,390 (£1,288,694 at 31 March 2013).
Properties leased to third parties by the Foundation Trust
Gross
cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Depreciation in
year

Revaluation
in year

Totals

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

12 Wales Street

215

0

0

10

225

399 Cottingham
Road

215

0

0

10

225

39 Billing Road

675

0

0

0

675

1,105

0

0

20

1,125

There are £nil (£208,846 in the 12 months to 31 March 2013) of impairments recognised and £nil (£0 in the 12 months to 31 March 2013)
impairments reversed for these assets.
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16
16. Intangible assets

Software licences
(purchased)

Intangible assets under
construction

Total

£000

£000

£000

203

0

203

0

0

0

203

0

203

Additions purchased

0

0

0

Reclassifications

0

0

0

203

0

203

179

0

179

0

0

0

179

0

179

2013/14
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2013
Prior period adjustments
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2013 restated

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2014
Amortisation at 1 April 2013
Prior period adjustments
Amortisation at 1 April 2013 restated
Charged during the period

12

0

12

191

0

191

Net book value total at 31 March 2014

12

0

12

Purchased

12

0

12

Donated

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

Finance leased

0

0

0

12

0

12

186

17

203

0

0

0

Amortisation at 31 March 2014

Net book value total at 31 March 2014
2012/13
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2012 as previously stated
TCS and merger adjustments
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2012 restated

186

17

203

Additions purchased

0

0

0

Reclassifications

17

(17)

0

203

0

203

161

0

161

0

0

0

161

0

161

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2013
Amortisation at 1 April 2012 as previously stated
TCS and merger adjustments
Amortisation at 1 April 2012 restated
Charged during the period

18

0

18

179

0

179

Net book value total at 31 March 2013

24

0

24

Purchased

24

0

24

Donated

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

Finance leased

0

0

0

24

0

24

Amortisation at 31 March 2013

Net book value total at 31 March 2013
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16 (Cont.) - 19.2
16. Intangible assets (cont.)
The intangible assets within Note 16 relate to externally procured software. In line with tangible IT assets, intangible assets have not been
revalued. The current values are considered to be fair in that they are the result of the application of amortisation on a straight line basis.
The carrying amount of the intangible assets at cost is £203,845 (£203,845 at 31 March 2013). There are no intangible assets which have
indefinite lives and the finite lives of the intangible assets are between nil and five years. There are no intangible assets acquired by government
grant. The value of intangible assets still in use, which have been fully amortised is £157,251 (£157,251 at 31 March 2013). There are no
intangible assets controlled by the Trust which are not recognised as assets because they did not meet the recognition criteria of IAS 38.

17. Impairments
An impairment review was carried out at the end of the financial period as part of the five-year valuation and an impairment of £3,263,000
(£2,111,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2013) on land and buildings has been recognised.
The five-year valuation also identified an increase in land and building assets that had previously been impaired of £1,645,000 (£56,000 in
the 12 months to 31 March 2013).
The net impact on the SoCI is an impairment of £1,618,000 (£2,055,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2013).
No impairments were recognised prior to the disposal of assets during the year (2012/13 impairments prior to sale were recognised re the
Rushden Hospital site at £747,000 and Thorpedale House at £121,000).
The overall revaluation impact was to decrease the value of the Trust’s estate by £8,000 (decrease of £3,735,000 in the 12 months to 31
March 2013) with a £1,609,000 increase (£1,680,000 decrease in the 12 months to 31 March 2013) to revaluation reserves.

18. Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Property, plant and equipment

236

4,917

Total

236

4,917

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

102

104

21

23

123

127

2013/14

2012/13

£000

£000

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period

744

720

Total

744

720

31st March 2013

19. Inventories
19.1. Inventories
Consumables
Other
Total

19.2 Inventories recognised in expenses
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20 - 20.2
20. Trade and other receivables

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

2,434

1,099

Current
NHS receivables - revenue
Receivables due from NHS Charities - revenue
Provision for the impairment of receivables
Deposits and advances
Prepayments

12

0

(133)

(566)

1

0

1,884

1,899

PDC receivable

54

152

VAT receivable

428

239

Other receivables - revenue

1,643

3,167

Other receivables - capital

550

0

6,873

5,990

Prepayments

0

0

Total

0

0

Total
Non-current

The majority of trade is with CCGs as commissioners for NHS patient care services (PCTs previously).
As CCGs are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

20.1 Analysis of impaired receivables

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

30

479

Ageing of impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days

2

5

60 - 90 days

0

2

90 - 180 days

5

0

180 - 360 days
Total

96

80

133

566

Ageing of non-impaired receivables
2,639

3,265

30 - 60 days

0 - 30 days

256

65

60 - 90 days

91

138

90 - 180 days

340

183

180 - 360 days

151

53

3,477

3,704

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

566

139

115

521

Total
31st March 2013
20.2 Provision for impairment of receivables
£000

Balance at start of period
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised

(233)

(6)

Unused amounts recovered

(315)

(88)

133

566

Balance at end of period

31st March 2013
Receivables impaired relate to non NHS trade receivables which have been examined on a case by case basis in terms of their potential recovery.
£000
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21 - 25
21. Other financial assets

There are no other financial assets.

22. Other current assets

There are no other current assets.

23. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April

43,337

40,166

Net change in period

(2,164)

3,171

Balance at 31 March

41,173

43,337

41,097

43,206

76

131

0

0

41,173

43,337

0

0

41,173

43,337

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service
Commercial banks and cash in hand
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP
Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF
31st March 2013
24. Non-current assets held for sale
£000

Property, plant and
equipment

Land

Total

£000

£000

£000

300

100

400

Net book value at 1 April 2013
Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year
Less assets sold in the year
Net book value at 31 March 2014
Net book value at 1 April 2012

122

285

407

(422)

(385)

(807)

0

0

0

0

0

0

415

3,755

4,170

Less assets sold in the year

(115)

(3,655)

(3,770)

Net book value at 31 March 2013

300

100

400

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

25. Trade and other payables

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Current
NHS payables - revenue

2,253

434

Other trade payables - revenue

735

484

Other trade payables - capital

1,127

1,262

Accruals and receipts in advance

10,829

13,021

Social security costs

1,085

1,123

Taxes payable

1,099

1,183

0

0

PDC dividend creditor
Other
Total current trade and other payables

1,620

1,543

18,748

19,050

0

0

Non-current
Total non-current trade and other payables
31st
All
theMarch
above2013
trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year.
PAGE 130

NOTES
26 - 28
26. Borrowings

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

1,269

1,254

8

9

1,277

1,263

38,954

40,224

Current
PFI liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total current borrowings
Non-current
PFI liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total non-current borrowings

8

16

38,962

40,240

31st March 2013
Finance lease liabilities relate to commitments on vehicles and office equipment which have been capitalised. Expected dates of settlement
are consistent with lease termination dates which range between one and five years.
Date of settlement for the Welland PFI scheme is 2035 (30 years from date of completion of construction).
Date of settlement for the Berrywood PFI scheme is 2037 (30 years from date of completion of financial close).

27. Other liabilities

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Deferred income

694

1,653

Total current liabilities

694

1,653

Current

Non-current
Deferred income

0

0

Net pension scheme liability for LGPS

377

0

Total non-current liabilities

377

0

31st March 2013
£000
28. Finance lease obligations
The Trust leased mainly vehicles and office equipment with relevant leasing companies, there are no purchasing options at the end of lease
and there are no favourable terms of renewal.
No contingent rent is payable.
Amounts payable under finance leases:

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments

Gross lease liabilities of which liabilities are due:

18

29

Within one year

10

11

Between one and five years

8

18

After five years

0

0

Less future finance charges

(2)

(4)

Net lease liabilities

16

25

8

9

Between one and five years

8

16

After five years

0

0

16

25

Within one year

31st March 2013
£000
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29 - 31.2
29. Finance lease receivables, i.e. as lessor
There are no finance lease receivables and there is no finance lease rental revenue.

30. Finance lease commitments
Finance leases above £5,000 are capitalised. There are no finance lease commitments.

31. Private Finance Initiative contracts
31.1 PFI schemes off-Statement of Financial Position
There are no off-Statement of Financial Position PFI schemes.

31.2 PFI schemes on-Statement of Financial Position
There are two PFI schemes:

• The Welland scheme in Kettering which opened in December 2005 and comprises two treatment wards and an assessment ward. The term of
the agreement is 30 years from the date of the handover of the asset, which is December 2035.

• The Berrywood scheme in Northampton which opened in December 2008 and comprises four assessment wards, an ICU, elderly beds, low

secure beds and rehab beds. The term of the agreement is 30 years from the commencement of construction of the asset, which is the end of
October 2037.

Under IFRIC 12, the PFI assets are treated as assets of the Trust; as the substance of the contract is that the Trust has a finance lease and
payments comprise two elements – imputed finance lease charges and service charges. Details of the imputed finance lease charges are shown
in the table below.
At the end of the contract period the facilities and equipment will be handed back to the Trust in a specified condition, at no cost. If this
condition is not met then the operator may be required to compensate the Trust, under the terms of the agreement. No renewal options are
noted.
The contracts may be terminated by either party if specified default conditions are met. There are voluntary termination options within the
contracts, although there is a financial penalty if these are exercised. No changes to the contractural arrangements have occurred during
2013/14.
Total obligations for on-Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts due:

Gross PFI liabilities of which liabilities are due:
Not later than one year

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

68,552

71,922

3,322

3,370

Later than one year, not later than five years

12,482

13,016

Later than five years

52,748

55,536

Sub total

68,552

71,922

(28,329)

(30,444)

40,223

41,478

Finance charges allocated to future periods
Net PFI liabilities
Not later than one year

1,269

1,254

Later than one year, not later than five years

4,935

5,204

Later than five years

34,019

35,020

Net PFI liabilities

40,223

41,478

31st March 2013
The PFI contracts set the required performance standard including availability and sets out the associated penalty deductions for unavailability.
£000
There are no other obligations to acquire or build items of property, plant and equipment other than the equipment replacement specified in
the lifecycle values within the unitary charge.
There are no other rights and obligations noted in the contracts.
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31.3 - 33
31.3 Charges to expenditure
The total charged in the period to expenditure in respect of the service element of on-Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts was
£1,203,707 (£1,142,141 2012/13).
31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

Not later than one year

1,947

1,781

Later than one year, not later than five years

9,013

8,300

Later than five years

70,619

70,840

Total

81,579

80,921

31 March 2014

31 March 2013
Restated

£000

£000

Pensions relating to other staff

25

24

Legal claims

79

93

Commitments in respect of the service element:

31st March 2013
£000
32.
Other financial liabilities
There are no other financial liabilities.

33. Provisions

Current

Other

10,913

5,365

Total

11,017

5,482

Non-current
Pensions relating to other staff

456

458

Other

1,881

1,854

Total

2,337

2,312

31st March 2013
£000claims are as advised by the NHSLA who administer claims on behalf of the Trust and outstanding claims are expected to clear by 31
Legal
March 2015.
Pension provisions relate to staff who have retired early on ill health grounds from the NHS Pensions Scheme and are calculated in accordance
with Department of Health guidance. There is no uncertainty with regard to timing or values.
Other includes:

• £8,101k service change/reprovision costs that are based on calculated entitlements and are expected to materialise by the end of
2014/15.

• £771k (£0 at 31 March 2013) for dilapidation works expected at the end of property leases;
• And liabilities which may be due to HMRC for payments to individuals.
£599k (£644k at 31 March 2013) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of
the Trust.

PAGE 133

NOTES
33 - 35.1
33. Provisions (CONTINUED)

Pensions relating to
other staff

Legal claims

Other

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

482

93

7,219

7,794

0

42

9,361

9,403

(24)

(24)

(2,055)

(2,103)

0

(32)

(1,731)

(1,763)

23

0

0

23

481

79

12,794

13,354

25

79

10,913

11,017

Later than one year and not later
than five years

100

0

1,866

1,966

Later than five years

356

0

15

371

At 1 April 2012

482

67

3,086

3,635

0

56

5,161

5,217

(24)

(30)

(390)

(444)

At 1 April 2013
Arising during the period
Used during the period
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2014
Expected timing of cash flows:
Not later than one year

Arising during the period
Used during the period
Reversed unused

0

0

(638)

(638)

Change in the discount rate

(2)

0

0

(2)

Unwinding of discount

26

0

0

26

482

93

7,219

7,794

Not later than one year

24

93

5,365

5,482

Later than one year and not later
than five years

96

0

1,854

1,950

362

0

0

362

At 31 March 2013
Expected timing of cash flows
(restated):

Later than five years

34.Contingencies
34.1 contingencies
There are no contingent liabilities.

34.2 Contingent assets
There are no contingent assets.

35. Financial Instruments
35.1 Financial assets
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2014
Receivables

Loans and receivables

Total

£000

£000

4,421

4,421

41,173

41,173

45,594

45,594

3,626

3,626

Cash and cash equivalents

43,337

43,337

Total at 31 March 2013

46,963

46,963

31st March 2013
£000
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35.2 - 35.5
35.2 Financial liabilities

Payables

Other

Total

£000

£000

14,945

14,945

Obligations under finance leases

16

16

Obligations under PFI contracts

40,223

40,223

849

849

Total at 31 March 2014

56,033

56,033

Payables

15,200

15,200

Obligations under finance leases

25

25

Obligations under PFI contracts

41,479

41,479

93

93

56,797

56,797

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

£000

£000

17,071

16,558

Provisions under contract

Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2013

35.3 Maturity of financial liabilities

In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years

1,299

1,277

In more than two years but not more than five years

3,644

3,942

In more than five years

34,019

35,020

Total financial liabilities

56,033

56,797

Book value

Fair value

£000

£000

31st March 2013

35.4 Fair value of financial liabilities

Provisions under contract

849

849

Total

849

849

31st March 2013

35.5 Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has with
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the way those CCGs are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial
assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in
undertaking its activities.
The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department.
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.
The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The Trust is free to borrow from commercial or public sector sources for capital expenditure, subject to limits set by Monitor, the independent
regulator, and as specified in their terms of authorisation. Therefore, the Trust has a relatively low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.
The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2014 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the Trade and other receivables note.
Liquidity risk
The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCGs and NHS England, which are financed from resources voted annually by
Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from internally generated cash from operations and asset sales. The Trust is not, therefore,
exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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36 - 38
36. Events after the reporting period
There are no known events after the reporting period that impact on the financial statements for 2013/14.

37. Prudential borrowing limit
The prudential borrowing code requirements in section 41 of the NHS Act 2006 have been repealed with effect from 1 April 2013 by the
Health and Social Care Act 2012. The financial statement disclosures that were provided previously are no longer required.

38. Related party transactions
During the period none of the Foundation Trust Board of Directors or members of the key management staff, or parties related to any of them,
has undertaken any material transactions with Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust.
During the year Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with related
parties, as detailed below:
Receipts from related
party

Payments to related
party

Amounts owed to
related party

Amounts due from
related party

£000

£000

£000

£000

Board of Directors

0

0

0

0

Key staff members

0

0

0

0

20

1,469

0

54

Nene CCG

115,845

0

498

381

Corby CCG

8,379

0

909

0

Northampton General
Hospital NHS Trust

1,900

7,345

952

71

1,512

1,492

40

27

297

6

37

87

27,042

0

91

967

4,902

3,723

414

901

0

0

0

12

11,631

0

134

703

2013/14

Department of Health

Kettering General Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust
Greater East Midlands
Commissioning Support Unit
NHS England
Other NHS bodies
Charitable funds
Northamptonshire County
Council
Other

426

20,294

4,360

654

171,954

34,329

7,435

3,857

Board of Directors

0

0

0

0

Key staff members

0

0

0

0

13

0

0

156

151,994

2,213

265

670

Leicestershire County & Rutland
PCT

9,426

0

0

9

Northampton General Hospital
NHS Trust

2,145

6,633

26

104

Kettering General Hospital
Foundation Trust

1,557

1,440

183

45

East Midlands SHA

1,958

3

116

24

Other NHS bodies

1,214

812

199

243

Northamptonshire County
Council

6,341

8

1,274

1,014

29

703

4,047

891

174,677

11,812

6,110

3,156

Total
2012/13

Department of Health
Northamptonshire Teaching
PCT

Other
Total

The LGPS, which is administered by NCC, is a related party to the Foundation Trust. Amounts paid over include an allowance for
administration expenses of 0.9% of payroll costs to NCC for administration of the LGPS in 2013/14.
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39 - 42
39. Third Party Assets
The Trust held £7,048 (£5,399 at 31 March 2013) in cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2014 which relates to monies held by the NHS
Trust on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

40. Intra-Government and Other Balances
Current receivables

Non current receivables

Current payables

Non current payables

£000

£000

£000

£000

54

0

0

0

Balances with NHS England and
CCGs

2,124

0

1,176

0

Balances with Health Education
England

105

0

0

0

Balances with NHS Trusts

109

0

964

0

42

0

47

0

0

0

66

0

54

0

0

0

Balances with local
government

909

0

192

0

Balances central government

448

0

4,302

0

Intra-Government balances

3,845

0

6,747

0

Balances with bodies external to
government

3,028

0

12,001

0

At 31 March 2014

6,873

0

18,748

0

156

0

0

0

Balances with SHAs

84

0

116

0

Balances with PCTs

838

0

271

0

Balances with NHS Trusts

120

0

108

0

53

0

294

0

1,666

0

1,462

0

239

0

3,859

0

0

0

0

0

Intra-Government balances

3,156

0

6,110

0

Balances with bodies external to
government

2,834

0

14,593

0

At 31 March 2013

5,990

0

20,703

0

Balances with Department of
Health

Balances with other FTs
Balances with Special Health
Authorities
Balances with other DH bodies

Balances with NHS and
Department of Health

Balances with other FTs
Balances with local
government
Balances central government
Balances with other government
bodies

41. Losses and Special Payments
There were 47 (66 in the 12 months to 31 March 2013) cases of losses and special payments totalling £53,000 (£411,000 in the 12 months to
31 March 2013) accrued during 2013/14.

42. Other financial commitments
The Trust has not entered into any non-cancellable contracts which are not leases, PFI contracts or other service concession arrangements.
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43. Revaluation reserve

At 1 April 2013

Revaluation reserve
- property, plant and
equipment

Revaluation reserve Total revaluation reserve
assets held for sale

£000

£000

£000

5,763

261

6,024

Prior period adjustments

0

0

0

At 1 April 2013 restated

5,763

261

6,024

Impairments

0

0

0

Revaluations

1,609

0

1,609

Disposals

0

(266)

(266)

Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over
historical cost depreciation to the Income and Expenditure
Reserve

0

0

0

(5)

5

0

7,367

0

7,367

10,328

0

10,328

Other reserve movements
Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2014
At 1 April 2012
Prior period adjustments

0

0

0

At 1 April 2012 restated

10,328

0

10,328

Impairments

(1,680)

0

(1,680)

Revaluations

0

0

0

(2,586)

0

(2,586)

(38)

0

(38)

(261)

261

0

5,763

261

6,024

Disposals
Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over
historical cost depreciation to the Income and Expenditure
Reserve
Other reserve movements
Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2013

External auditors
Our external auditor is KPMG LLP. The total cost of their statutory work for 2013/14 is £67,980. These costs include auditing the annual
accounts, this Annual Report and the Quality Account.
On occasion our external auditors (KPMG) provide us with non-audit services (for example tax advice). We have put in place a policy to
ensure that adequate safeguards are in place to ensure auditor independence is maintained. This policy requires that the Finance Director
approves all non-audit work in advance, with larger pieces of work being approved by the Audit Committee. For specific pieces of work,
safeguards are reported to the Audit Committee.
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QUALITY REPORT

1

STATEMENT
OF QUALITY

SECTION ONE:
STATEMENT OF QUALITY
from Chief Executive, Angela Hillery
As a leading healthcare provider in the community, delivering quality goes hand in
hand with demonstrating compassion in our care. We make careful considerations of
our investment in quality, our commitment to our continuity of service and ongoing
improvement.
Our quality account is a significant contribution to this annual report, because
quality is at the core of our organisation and the services we provide. It is central to
what our regulators and auditors expect, and it is central to what we expect of our
staff. Excellence is not easily achieved, and we have made significant steps to ensure
our care services are constantly progressing - safely, sustainably and effectively. Our
progress in the last year has helped us get to a position where we are able to move
forward to an innovative future, where we can be at the forefront of patient-centred,
progressive care.
Personal, tailored and respectful health and wellbeing care continues to be our
focus. By improving life quality through physical and mental health care, we bring
value to the people of Northamptonshire. It is a big team effort to do so and
developing a culture in which our staff feel valued is essential. I am incredibly proud
of how our staff deliver quality care. Collaboration takes place between our staff,
carers, service users, commissioners and local improvement networks – all of whom
are passionate about caring for patients. By working together to achieve innovation,
our collaboration and alignment bring a brighter future for the people who need us.
Our quality account reflects what our staff do every day, it represents what we aspire
to and the progress we have made. I appreciate you taking the time to learn more
about our quality, and I welcome your feedback, which is why my contact details are
listed here. To the best of my knowledge and belief, this quality account is true and
accurate. We look forward to sharing more about our compassionate care in future.
I hope you find this report informative, and would like to thank everyone who
contributed to its development.

Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014

Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Sudborough House
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road
Kettering NN15 7PW
Email: chief.executive@nhft.nhs.uk
Telephone: 01536 452045
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Introduction
The NHS has recently undergone a period of significant transformation, which has brought about constructive change and
opportunity. While the Francis Report’s findings of failings at the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust brought about a
degree of this change there has also been a continued commitment from the NHS to focus on and develop quality of care.
We continue to develop and improve on our quality achievements from last year, with our insistence on getting the basics right.
We expect our staff to deliver a consistent, dependable and quality service at all times. By working closely with our staff, patient,
service users and carers and external stakeholders, we have used feedback to shape our actions and areas for improvements.
Our patients, service users and carers can expect quality services that are personal, safe and effective. Our quality strategy
outlines how we keep quality central to what we do every day and deliver services to the highest possible standard. In this report,
we illustrate how work in our organisation has progressed in these areas during the year.
Accountability for ensuring delivery of our quality strategy and quality improvement priorities rests with the Director of
Corporate Support, who has overall responsibility for quality governance, and compliance. Responsibility for ensuring clinical
quality is represented at Board level and rests jointly with the Interim Director of Nursing and Quality and the Medical Director.
Our quality assurance and improvement agenda is based on the three quality domains–patient safety, patient experience and
clinical effectiveness. These also underpin our strategy this year.

Our strategy
Our vision to be a leading integrated care provider in Northamptonshire for health and wellbeing services means creating
tangible, measurable quality goals and our 2013/14 plans were based on four key deliverables to be applied to all our services.

1

Quality

Universal continuous
improvement in patient
safety, patient experience
and clinical effectiveness

2

Relationships

Use of the Friends and Family
Test to identify whether more
patients were recommending
us than not

Aligned with these deliverables, and underpinned by our quality strategy, we established clinical and quality priorities based
around three quality domains, which are, in turn, linked to the five domains outlined in the National Outcomes Framework.

Our domain

National Outcomes Framework domains

Patient safety

Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them from avoidable harm

Patient experience

Enhancing the quality of life of people with long term conditions
Aiding recovery from episodes of ill health or injury
Ensuring people have a positive experience of care
Preventing premature death

Clinical effectiveness
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Aiding recovery from episodes of ill health or injury

Our future strategy
Within the three quality domains, we have developed and identified priorities for next year which have been endorsed by our
Board of Directors. We have again incorporated feedback from service users, carers and other stakeholders to define these
priorities, as well as information from quality indicators and requirements from national and local regulatory and commissioning
bodies.
Our improvement priorities for next year are driven by five key themes linked to our strategic goals:
1 Clinical effectiveness and assurance of transformation and cost improvement schemes
2 Staff and patient experience and views which are key to impacting on quality
3 Quality assurance of new business in respect of improving patient experience
4 Issues of continuing concern from historic governance information
5 Using data intelligently

3

Integration

Offering integrated
personal care using
the breadth of the
organisation

4

Performance

Care universally delivered
through strong performance
management
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2

2014/15 QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT
PRIORITIES

SECTION TWO: 2014/15 QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES
Our recent meetings with key stakeholders, including service users, governors and external organisations, enabled us to share
our proposed priorities for the coming year and to address areas of quality important to those who work with us and who use
our services. It is crucial we continue to progress on priorities identified last year, with safety remaining a key driver.

Patient safety
Continuing to reduce harm as a
result of falls

Improving compliance with
medicines management

Safer staffing, capability and
skills

Our reports of reduced harm
from falls paint a healthy picture
of our reporting culture and
governance systems. However,
with an increase in the number
of rehabilitation beds we provide
and the opening of our newly
built inpatient unit at St Mary’s
Hospital, we anticipate increased
numbers of falls to be reported
next year, due to the net increase
in beds. We would also expect
a decrease in the level of harm
as a result of falls in the new
unit at St. Mary’s, which has
been built specifically for older
patients at risk of a fall. For this
reason we consider it prudent to
prioritise the monitoring of falls
and fall-related harm in these
units to ensure that the changes
introduced improve the safety of
the patients using our services.

Care Quality Commission
(CQC) and internal reviews
of inpatient and community
services, coupled with the
findings of a serious incident this
past year, have highlighted that
there is room for improvement
in adherence to our medicines
management policies. We
reflect high standards of practice
in our policy statements and,
when adhered to, the practice
offers assurance of safe and
effective care in our organisation.
The medicines management
policies highlight the main good
practice requirements, which
can be audited across services
to confirm current levels of
compliance and form the basis
of a quality improvement plan for
each area.

As part of a national initiative
that followed the outcome of the
inquiry into the quality of care at
the Mid Staffordshire NHS Trust
and as a result of the Francis
Report recommendations, we
will introduce the Safer Staffing
plans. The recommendation that
all trusts review their staffing
levels and monitor the required
numbers, capability and grade
to ensure the right people are in
the right place at the right time
with the right skills to deliver
quality care is a critical plan to
implement.
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Patient experience
The Francis Report made it clear that trusts should be making every effort to listen to patients and carers and to increase the
range of ways in which they communicate, gain feedback and engage with them. The indicators below allow us to demonstrate
the importance we are placing on promoting patient and carer engagement and recognising the value that involvement and
feedback can bring to our services.

Improve patient and carer
involvement in care planning

Ensure giving feedback is easy for our
patients and their carers

Reduction in complaints about
attitude and communication

Following feedback from patients
and carers, we are addressing the
need to ensure their involvement
in care planning and promoting
person-centred and recoveryfocused care.

By increasing and promoting the
range of ways in which feedback can
be given, specifically by introducing
the ‘I want great care’ initiative that
allows real time and practitionerlevel feedback, we ensure there are
more systematic ways to enable us
to act on the information we are
given. It also allows us to demonstrate
to our stakeholders the changes
we have made as a result and that
our patients, carers and visitors are
listened to and have their comments
acted routinely acted upon.

To address a trend in feedback
regarding the attitude and
communication of staff this past
year, we are focused on measurable
actions to reduce complaints.
In building our capable culture –
one that establishes dignity and
respect for our patients – we are
embedding training programmes
and a supervision and appraisal
system that values positive,
proactive attitudes and effective
communication.

Clinical effectiveness
Develop clinical effectiveness indicators
By continuing the implementation of National Institute
for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guidance
and the monitoring of related care using our audit
programme, we are developing four indicators that will
ensure that our practice is demonstrably underpinned by
best practice.

Participate in national audits
Our participation in national audits allows us to
benchmark ourselves against other health organisations,
learn from outcomes and share best practice.

Staff engagement
We have an ambition to reach a level of 80% of our staff
recommending the Trust as a place to work and receive care.
We shall measure this through the Family and Friends test
questions. Listening to staff feedback through this indicator
is important as it gives us a clear measure of the confidence
and pride our staff have in the services they provide. It is a
direct indicator of the quality and culture of services in a trust.
There is evidence to show staff satisfaction is directly linked to
quality of care and other ways of collecting measures of staff
satisfaction will also be undertaken.
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3

2013/14 QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT
PRIORITIES

SECTION THREE: 2013/14 Quality
improvement priorities
Patient safety
Pressure ulcer prevention
In 2013/14 we aimed to reduce avoidable pressure ulcer incidence and harms by 50%. We continued this priority
from 2012/13 because although improvements had been made we had not achieved the target in that year and could
make further improvements. The graph below shows our progress in this past year in comparison with the previous
year and a significant increase in the proportion of unavoidable pressure ulcers compared with avoidable pressure
ulcers. The graph also illustrates periods where we have had no pressure ulcers recorded such as January 2014.

A reduction in avoidable pressure ulcers, reflecting the level of care we provide.
Trustwide avoidable and unavoidable grade 3 and 4 acquired pressure ulcers
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We also aimed to eliminate acquired pressure ulcers.
We cannot prevent inherited pressure ulcers (patients
who come into our services already with a pressure ulcer),
however we strive to prevent patients acquiring pressure
ulcers. Sometimes, despite our best efforts, some patients
still get pressure ulcers in our care, likely as a result of
their condition or not following their treatment plan.
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The table below demonstrates improved recording of pressure ulcers and a reduction in grade four acquired pressure ulcers.
Grade three and four pressure ulcers are the most serious and we monitor these closely, undertaking detailed investigations to
highlight possible care improvements.

Comparison of pressure ulcers reported between 2012/13 and 2013/14
12/13

13/14

Total

Acquired (whilst in our care) - Grade 2

223

507

730

Acquired (whilst in our care) - Grade 3

35

72

107

Acquired (whilst in our care ) - Grade 4

20

8

28

Inherited (from another area) - Grade 2

305

507

814

Inherited (from another area) - Grade 3

136

217

353

Inherited (from another area) - Grade 4

45

61

106

Since November 2013 we have been
tracking and reviewing information
regarding where community patients
with pressure ulcers live, to understand
if there is a correlation between
location and a pressure ulcer being
acquired or inherited. The table to the
right indicates that we deal with more
inherited pressure ulcers than acquired.

Acquired Inherited
Not in residential
home

Total

Acquired
% (as a %
of total)

Inherited
% (as a %
of total)

105

163

268

39.18%

60.82%

In residential
home

51

86

137

37.22%

62.78%

Total

156

249

405

38.51%

61.49%

The Trust has made progress in some of the inpatient units, which are now recording the number of pressure ulcer free days.
As the year progressed, more units have recorded more consecutive pressure ulcer free days, as shown in the table below.

Unit

Number of consecutive
pressure ulcer free days

Cransley Hospice

531

Cynthia Spencer Hospice

123

Beechwood (rehab unit)

153

Brookview (older people inpatient unit)

245

Riverside (older people inpatient unit)

549

Carlton (older people inpatient unit)

454

Ian Bennett (older people inpatient unit)

436

The three units with the lower
numbers have only been recording
information since October,
November and December 2013,
whereas the others have been
collecting data for over a year.
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Falls Prevention
Compared with 2012/13, over the year our results have improved, with falls declining until January 2014. We have
also concentrated on reviewing the incidence of falls resulting in a fracture to assess the level of harm resulting from
falls, which is recorded below.

Slips trips and falls comparison 2012/13 and 2013/14
Slips trips and falls incidents (by actual harm)
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Fractures and harms comparison by month
Number of fractures by actual harm
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There is little difference in the incidence of slips, trips and falls year-on-year. In November last year we saw a slight increase in
fractures, however there was an overall decrease in December. We will continue to monitor falls as part of our safety programme.
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Severity of harm from falls

8 resulted in moderate harm

6 resulted in the
patient’s death

14 in severe harm

3 deaths were community
patients in their own homes
who died as a result of
their injuries

+65

3 deaths were inpatients who
sustained fractures on the ward
and were taken to the local acute
trusts where they died from
underlying health conditions
and not necessarily from
the injuries sustained
from the fall

The thematic review of fractures in the previous
year (April 2011 to January 2012) showed that
most falls occurred in older people’s wards, all but
one patient, being over 65 years of age.
We need to concentrate our analysis, learning
and implementation of change in these areas,
and to continue to look at falls in these
specific areas in more detail.

We reinstated
the Falls Group
With a Falls Project Manager to lead on this
quality priority, with close monitoring of falls,
their causes and identification of
improvements to be made.
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Reduction in
medication incidents
The Medicines Safety Group,
a multidisciplinary group with
representation from across
the Trust, has met throughout
2013/14 to review all
reported medicines incidents.
The group’s main purpose
is to encourage Trust-wide,
consistent reporting of
medication safety incidents,
errors and near-miss events
identified at the four stages
of the medication process.
This includes prescribing,
administering, monitoring and
storing. Their purpose is also
to support the identification,
and subsequent review, of
themes relating to medication
safety at both a Trust-wide
level and within specific units,
services or teams.
The graph to the right shows
the top five incidents recorded
relating to medication. Overall
incidents have increased
from 2012/13, and those in
the category of prescribing
errors have almost doubled.
Analysing the data, it is
clear that reporting levels
have increased markedly
in those service areas that
received training in electronic
incident reporting at the end
of this period. Furthermore,
prescribing errors with no
resulting harm have risen from
14 to 30 year-on-year and low
harm has increased from one
to seven in the same period.
Although we did not achieve
our aim of reducing the
number of errors, the figures
demonstrate good governance
systems in medications rather
than poor practice as reporting
is encouraged within the Trust.

Medication incidents and type

Top 5 medication incidents comparing 2012/13 and 2013/14

Inadequate stock of
medication / medication not available

20
15
21

Tablet found

18
Patient refusing to take
medication

35
15
39

Prescription Error

21

Prescribing errors have
increased but resulting
level of harm is reduced

144

Drug administration
error (by staff)

151
13/14
12/13

Patient experience
Improving listening to patients and implementation of learning
Our investment in listening to patients, service users and carers is followed through
with change and improvement action plans. Our methods of understanding the patient
experience include:
• Patient stories which are now shared at Board meetings
• Extending coverage of the Friends and Family Test across services
• Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) roadshows
• Including patient experience information in our internal inspection programme
• Inviting patients, service users and carers to comment
• Patient surveys on discharge and whilst receiving care
• Engagement events, including the locality wellbeing events
Patient stories were first introduced in 2012/13 and have continued to be collected.
During the year, for the first time, patient stories were presented at Trust Board meetings.
These meaningful patient experiences have also been shared across the organisation.
We have continued to roll out the Friends and Family Test (FFT) and have implemented
it in all inpatient units. We have also introduced this to community services and the table
(right) highlights the response rate by month and category of recommendation.
We have seen the number of responses increase throughout the year and it is encouraging
to see that most patients who responded would be extremely likely to recommend our
services. There is still scope for improvement regarding the number of patients discharged
from our services who complete the responses.
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Responses to the Friends and Family Test

Month/Year

Total Number of
Responses

Extremely Likely/
Likely

Neither likely nor
unlikely

Unlikely/
Extremely
Unlikely

Don’t know

Apr 13

75

49

9

17

0

May 13

95

91

2

1

1

Jun 13

185

173

5

5

2

Jul 13

245

230

6

6

3

Aug 13

248

240

2

2

4

Sep 13

235

220

3

6

6

Oct 13

284

259

7

10

8

Nov 13

429

408

12

4

5

Dec 13

272

255

5

6

6

Jan 14

394

367

12

9

6

Feb 14

434

413

6

6

9

Mar 14

361

340

6

6

9

Total

3257

3045

75

78

59

Friends and Family Test responses: a survey of 3,257 people

3%

Neither likely nor unlikely

2%

Unlikely/extremely unlikely

1%

Don’t know

94%

Extremely likely/likely

94% who responded would recommend our services to others
The Friends and Family Test has been introduced in all inpatient services for the last year, with an additional roll-out across
community services. Our target is to ensure all services assume the Friends and Family Test by October 2014. Although
figures only refer to a proportion of our services, they provide a firm indication of whether or not patients would recommend
our services.
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As a result of the Francis Report and subsequent Clywd
Report on complaints handling, we have carefully reviewed
how we use our complaints process to listen to patients,
service users and carers. We have now simplified the process
to make it more responsive and less bureaucratic. In addition,
in line with the recommendations of the Francis Report, we
have incorporated feedback from patients, service users,
staff and governors to validate the Trust self-assessment
undertaken in late 2013.

• Carer handbook originally developed for inpatient mental
health has been introduced to other units

We have also introduced improved ways of gathering feedback
from stakeholders, in particular from GPs. A new system,
managed by PALS, allowing GPs to raise concerns with us
went live on 3 December 2013. This mirrors existing systems
within the local acute hospitals and this service has been
promoted with the assistance of the GP Liaison Manager
based at Kettering General Hospital.

The Triangle of Care is a national initiative concentrating
on developing the coordinated approach to planning care
between patients, service users, carers and staff. Championed
by one of our carer governors, the programme commenced in
two mental health inpatient wards.

Increased patient and carer involvement
We have used the following initiatives as opportunities to
involve patients, service users and carers in the organisation
throughout this past year:
• Engagement in the Triangle of Care initiative
• Involvement in the development of the Service User
Involvement Strategy and Policy

• Membership and attendance at the Patient Experience
Group
• Organisation of attendance at and involvement in the
Service User and Carer Conference
• Involvement in the Patient Lead Assessment of the Care
Environment (PLACE) Programme

As well as inputting the development of the Trust’s
Involvement Strategy, it has been crucial that patients, service
users and carers have led the annual involvement conference
and working group.
The PLACE programme replaced the Patient Environment
Assessment Team (PEAT) and, as part of that initiative, we
engaged 50% of the team members from service users and
members of the Trust. Next year, we aim to improve the
2013/14 scores shown in the table below.

Site name

Site type

Cleanliness

Food and
hydration

Privacy, dignity
and wellbeing

Condition
appearance and
maintenance

Manfield Health
Campus

Community

97.21%

83.62%

100%

91.14%

St. Mary's Hospital

Mixed acute and mental
health/learning disabilities

99.01%

95.56%

98.16%

91.72%

Isebrook Hospital

Acute/specialist

98.25%

98.28%

90.48%

91.96%

Berrywood
Hospital

Mental health and
learning disabilities

97.30%

94.55%

97.08%

87.33%

The Sett

Mental health only

97.95%

93.35%

78.06%

88.39%
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Clinical effectiveness
Integrated health assessments
Physical and mental health are inextricably
linked. Good mental health is known as a
protective factor against the risk of diseases such
as cardiovascular disease, cancer and diabetes.
People with diagnoses of severe and enduring
mental ill health are at increased risk of physical
illnesses and conditions, including coronary heart
disease, diabetes, infections, respiratory disease
and greater levels of obesity.
A programme of physical health assessments
has been implemented including tracking and
monitoring behaviour and lifestyle – specifically
regarding smoking, alcohol consumption and drug
use. Referral processes have been put into place
for patients to access ongoing help and treatment
as needed. Specific monitoring of BMI, blood
sugar, cardiovascular and stroke risk have been
implemented across all community mental health
and inpatient teams.
We have developed integrated working between
district nursing and intermediate care teams
with the intention of reducing the number of
patients requiring admission to hospital and to
work towards earlier discharging of patients from
hospital.
The work with district nurses has included
training in the use of the Community Early
Warning Score (CEWS), which enables nurses
to assess patients and therefore avoid patients
being admitted to hospital. In the last six months,
there has been a 23.9% increase in patients
who have not needed hospital admission. When
the cases were reviewed, of the 71 patients who
were admitted to hospital in November, 55 were
admitted with symptoms different from the ones
listed on the district nurse caseloads. These
symptoms may well have been unavoidable.
However, 16 patients might have been able to
receive care in the community had their GPs
referred them to the team. We are continuing to
encourage GPs to use the admission avoidance
pathway and will continue to monitor the success
of its use. These initiatives will continue to
be priorities, as early results show successful
implementation will take time.
Improving patient outcomes using patient
reported outcome measures (PROM) and patient
reported experience measures (PREM)
We implemented a pilot in two community areas
with Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT)
and two mental health inpatient units using the
PROM, South Warwickshire and Edinburgh
Mental Wellbeing Score (SWEMWBS), and
included outcome measures in our performance
indicators.

Results
62%

65%

29%

29%

of patients in
the inpatient
area had
the PROM
completed

of patients in the
two community
teams had
the PROM
completed

of patients in the
inpatient area
had the PREM
completed

of patients in
the community
teams had
the PREM
completed

At the beginning of January 2014 SWEMWBS was made available on
ePEX, our electronic record system. The three-experience checklist
(PREM) has been available on ePEX as of 17 March 2014.

Inpatient wards

6 patients out of
84 admissions were
refused or deemed
inappropriate

62% of remaining
admissions
(48 patients)
completed a
SWEMWBS form

In the last quarter
2013/14, 65% of
patients completed
a form

Perhaps either due to PREM being introduced later or simply due to it
being another piece of paperwork, 20 patients completed a form (29%)
which is significantly less than the SWEMWBS

Community services

52

34

15

The CMHTs saw 52
new patients during
the last quarter

65% (34 patients)
had a completed
SWEMWBS form

Only 15 patients
(29%) completed the
PREM, which could
be attributed to similar
reasons listed above

SWEMWBS outcomes scores

PREM analysis

• Our average initial score in
the community was 16.0

The key themes arising for all
patients are: understanding what
is happening, continuity of care,
involvement of family and friends,
respect, being listened to and easy
access to services. Additionally, in
the community, service users felt
that understanding themselves
and their condition is important.
To continue with this work we have
completed the following actions:

• The average ‘well’ person in
England scores 25.3 (according
to 2010 data)
• Our average initial score for
patients in a non-psychotic
cluster was 15.2
• The average score for those in
a psychotic cluster is 18.5
• Our average initial score
for inpatients was 15.8
• The average initial score for
inpatients in a non-psychotic
cluster is 13.4
• The average score for those in
a psychotic cluster is 19.1

• We have improved data collection,
particularly at discharge. As we have
only been collecting data at initial
assessments, using an electronic
form may further assist this.
• We encouraged more teams to
be involved in collecting PREMs.
• We have compared how we have
performed against other pilot sites.
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Statements of
assurance from
the Board
During the year, we
provided 100 services
as fully contracted
service lines and 46 as
sub-contracted services
under a Service Level
Agreement making a
total of 146 services. We
have reviewed all the data
available on the quality
of care in all of these
relevant health services.
The income generated
by the relevant health
services reviewed in
2013/14 represents
91.4% of the total
income generated from
the provision of relevant
health services by the
Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust for
2013/14.

Participation
in national
clinical audits
and confidential
enquiries

Number
required

Number
audited

%

National
Audit of
Schizophrenia

100

100

100%

The 2013/14 audit report has not
yet been published.

National
Audit of
Intermediate
Care

All patients
who were
eligible were
included

All patients
who were
eligible

100%

We met all the quality standards
and exceeded four of the standards.
We submitted figures for all eligible
patients. We await the full report at
the Audit Committee.

Trust will
choose audit
sample

N/A

The audit is currently at the
planning stage. The Chief
Pharmacist is leading the project,
with results expected later in the
year. Prescribing for ADHD in
children, adolescents and adults:
The audit report has been received
from POMH and shared with
CAMHS, Community Paediatrics
and Adult Services and they have
been asked to review the report
and produce and implement a local
action plan to improve practice as
required. Monitoring of patients
prescribed lithium: Data
collection was undertaken in May/
June 2013. The audit report has
been received from POMH and
an action plan will be developed
accordingly and reviewed within
the audit on Older People’s Mental
Health Services.

All suicides
reported to
the coroner

100%

The most recent recommendations
are more strategic e.g. ensuring the
media portray mental health issues
sensitively, work at reducing access
to means etc. The suicide and
self-harm agenda is on the safer
services agenda. We have an action
plan for local recommendations
which have been completed except
for completion of STORM training.
It has been rolled out but will
continue to be monitored until we
are fully compliant with training.
There is a tool kit audit for ward
managers and an annual one for the
Trust. Therefore the Trust will need
to work collaboratively with other
agencies to achieve the most
recent recommendations.

Title

Prescribing
Observatory in
Mental Health
13a

169

7d

76

4b

160

National
Confidential
Enquiry into
Suicides and
Homicides

All coroner
reported
incidents are
reported as
part of this
enquiry

National audits
During 2013/14 three
national clinical audits
and one national
confidential enquiry
covered health services
relevant to the Trust.
We participated in all
the national audits and
confidential enquiries in
which we were eligible to
participate.
These national clinical
audits and national
confidential enquiries,
for which data collection
was completed during
2013/14, are listed
(see right, alongside
the number of cases
submitted to each
audit or enquiry) as a
percentage of the number
of registered cases
required by the terms of
that audit or enquiry.
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Actions taken to improve quality of
healthcare

The following table illustrates the
number of local clinical audits, which
we reviewed in the reporting period
2013/14, relating to audits undertaken
in 2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14.
The Clinical Audit and Effectiveness
Committee will continually monitor
the outcomes and reports received,
as well as review re-audits and the
effectiveness of changes as a result.

Year audit undertaken

Reports reviewed by the Clinical
Audit and Effectiveness Committee
in 2013/14

2011/12

3

2012/13

13

2013/14

29

These are the number of reports received by the Clinical Audit and Effectiveness Committee and do not include those
that were reported on in the year they were undertaken or those that are still in progress in 2013/14.
Audits reported to the Clinical Audit and Effectiveness Committee (CAEC) from April 2013 (2011/12 audits)
Outcome of the metabolic syndrome monitoring clinic for people with a learning disability who were on anti-psychotic
medication and living in the community at the end of two consecutive years (March 2011 – February 2013)
• Audit on the care for patients with Schizophrenia after discontinuation of Clozapine
• A review of anti-psychotic prescriptions in people with a learning disability
Audit on the use of Nuvaring in Contraceptive Services
• Audit on use of ellaOne within contraceptive services
• Long Acting Reversible Contraception - Are we following the NICE guidelines?
• Evaluating the ADHD and AS Team’s (AAT) video-consultation project
• Monitoring of lithium in older persons services in the south of Northamptonshire
• Contraceptive Services Questionnaire 2013
• Test of cure for Neisseria Gonorrhea
• An evaluation of the effectiveness of personality training delivered across two inpatient units in the East Midlands
(Inpatient Psychology and Number 63)
• SAS doctors national audit of the management of young people under 16 years of age
• Concordance with post discharge follow up
• An audit of blood pressure monitoring of psychiatric inpatients with bipolar affective disorder
• Meeting the NHSLA standards for clinical/managerial supervision
• Service evaluation – measuring the percentage of routine and manual smokers accessing the stop smoking
service 2012/13
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Audits reported to the Clinical Audit and Effectiveness Committee (CAEC) from April 2013 (2013/14 audits)
Evaluation of Alternative to Remand Project in the Criminal Justice Team (Mental Health)
• Trust-wide overview of both electronic and paper record keeping audits submitted to quality support team
• The effect of management support plans on incidences of self harm and high risk behaviours in a prison environment
• An audit into documented discussions about driving during the assessment
and disclosure process in the memory clinic setting
• Audit on the appropriate use of benzodiazepines in an old-age psychiatry inpatient setting
• Evaluation of Dual Diagnosis Service in The Criminal Justice Team (Mental Health)
• Nutritional Assessments Audit 2013 2013-2014 Quarter 3 (October-December 2013)
• Rapid tranquilisation
• Benzodiazepine use in the inpatient forensic psychiatric settings
• Use of hypnotics for short-term management of insomnia in patients under care of Crisis Resolution Home Treatment
Team (CRHTT)
• Where’s the trolley? A study on resuscitation policy in an acute psychiatric hospital
• The effect of the ‘Stress Control’ group in improving the management of anxiety and mood disorders in life
sentenced prisoners
• Addendum to service user capacity on admission to The Sett
• Audit of anti-psychotic prescribing at HMP Gartree
• Epilepsy care plans
• The quality of outpatient clinic letters produced by Corby mental health team
• An audit of health visitor engagement in key stages of the child protection processes
• Audit of hypnotics prescribed in crisis resolution home treatment team
• ECT and anesthetic pre-assessment
• Use of antipsychotic drug prescribing in dementia care plan (re-audit)
• IUS/IUD follow-up audit
• Audit of best practice of electroconvulsive therapy with reference to the ECTAS
• Adherence to ‘Risk Assessment for Primary Prevention of Venous Thrombo-Embolism (VTE) Policy’ in old-age psychiatry
wards in Berrywood Hospital
• Audit on reviewing service user capacity on admission to The Sett following RA Serious Incident Report
• Linkage of assessment to care plan in mental health records with particular view of non compliance with medication
and/or appointments
• Audit of study leave budgets and study leave: Appraisal Year 2012/13
• Audit of medical appraisal documentation: Appraisal Year 2012/13
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Patients involved in research and development
There were 301 patients (year-to-date) involved in relevant health services provided or subcontracted by the Trust in
2013/14, who were recruited during the period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee.
The participation numbers throughout the year and in comparison to 2012/13 are show in the graph below. The graph
below provides a cumulative monthly breakdown of reported participant recruitment in portfolio studies by financial year
for 2012/13 and 2013/14 year-to-date. The chart also shows how well the Trust is recruiting towards the 2013/14 target.

Measurements to portfolio studies
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We are committed to investment in research and our research strategy approved during the year features a range of plans
and developments to build on previous research and development (R&D) activity.
Research advice and support
The R&D team continues to provide a range of advice and support services to our members of staff:
Support to clinicians to gain experience as principal investigators on national portfolio studies
Support to external researchers and staff wishing to undertake research as part fulfillment of their
Masters or dissertation programmes to gain NHS permission
General research advice
Advice about involving service users in R&D projects
Advice on dissemination of findings of studies
Service user involvement in R&D
The engagement of and consultation with service users and
carers at all stages continues to be a priority for our R&D
department. We have a database of service users and carers
interested in research on an ongoing basis. Our R&D office
links closely with service user and carer leads across our
organisation, by promoting the opportunities available for
participation in national portfolio research studies.

Service users and carers have been invited to attend
consultation sessions on the development of the service users’
research group, aimed at their involvement in the development
and delivery of research. By exploring the option of having
a part-time service user research champion to support and
spearhead the development of the service users’ research
group, we are also aiming to involve them in the initial stages.
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Current collaborations

Universities

NHS

We have continued links
with the University of
Northampton and are
developing new links with
the drug and alcohol
research unit at the
University of Cambridge.

Over the last 12 months, the
R&D office has continued
to work closely with other
NHS organisations to
further R&D activities,
including with Kettering
General Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust,
Northampton General
Hospital NHS Trust, South
Essex Partnership Trust
and Oxford Health NHS
Foundation Trust.

Mental health,
Dendron (Dementias
and Neurogeneration
Specialty) and neurology
We host staff who support
and promote recruitment
to National Institute for
Health Research (NIHR)
portfolio studies, as well as
raise the profile of R&D.

Commissioning for quality and innovation income
A proportion of our income in 2013/14 was conditional upon achieving
quality improvement and innovation goals. We agreed these goals with any
person or body who entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement for
the provision of relevant health services, through the Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework. We achieved 100%
payment for the agreed goals.

Secondary users service
data quality
Our records submitted
to the Secondary Users
Service (SUS) for inclusion
in hospital episodes statistics
during 2013/14 showed the
percentage of records in the
published data.

Included patients
valid NHS Number was

Cancer research networks
We have established
links with cancer research
networks through an
Oncology Research Nurse
based at Northampton
General Hospital and we
are currently exploring
how Cynthia Spencer and
Cransley Hospices may
support studies.

The total income in the
contract for CQUIN for
2013/14 was £3,300,000, of
which £2,900,108 was from
NHS Nene/Corby CCGs.
The 2014/15 CQUIN figure
allocated from NHS Nene/
Corby CCGs is £2,749,759.

Included patients
valid GP code was

100%

100%

99.39%

98.85%

for admitted
patient care

for outpatient
care

for admitted
patient care

for outpatient
care

Clinical coding
We are assured that we have met the standard clinical coding requirements with a variety of validation activities and declare we
achieved a Level 2 for Standard 508 overall. This has also been subject to external audit assurance and the final audit report for
clinical coding has been received.
We were not subject to the Payment by Results Clinical Coding Audit by the Audit Commission during the reporting period.
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Data quality
The data quality framework to which we adhere has been
revised in 2013/14 to include all new National Patient Level
dataset requirements, in addition to existing datasets and
local needs. Our Data Quality Group is the principal forum
where issues around data quality are addressed and resolved.
Where this group suggests changes to electronic patient
record systems, clinician reference groups are consulted to
ensure their involvement in final decisions.
We have completed our move to a web-based automated
reporting system that incorporates reporting around
data quality achievement. In the coming year, we seek to
ensure consistent use of this system across all levels of our
organisation. In recent years, we have routinely achieved full
compliance with national data quality reporting expectations.

Reporting against core indicators
The table below shows our performance against the key quality indicators set by Monitor. The Health and Social Care
Information Centre makes data from outside the Trust available to us for the following indicators.
Trust
Score
2012/13

Trust
Score
2013/14

National
average
score

FT
highest
score

FT lowest
score

Non FT
highest
score

Non FT
lowest
score

Percentage of patients on Care
Programme Approach (CPA) followed
up within 7 days of discharge from an
inpatient facility

97.5%

97.04%

97.21%

100%

90.99%

100%

94.66%

Percentage of admissions to acute
wards for which the Crisis Resolution
Home Treatment Team was a
gatekeeper

99.77%

97.39%

98.30%

100%

89.60%

100%

85.80%

Patients up to 16 years of age
re-admitted within 28 days of
discharge

Not
recorded

1.12%

10.15%

5.46%

13.91%

3.53%

25.80%

5.88%

5.37%

11.42%

6.31%

15.33%

2.38%

22.93%

Percentage of staff employed or under
contract who would recommend the
Trust to their family or friends

60.84%

50%

59%

73%

31%

55%

41%

Patient experience of community
mental health services indicator score
with regard to a patient’s experience of
contact with either a health or social
care worker

79%

75%

75%

Data not
available

Data not
available

Data not
available

Data not
available

Percentage of patient safety incidents
that resulted in severe harm or death

1.35%

1.17%

0.40%

0.10%

9.40%

0.10%

9.40%

Indicator

Patients aged 16 years and over
re-admitted within 28 days of
discharge

Performance has been largely maintained year-on-year. Our poorest outcomes are related to the Friends and Family Test.
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Our governors selected a local indicator
to be audited:

“Patient experience of
community mental health
services indicator score
with regard to a patient’s
experience of contact with
either a health or social
care worker.”
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The table below shows our success against 2013/14 targets.

Indicator

2013/14 target

Year end score

Care Programme Approach (CPA) patients receiving
follow-up contact with seven days of discharge

95%

96.36%

Care Programme Approach (CPA) patients having formal review
within 12 months

95%

95.1%

Admissions to inpatients services had access to Crisis Resolution
/Home Treatment teams

95%

97.59%

Meeting commitment to service new psychosis cases by early
intervention teams

95%

96.2%

Clostridium (C) difficile – attributable to Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

35

22

Minimising mental health delayed transfers of care

7.5%

6.7%

Mental health data completeness: identifiers

97%

99.1%

Mental health data completeness: outcomes for patients on CPA

50%

71.1%

Certification against compliance with requirements regarding access
to health care for people with a learning disability

Yes

Yes

CPA seven-day follow-up
Following feedback from our external auditors last year, we
have undertaken further work relating to compliance rates with
seven-day follow up for patients with a CPA. We have been
insisting that ‘non face-to-face’ contacts are the exception to
standard processes. The internal advance reporting considers
exceptions to be ‘any without face-to-face contact’, and any
such exceptions require a justification as to why a patient has
not received a face-to-face follow-up. In 2012/13, 89.6% of
follow-ups were face-to-face contacts. By January 2014, that
percentage had risen to 91.9%.
Friends and Family Test
Although reporting on the Friends and Family Test is not
a mandatory core indicator for the Trust, we have been
collecting the annual information for our inpatient services.
We also began rolling it out into community services during
the year, with services receiving monthly data reports. It
also forms part of the bi-monthly report to the Governance
Committee from the Patient Experience Group. See also
under patient experience section.
Community mental health survey
The results of the 2013 community mental health service user
survey show an increase in satisfaction on the previous year,
in five key areas that contribute to this indicator–listening,
taking views into account, confidence in health and social care
workers, being treated with respect and dignity, and being
given enough time to discuss condition and treatment.
We also perform above the national average in these areas.

Listening to staff
We consider staff engagement to be a key indicator of the
culture of our organisation and as a measure of quality due
to the high correlation between quality of service and staff
engagement.
The survey gives scores ranging from one to five, with one
indicating that staff are poorly engaged (with their work, their
team and their Trust) and five indicating that staff are highly
engaged. More information can be found in the People section
of the Directors’ Report.
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4

further
information

SECTION Four:
FURTHER INFORMATIOn
By reviewing other indicators to measure the quality of our services, in this part of our report, we share steps and
actions designed to address quality issues raised during the year.

The Francis Report
Using the list of recommendations for all healthcare
organisations published in the Francis Report, we undertook
a self-assessment and established a working group charged
with a programme of engagement. We engaged with
stakeholders, including staff, service users and governors, to
validate our self-assessment from questionnaires, focus groups
and presentations at various meetings and conferences to
understand their views.

Resulting changes
Our emphasis on staff engagement and advocacy has been to
ensure that we cultivate a culture that aligns with NHS values
and delivers compassionate care. From our increased learning
and more active listening with staff, we are addressing issues
and deterrents to personalised care, including unwarranted
bureaucracy and corporate information requirements.
Additionally, our recruitment processes are under review,
ensuring the appointment of staff with the right aptitudes and
values base.
Our investment in leadership development, fostering an
open and transparent culture in the organisation, has been
encouraging both staff and patient feedback. With systems
for monitoring the fundamental standards of care in place
and strengthened, our patient stories now launch every
Trust Board meeting. And the Governance Committee
has been reconstituted to engage more directly with staff
and explore patient safety themes in more detail through
themed meetings. Board members’ personal objectives and
expectations include regular visits to operational service
areas to understand challenges to staff and to support the
development of solutions.

Clwyd Report recommendations
Our consideration and review of recommendations from the
report published in October 2013 has enabled an evolved
complaints process and policy, as well as the opportunity to
identify methods for streamlining processes and improving
reporting, particularly in relation to incident reporting and
complaints. We aim to improve patient and staff experience
with these processes, reduce bureaucracy and staff reporting
time. Having undertaken various learning activities to ensure
lessons learned are taken back to patient-facing staff, we
introduced learning events during the past year to attract
high numbers of staff. Improvement action plans have
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been followed up and reviewed with services throughout
the year, and we now submit a six monthly learning report
to the Governance Committee reviewing lessons learned
from incidents and complaints. We have also examined our
serious incident review process, bringing findings that we
are addressing through key actions and planned changes to
progress during the year.
Future progress will include embedding the recommendations
from the internal review and main report, which we will
continually monitor through the Governance Committee.
Following a Board restructure and the transfer of responsibility
for clinical quality to the Director of Nursing and Quality and
Medical Director, strong clinical leadership is now in action.
The Director of Nursing and Quality will spend time in clinical
practice, working alongside patient-facing staff, gathering
information and experience on the day-to-day functions of
clinical staff and how challenges impact on the quality of care
they provide.

Other indicators used to measure quality
We use a number of indicators to monitor patient safety,
including:
Safety Thermometer for harm-free care
We have continued to use this tool as an additional indicator.
It looks at four key areas of risk, which combine to identify the
level of harm occurring with our patients. These are:
1 Pressure ulcer incidence
2 Falls
3 Venous thrombo-embolism assessment
4 Urinary tract infections relating to the use of catheters
All inpatient areas, community nurses, hospices and the
Intermediate Care Team have been participating in data
collection for the Safety Thermometer since February 2012.
From April 2013, the Older People Community Mental
Health Teams and Community Learning Disability Teams
have also been taking part by collecting data from any of their
clients who are over 65 years of age.
The Safety Thermometer measures the absence of harm from
the four identified risks. The graph below gives the percentage
of patients who received harm free care on 15 February
2014, the day of the most recent Safety Thermometer data
collection.

Percentage of harm-free care
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Mar 13

Apr 13

May 13

June 13

July 13

Aug 13

Sept 13

Oct13

Nov 13

Dec 13

Jan 14

Feb 14

Mar 14

No Harms

93.12

91.57

92.13

94.6

93.8

93.96

93.73

94.54

94.83

94.63

93.48

94.84

93.1

One Harm

6.63

7.88

7.4

5.09

5.96

5.8

6.27

5.37

5.09

5.19

6.52

5.08

6.74

Two Harms

0.25

0.55

0.47

0.31

0.24

0.24

0

0.09

0.09

0.09

0

0.08

0.16

Three Harms

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.09

0

0

0

Four Harms

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Patients

1221

1269

1271

1296

1275

1258

1164

1080

1160

1117

1104

1201

1217

Showing an overall increase in the
number of people experiencing
harm-free care since February
2012, the year was not a
straightforward one. The first six
months of 2013 saw a decline in
harm-free care. However, figures
for June 2013 show a significant
increase with 94.91% of people
surveyed being harm-free with
figures ranging from 93.48% to
94.83% between July 2013 and
February 2014.
As this information is collected
as a snapshot, we unify it with our
incident data giving us a more
accurate indication of safety of care
provided.
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Incident reporting
The graphs below show the comparison between the top five incidents reported by quarter in 2012/13 and 2013/14.
Overall there has been an increase in all five categories.
The increase in incidents may be related to increased awareness, training and reporting. However, we will continue
to undertake more detailed reviews to better identify causes of ulcers.

Top five incidents recorded in 2012/13
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Top five incidents recorded in 2013/14
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The data below demonstrates the total number of annual incidents recorded to date. There has been a considerable rise in the
number of patient safety incidents and total incidents reported compared with last year, whereas the percentage of patient
incidents resulting in death or serious harm has reduced. It is worth noting we closed the year with zero ‘never events’.

Total number of
incidents reported

Number of patient
safety incidents

Number of serious
incidents causing
death or severe
harm (using NPSA
definition)

Percentage of
patient incidents
resulting in death or
serious harm

Never events

2012/13

2013/14

2012/13

2013/14

2012/13

2013/14

2012/13

2013/14

2012/13

2013/14

Q1

1275

1441

884

1123

15

11

1.70%

0.98%

0

0

Q2

1230

1729

902

1269

13

15

1.40%

1.18%

0

0

Q3

1411

1689

1033

1264

17

15

1.60%

1.18%

0

0

Q4

1473

1567

1177

1113

17

15

1.50%

1.34%

1

0

Total

5389

6426

3996

4769

62

56

1.50%

1.17%

1

0

National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) alerts
We use NPSA alerts as a way of measuring our safety culture against national guidance. We review the NPSA alerts relevant to
us and act accordingly. We also have to register with the NPSA if any alerts are relevant to us. However, there were no relevant
alerts in 2013/14.
Litigation
We also use litigation claims as an indicator of quality. The number of claims we receive remains small, despite the fact that
we have increased the number of services that we provide. The graph below compares the last four years. There has been an
increased number of employer liability claims compared with previous years. However, clinical negligence claims have reduced
by more than 50%. Details of the claims are integrated into the Trust Patient Safety Report. The increase is as a result of the
additional services that we now provide.

Increase due to staff
numbers increased in Trust

9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
2010/11
Employers liability

2011/12
Clinical negligence

2012/13

2013/14

Public liability
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Infection Prevention and Control compliance statement
We are committed to promoting the highest standards of
infection prevention and control to ensure that the appropriate
measures are in place. This is so that we reduce the risk of
acquired infections and increase the safety of patients, staff
and visitors.
The Trust is fully committed to the Health and Social Care
Act 2008 and has given its financial support to minimise
the risks of infections to patients, visitors and staff. This
underlines the accountability of the Board in reducing
healthcare associated infections and the importance of
hospital cleanliness. The risks of infections are included on the
corporate register and are reviewed weekly by the Infection
Prevention and Control Team (IPCT).
The IPCT has made significant progress towards modernising
its service and meeting the challenging new agenda set at
both local and national levels. The IPCT has also dramatically
changed its working methods to deliver a more clinically
oriented and relevant service, which has been effective in both
improving clinical practice and reducing rates of healthcare
associated infections. We have witnessed significant
improvement in audit scores and compliance, and turnaround
of action plans. Indeed, infections due to Meticillin-Resistant
Staphylococcus Aureas (MRSA) and Clostridium Difficille
(C.Diff) have fallen.

In order to fulfill these requirements we have in place the
following people, programmes and policies:
• An executive director with responsibility for
safeguarding
• A role for Head of Safeguarding
• A safeguarding team comprising senior matrons, named
nurses and other professionals with discrete
responsibilities for safeguarding children and adults.

Training in infection prevention and control is mandatory for
all our staff, with practical learning a key part of this. We have
provided drop-in sessions, where staff undertook activities
including quizzes and games on waste disposal standard
precautions. Additionally, glow boxes were used to highlight
areas missed following hand washing, to demonstrate more
effective methods.

• A named doctor for safeguarding children

We developed a process for audit and spot checks for all
services including a monthly cleanliness audit in inpatient
areas using the National Standards of Cleanliness tool.
Considerable Trust-wide communication, openness and jointworking programmes have enabled continued improvement in
hygiene standards and reduction of infection rates.

• Child protection policy

Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults declaration
including Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty
Compliance 2014/15

• Executive lead representation on the LSCBN

The Trust is committed to providing high quality,
compassionate care and works to promote the dignity, health,
welfare and safety of all our service users.
We have evolved a robust structure twinned with policies
and procedures that enable us to fulfil our statutory duties to
safeguard and promote the welfare of children and vulnerable
adults as required by legislation, the Local Safeguarding
Children Board in Northamptonshire (LSCBN), the
Safeguarding of Northamptonshire Vulnerable Adults (SOVA)
Board, Monitor and CQC.

• A named doctor for safeguarding vulnerable adults
• A lead clinician and dedicated team for looked after
children
• Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks on
all employees
• Safeguarding vulnerable adults policy
• Children visiting policy
• Mandatory safeguarding training
• High level representation on the SOVA Board
• Engagement on the committees of the LSCBN and
SOVA Board
• Full engagement in partnership working via all working
groups, executive and strategic groups for safeguarding
children and vulnerable adults
• Full commitment to the work of the Multi Agency
Safeguarding Hub (MASH)
• A dedicated team responsible for supporting the
effective implementation of the Mental Capacity Act
(MCA) and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
• Systems in place to audit, monitor and report on
safeguarding, MCA and DoLS
• Cooperative working with our governance, quality and
risk management teams
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Patient experience
Improving the experience of our service users is a top priority.
Along with the other indicators we identified earlier, we also
use other measures to gather information on how successful
our services are.
• We use compliments, complaints and concerns to monitor
feedback.
• We incorporate the continued use of patient experience
surveys, with patient access to tablet computers and kiosks
at inpatient settings. Results are displayed in patient
areas and discussed at patient and carer meetings so that
improvements can be made. All community services are
required to complete a bi-annual patient experience survey
using a generic questionnaire with local variations. Work
continues to ensure that all services current and new comply
with this system.

• The commencement of each Trust Board meeting with a
patient story. Services continue to collect patient stories for
use in training and service improvement.
• Patient involvement in training/information videos.

Complaints, concerns and compliments
Of the 327 complaints received in 2013/14, 245 were
resolved by staff without the need for a formal response
from the Chief Executive. The Trust received an increased
number of complaints in 2013/14. We view this positively
as it increases our opportunities to learn from the patient
experience and to improve our services. The absence of a
patient advice and liaison service (PALS) manager for some
months during 2013 is notable and towards the end of 2013,
when a PALS manager was in post, a significant number of
concerns were resolved without recourse to the
complaints process.

• The use of the peer review and mock CQC inspection
programme to provide assurance of patient experience and
involvement and the capturing of initiatives.
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The graphs below compare the number of compliments, concerns and complaints of 2012/13 and 2013/14. It is reassuring to see
that more than twice as many compliments were received than complaints.
Complaints, PALS and Compliments
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Referrals to the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman
There are occasions when we are unable to resolve complaints locally. Below illustrates the number of complaints that have
been referred to the Health Service Ombudsman. It is encouraging to see referral instances have declined over the last four
years, and, to date, no independent reviews have been granted.

Referrals to
Parliamentary and
Health Service
Ombudsman

Request for
independent review
refused

PHSO decision
awaited

Referred back to the
Trust with
recommendations for
action to locally resolve

2013/14

3

2

0

1

2012/13

5

2

0

0

2011/12

5

5

0

0

2010/11

6

6

0

0

Year
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Reopened complaints
20 complaints were reopened during the period, with the predominant causes being that the complainant did not agree with our
findings or that they felt our response was factually incorrect and did not adequately address the issues. To identify any causes
for this, the complaints team for the annual complaints report will conduct a full audit on these instances, an example being the
investigating manager failing to initially meet the complainant, inadequate level of investigation.
Team

Theme

1 Attitude of staff
2 Support patients receive
Community mental health 3 Not acting on concerns raised by carers or family
teams
4 Poor communication
5 Lack of consistency with medical staff
6 Issues with referrals- timeliness
Physiotherapy

1 Attitude of staff

Child and adolescent
mental health services

1 Families feeling they were not listened to
2 Delayed assessments or follow up appointments
3 Meeting parental expectations

District nursing

1 Attitude of staff
2 Consideration of workload

Podiatry

1 Most relate to cuts in services

Mental health adult
inpatient services
(Berrywood hospital and
Welland centre)

More complaints at Berrywood than Welland

Older persons mental
health services inpatient
and outpatient

Very few complaints only two recorded

1 Privacy and dignity
2 Complaint responses restricted because patients did not give consent to share information
3 Communication relating to discharge arrangements
1 Attitude of staff
2 Quality of care
Low level of complaints across the county

Crisis resolution and
home treatment teams
(mental health)

1 Patients not being listened to
2 Attitude of staff
3 Efficacy of telephone assessments
4 Conflict between medical and team assessment
Very few complaints

Health visiting

1 Choice parents made about vaccinations
2 Attitude of staff
3 Breach of confidentiality

Prisons

1 Relating to changing regimes for medication which identified issues of liaison between providers
2 Not seeing the visiting psychiatrist enough
3 Tone of responses

Intermediate care team

1 Discharge
2 Incorrect entry onto patient record by a doctor which could have had serious repercussions

Patient contact
centre

1 Calls not being answered
2 High turnover of staff leading to gaps in the service

Learning disabilities

1 Concerns regarding the closure of respite care
2 Inappropriate language used by a member of staff
3 Concern raised about a member of medical staff

Low secure inpatient units

1 Discharge

Wheelchair services

1 Mobility needs not being listened to
2 Ineffective assessments leading to the wrong or wheelchair not being supplied
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While disappointing to see staff attitude appearing as a common theme cited in complaints, it is encouraging to note that
one of our teams has incorporated the feedback by implementing changes to improve the area related to complaints. The
physiotherapy team accepted that considerable work is needed around attitude of staff, which means a number of initiatives are
in place to address this:
• Working with organisational development to provide additional training and to link with John Lewis to understand ‘what good
customer care looks like’
• Team days considering ‘What does good look like?’ which touches on value for money, efficiency, being employer of choice,
standards, user friendliness, responding to the market, staffing levels, brand image, customer focus, communication and
effective relationships
• Utilising different team educational approaches such as holding a ‘Mock the Week’ session for ‘10 things you should not hear
in a waiting room’
• Staff wearing name badges, in addition to using the Trust identification badge, so that their names are clearly visible to
patients and others and to encourage a more personal approach
The success of these initiatives will also help other teams to learn and share the experiences of the Physiotherapy Team.

Patient stories
We have included patient stories at Trust Board meetings,
providing essential personal experiences of our patients,
service users and carers. We have included three stories below
that have been used during the year to gather feedback.
Children’s health visiting
“A had long been suffering with anxiety and depression which
had not been effectively treated, and he would not have
counselling to assist him. Without it, I couldn’t see a way out
for him, and was concerned that without the necessary help,
the situation would remain and possibly worsen.
We rang the health visitor for help, and received a visit from L.
L came and visited us at home and I talked to her about
everything that was going on, and how helpless I felt. She
provided very practical help in giving us some solutions to
work through, and booking us on some courses to assist us,
including baby massage, first words (to help with J’s delayed
speech and communication) and Solihul, a parenting course.
L was incredibly supportive, and from her first visit, A and I
both felt things would improve. Having a confidential sounding
board, and someone to reassure us we were doing a good job
helped us tremendously.
I also feel so much better in myself. We are now five months
on from when we first met with L, and our last visit is today.
My confidence as a person is hugely improved, and my role as
mother is so much more fulfilling now that I’m in a better place
mentally. I am so much stronger now and happier and above
all, appreciative to have such a wonderful family, which is what
I’ve always wanted.
I cannot express enough, the high regard I have for L and for
health visitors in general. This service has provided us, and
I’m sure many families, with practical ways to improve family
life, particularly when life is difficult and pressures are great.
Without the support we have received, we would not have
become such a strong unit and it is invaluable to know this
type of support exists and is available.
We are eternally grateful and recommend the service of
health visitors to any family in need of help or guidance.”

Dementia care
K is 63 years old and has fronto-temporal dementia, diagnosed
in October 2012. He lives at home with his wife, A, his main
carer. This is their joint story.
“About 10 years ago, K had a bad bout of depression and was
treated at Campbell House. Despite medication, things did
not improve and he suffered from anxiety and paranoia. About
three years ago, out of the blue, K started having massive
seizures. It was not epilepsy and we never found out what
caused them. It follows a pattern. He cannot remember the
three days before and it takes four to five days to recover. He
has had three to four seizures since then. He also started doing
things in very repetitive, set ways, like always walking through a
door the same way. He started being unable to cope if things
were different. We thought it might be OCD.
K started forgetting things. Change was becoming more
difficult to cope with. He became ever more isolated and
anxious. He kept mentioning he was forgetting things and
would do things like putting milk in the cupboard and tea bags
in the fridge.
K was referred for a dementia test, but this took months to
arrange and he was getting worse. The consultant did a mini
test and then J, the Dementia Nurse, became involved.
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She is absolutely fabulous. I always suspected some form of
dementia, perhaps early onset, but was devastated when K
was diagnosed with front-temporal dementia, which he might
have had for 10 years. Everything J said was like a tick list of K
symptoms. We have learnt a lot from her.
In November last year, K was getting increasingly anxious and
finding it difficult to cope. He was admitted to Harbour Ward
at Berrywood, where he felt safe and secure. At one point
he became very upset when another patient was told at 1am
that he was going to transfer to Cove Ward. K didn’t think
it was right that a patient should transfer during the night.
K did transfer to Cove Ward, but he could not cope. K was
discharged. We were not happy as we felt Cove staff did not
understand K.
Things became difficult at home and in January this year, J
felt K needed readmitting to Harbour Ward. He was ok on
Harbour and didn’t want to go to Cove as he was frightened.
However he did agree to go to Cove where there was a
different patient group. It was completely different. K got
involved with the OT, the gym and pottery classes. He loves
pottery and spends hours doing it. It was not all good, though.
K couldn’t understand the amount of food waste and just
going for a walk around the grounds ‘did his head in’. The food
at Berrywood is excellent with plenty of choice.
Whilst in Cove, the consultant decided that K should not
return home, but be discharged to a care home. We were told
it was his decision not ours, but with the support of J, K came
home with the need for regular respite.”
Personal health budgets
“I care for my wife who had a stroke three years ago. It came
as a huge shock for both of us. Before the stroke my wife was
very active, could drive and loved to sew and make quilts.
We had never argued in 44 years of married life. We lived in
a house that we had made perfect for us. After the stroke,
things changed for both of us. It was as if we had lost part of
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the jigsaw. Our house was no longer suitable; my wife couldn’t
drive and could not sew.
As a carer you have to suddenly take on a lot more. I began to
lose sleep; we started biting at each other. I felt I was losing
my sanity. I became very anxious and depressed. I worried all
the time about my wife and probably became over protective.
Things were getting pretty bad.
Just before we moved we applied for and were granted a
personal health budget. This was to allow us to employ a
personal assistant. We appointed someone but it didn’t work
out, she was not suitable. We decided to move. It was dreadful
to leave our perfect home. We had good neighbours and had
built up friendships in the area. We couldn’t fit a stair lift and
couldn’t use the mobility scooter.
We moved to a bungalow, but because of the move and two
gas leaks in the house we put the personal budget on hold.
We took up the budget again last August. It has provided a
personal assistant and my wife is getting back her confidence,
getting to know the local area and has learnt how to sew again.
She has even sold some of the handbags she has made. She is
a member of a local stitching group and has a circle of friends
who support her and take her out.
It has given me the confidence that my wife can go out without
me worrying or feeling under pressure. The personal assistant
has become like a friend to us. It’s like a three way partnership.
It has bucked me up and we have stopped arguing.
It has helped my wife to cope again. The personal assistant
gives her care, trust and love. She has more confidence and
knows she can cope much better. We feel we have got each
other back. Our laughter has returned.
We do worry about the future. If my wife continues to improve
through the support she is getting, will the budget be taken
away? That would be devastating to us both. We don’t seem
to have a process for it to be reviewed. This may be sorted out
now that we have a personal health budget coordinator.”

“I cannot express enough,
the high regard I have for
L and for health visitors
in general. This service
has provided us, and I’m
sure many families, with
practical ways to improve
family life, particularly
when life is difficult and
pressures are great.
Without the support we
have received, we would
not have become such
a strong unit and it is
invaluable to know this
type of support exists and
is available.
We are eternally grateful
and recommend the
service of health visitors to
any family in need of help
or guidance.”
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Generating change thRough patient feedback
Feedback from patients, service users and carers can generate ideas for change and the table below shows some of the year’s
new initiatives.
Service

Issue

Children’s physiotherapy

Need for greater understanding of services
Publication of service leaflet
available

CAMHS Community

Lack of consideration for carer views

Carer awareness training for clinicians

Need to increase the voice of the child

Met with children and young people in one
secondary school and one primary school
to gain their views on how we can work
with young people and their families
regarding delivery of healthcare from the
Trust. Reported to Children’s Services
Clinical Governance Group.

Children’s occupational therapy

Delay in making appointments

Clinic Assessments set up at Manfield
Court. Choose and Book system in
operation to enable patients a choice of
appointment dates and times.

Wheelchair assessment

Continuity through care pathway

Service user/carer reference group being
formed

Adult learning disability respite

High satisfaction but desire to influence
changes

Service user/carer reference group
formed

Inpatient mental health

Involvement of carers

Carer awareness training and introduction
of Triangle of Care

Inpatient mental health

Need for more time with nurses

Change of ward structure

Trust-wide

Increase awareness of service user/carer
issues

Patient experience training on request
(including doctors)

ECT

Worry about the process

Patient story resource packs being
developed

Meadowbank

Preparation for employment

Introduction of NVQ1 employability

CAMHS NGH

Lack of GP understanding about
challenging behaviour

Lecture on behaviour management in
under five-year-olds

Need for greater parent awareness

Twelve week plan looking at behaviour
change in healthy eating and improving
physical activity with families who have
children who are an unhealthy weight.

The Sett

Need for greater awareness of service

Changes will be made to admission and
discharge policies. Changes to welcome
pack will be made. Contact lists will be
given to all families on admission.

Palliative care

Patient fear

Patient stories and patient film

CAMHS Community

Children’s weight management
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Initiative/change

Clinical effectiveness
Audit and targets set within the CQUIN and Quality Schedule have enabled us to review other elements of care. One target set
for us during the year was to undertake nutritional assessments on all our inpatient units.
Nutritional assessment
The review of nutritional assessment and care plan review continues to challenge clinicians. The chart below compares the
following indicators:
• Nutritional assessment completed
• Nutritional assessment completed within 48 hours (new patients)
• Evidence of appropriate care for patients with high risk score
• Compliance with reviews for new patients and previously audited patients since last audit
We are improving in overall compliance with all aspects of nutritional assessment and working towards achieving our target.

Nutritional assessment

100%
80%
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60%

90%

84%

82%

97%

97%

96%

95%

96%

85%
76%

73%
67%

65%

90%
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65%

69%

59%

40%

42%

20%
0%
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November2013

MUST Completed

Care plan

Linear (MUST completed)

Linear (Care plan)

Within 48hrs (new pts)

Compliance with reviews

Linear (Within 48hrs)

Linear (Compliance with reviews)

December2013

We have recruited a dietician to lead on a task and finish group to review policy, standards, undertake education and training and
to scope the future nutritional need in mental health services.
Following staff feedback, one of our dietician’s key tasks is to support staff and enable them to successfully assess and plan
patients’ nutritional needs.
Our Nutrition and Hydration Policy is comparable to that of other trusts, requiring patients to be screened using the Malnutrition
Universal Screening Tool (MUST) within the first 48 hours of admission, and re-screened regularly if identified as at
nutritional risk.
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Providing support for carers
In addition to the audit relating to care of patients, as part of the quality schedule we have also looked at how we support our
carers. Our target is to survey the carers within certain groups of patients to ensure they feel supported. We undertook a survey
of carers who attended patients at a memory clinic and gained the following feedback.
During 1 February through to 28 February 2014 all carers were given the opportunity to answer a brief questionnaire, including
the question “Do you feel supported by the assessment service staff?” and were then asked for comments. This applied to
memory assessment clinics in various locations in the Trust.
Key findings
30 carers responded, of which 29 responded positively. Note: One did not respond
Key positive factors
• Flexibility of approach • Accessibility of staff
• Caring attitude
• Quality of information given
• Understanding

• Few suggestions for improvement

Venous Thrombo-Embolism (VTE) assessment
As part of the Safety Thermometer audit tool, we undertake a monthly audit of patients who have undergone a VTE assessment.
Since August 2012, we have steadily increased the number of patients who have had a VTE assessment and, although VTE
assessment is perhaps better suited to acute hospitals for serious VTE incidents, we have implemented a programme of
assessment and monitor its success using the Safety Thermometer.
We are awaiting figures for March to give us full year figures. However, we are pleased to share that in the last 12 months, we
have continually ensured that 80% of eligible patients have a VTE assessment.

VTE Risk Assessment: patients with a documented VTE risk assessment
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, all wards, settings, services, ages and sexes
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Care Quality Commission registration
Registration with the Care Quality Commission and other regulators
We are required to register with the Care Quality Commission (CQC), the independent regulator of health and social care
in England. Our status is listed as unconditional registration from 1 April 2010. In order for our CQC status to remain
unconditional, we must maintain compliance with all 16 regulations related to essential standards of quality and safety.
We established a compliance monitoring process for all services, and assurance information is routinely obtained through
internal reviews of compliance, peer review visits, and quarterly compliance assessments completed by all teams showing how
services are complying with the CQC’s essential standards.
The CQC has not taken any enforcement actions against the Trust during 2013/14, nor has the Trust been required to
participate in any special review or investigation by the CQC during the year.

Care Quality Commission
unannounced inspection programme

During 2013/14, the CQC visited several Trust locations as part of
their routine schedule of planned reviews of compliance with essential
standards of quality and safety.

The CQC visited five inpatient wards within St Mary’s Hospital in August
2013 and found that patients had been involved in their care planning.
Meetings were held daily, where people could discuss the daily activities
they would like to do and make suggestions for possible improvements.
Staff informed the CQC that they felt supported and could raise any
concerns they had. There was a comprehensive recording chart available
to record medicines prescribed and when they were administered.

St Mary’s Hospital

We continue to implement an improvement plan, agreed with the CQC
in September 2013, which followed the discovery of some inexplicable
record omissions. The CQC Report found there was assurance on
monitoring of physical intervention and seclusion required, to ensure
compliance with Trust policy and relevant national guidance and
legislation.

John Greenwood
Shipman Centre

The CQC inspected John Greenwood Shipman Centre in October 2013
as a part of a themed inspection programme specifically looking at the
arrangements for transition from child to adult services. The programme
focused on young people aged 14-25 years with complex physical health
needs. The CQC found that people’s needs were assessed and care
plans were put in place to ensure their needs were met. It also found that,
as the provider, we maintained contact with involved care professionals
and that patients were protected from the risks of abuse. An action plan
has been implemented to address concerns that records were not always
updated or fully completed in terms of risk assessment.

As of 1 August 2013, we are responsible for providing Short Breaks
Services for Disabled Children and Young People in the county. The
service, dually registered with the CQC and Ofsted, is being provided
from The Squirrels in Rushden, John Greenwood Shipman Centre in
Northampton, and 82 Northampton Road in Wellingborough.
Short breaks provide both the parents and child with a positive
experience, affording families an opportunity to relax and feel reassured
that their child is in a safe, supportive and stimulating environment.
Ofsted visited all short break services as part of their routine inspections
in 2014.
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Registration with Ofsted

John Greenwood Shipman Centre

Ofsted visited John Greenwood Shipman Centre in February 2014
and found that the home provides personalised care that prioritises
the complex health needs of children receiving short breaks. The
environment is purpose built and well maintained with facilities catering
to children’s individual needs, allowing them to enjoy a range of activities
that promote opportunities to develop new skills. Children are cared for
by appropriate numbers of committed staff, who are knowledgeable and
dedicated to the promotion of good outcomes for children. Parents feel
welcome in the home and have a positive view of the service provided.
An action plan was developed in February 2014 to address issues, raised
by Ofsted, regarding reduced effectiveness of management oversight in
all areas following a reduced response to a safeguarding issue and gaps in
recruitment checks.

The Squirrels is a six-bedded short-stay residential unit for children and
young people with learning disabilities. An inspection in February 2014
was positive, with our overall rating ‘adequate’ and our leadership and
management rated ‘good’. The team has developed and implemented
improvements identified by the inspectors, which will be reviewed at the
next inspection in 2014/15.

The Squirrels

82 Northampton Road
82 Northampton Road, Wellingborough provides short breaks for
children and young people with complex learning disabilities, primarily
autism. This was our first inspection since taking on management of
the service here. Inspectors acknowledged that the quality of care
and outcomes for children and young people were meeting the needs
of the children. However, areas for improvement were identified in
the inspection relating to safeguarding and leadership. Following the
inspection a comprehensive action plan was developed, demonstrating
our drive to improve the service.

Information Governance Toolkit audit

Data Flow Mapping

Last year’s Information Toolkit audit highlighted the sound
Information Governance (IG) framework in place, which has
been further consolidated during the year. As a result of the
positive appraisal of the approach undertaken by the Trust
over the last two years the next IG Toolkit submission will not
be externally audited. HSCIC and NHS England have been
contacted and have confirmed that external audit is not a
mandatory requirement.

The Data Flow Mapping project provides assurance that
transfers of personal identifiable data are recorded in
accordance with the IG Toolkit. The Trust is required to
map 100% of its flows and feed the results into the annual
Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) report. The Data
Flow Mapping project and the SIRO report account for 24
outstanding pieces of evidence.

IG Toolkit final position
The yearly information governance reassessment demonstrates
our organisation is undertaking due diligence and assuring its
evidence and annual information governance activity. Our
submission for Version 11 of the IG Toolkit for this year has
been completed and the final score is green (satisfactory) with
an improved position against individual requirements overall.

All incoming and outgoing flows of personal identifiable
information and all bulk internal flows of personal information
were mapped throughout the Trust and all of the returned
flows have been assigned an Information Asset Owner.
At the end of the year 100% of all our data flows have been
mapped, are being contacted and supported to complete
outstanding returns.
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5

FEEDBACK FROM
STAKEHOLDERS
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SECTION Five:
FEEDBACK FROM
STAKEHOLDERS
The Trust‘s mandatory obligations for items to be
included in the Annual Report are determined by
Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual. We welcome
suggestions from our key stakeholders regarding content
and incorporate these suggestions where it is appropriate
to do so.
Clinical Commissioning Groups, Healthwatch and the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) were all invited
to comment on the Quality Report and we welcome
their responses. As we include the feedback from our
stakeholders exactly as it is received the page numbers
that are referred to are those that are in the original
Quality Account document.
Requests for additional information were received from
Healthwatch and the OSC as well as suggestions for
improvement. Where we were able to make adjustments
we did so. Specifically in relation to the feedback from
Nene and Corby Clinical Commissioning Groups the
figures for Family and Friends test are consistent with
those reported against the CQUIN.
Healthwatch Northamptonshire sought a number
of additional assurances and we will be making a full
response directly to them. We have a developing
relationship with Healthwatch that we are looking to
strengthen over the year.
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6

STATEMENT OF
directors’
responsibilities
for the quality
account

SECTION six: STATEMENT OF
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE QUALITY REPORT
Our directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service Quality Account
Regulations to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS Foundation Trust Boards on the form and content of Annual Quality
Reports (which include the above legal requirements) and on the arrangements that Foundation Trust
Boards should put in place to support the data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report.
In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:
1 The content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual.
• The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources of
information including:
• Board minutes and papers for the period April 2013 to March 2014
• Papers relating to quality reported to the Board over the period April 2013 to March 2014
• Feedback from the commissioners dated 21 May 2014
• Feedback from governors
• Feedback from Healthwatch dated 22 May 2014
• The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, June 2014
• The community mental health national patient survey
• The national staff survey published February 2014
• The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment
• The Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles
2 The Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s performance over the
period covered.
3 The performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate.
4 There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of performance
included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to confirm that they are working
effectively in practice.
5 The data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is robust and
reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, and is subject to
appropriate scrutiny and review.
6 The Quality Report has been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which
incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) as well as the standards to support data quality for the
preparation of the Quality Report.
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board

Paul Bertin
Chairman
22 May 2014
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Angela Hillery
Chief Executive
22 May 2014
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Now you can follow our progress, find out more about our services, read reports from
our meetings, keep up-to-date on our news and send us your comments and views.

Visit our website at
www.nhft.nhs.uk

Follow us on twitter at
@NHFTNHS

Find us on Facebook
Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust

Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Sudborough House
St Mary’s Hospital
Kettering
NN15 7PW
Telephone: 01536 410141

www.nhft.nhs.uk
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